
Kermit Williams, District 7 
President 
Randy Carter, District 4 
President Pro Tern 

PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

Patrice Waterman, District 1 
Megan Shramski, District 2 
Mary Pietila, District 3 
Gloria Miller, District 5 
Dr. Doris Taylor Burks, District 6 

It is this Council's mission "To serve the citizens of Pontiac by committing to help provide an enhanced quality of life 
for its residents, fostering the vision of a family-friendly community that is a great place to live, work and play. " 

47450 Woodward Pontiac, MI 48342 Phone: (248) 758-3200 Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A. 

FORMAL MEETING 
264th Session of the 10th Council 

November 23, 2021 at 12:00 P.M. 

Interim City Clerk 

Meeting Location: City Council Chambers 47450 Woodward Pontiac, MI 48342 

Call to Order 

Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers 

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda 

Approval of the Minutes 
1. November 16, 2021 Study Session 

2. November 18, 2021 Special Meeting 

Recognition Elected Officials 

Agenda Address 

Agenda Items 
City Attorney 

3. Resolution to approve the Medical Marihuana Commission Rules 

Communication from the City Clerk 
4. The communication is informing the City Council that the Medical Marihuana Commission rules are not in 

compliance with Ordinance 2357(B) City of Pontiac Medical Marihuana Facilities Ordinance approved by 
Pontiac voters 

Department of Public Works (DPW) 
5. Resolution for Council to approve the SEMCOG Planning Assistance Program Grant Agreement for a Road 

Diet Study on Auburn A venue. 

Economic Development 
6. Resolution to Schedule Public Hearing for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2022 



7. Resolution to consider approval ofVinCon, Inc. for CDBG Batch 17 Demolition Services 

8. Resolution to Schedule Public Hearing to Reprogram Senior Housekeeping Services to Sidewalks -
Recommending Project Allocations for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Years 2019 
and 2020 

Finance 
9. Resolution to request the Enhanced Pension Benefit needed supplemental actuarial reports. 

Finance-Budget Amendments 
10. Resolution to authorize the City Clerk to post notice of a proposed budget amendment for fiscal year 2021/2022 

in the Oakland Press to transfer $180,000 from the general fund balance GL account 101-000-390.000 to the 
Capital Improvement Fund GL account 445-265-976.001 Building Additions and Improvements (It is 
requested that Council select either 10 or 11.) 

11. Resolution to authorize the City Clerk to post notice of a proposed budget amendment for fiscal year 2021/2022 
in the Oakland Press to transfer $80,000 out of General Fund Balance GL account 101-000-390.000 and 
$100,000 out of General Fund GL account 101-101-818.013-Professional Services-Animal Control and transfer 
$180,000 into the Capital Improvement Fund GL account 445-265-976.001- Building Additions and 
Improvements (It is requested that Council select either 10 or 11.) 

12. Resolution to authorize the City Clerk to post notice of a proposed budget amendment for fiscal year 2021/2022 
in the Oakland Press to allocate a total of $63,000 to the General Fund GL Account 101-206-702-000 to fund 
the Deputy Finance Director position. 

Finance-Grant 
13. Resolution to accept a $90,000 Grant From Nextfifty Initiative to Support Infrastructure Improvements at 

Pontiac Senior Centers 

Information Technology 
14. Resolution to approve the purchase of Microsoft Office 365 solution and associated costs not to exceed 

$66,953.00 

Planning 
15. Resolution to approve a Zoning Map Amendment request ZMA 20-08 for PIN 64-14-17-130-005 & 64-14-17-

130-006 to amend the current site zoning M-1 Light Manufacturing to M-1 Light Manufacturing with CR 
[Conditional Rezoning] zoning district. 

16. Resolution to approve a Zoning Map Amendment request ZMA 21-09 for PIN 64-14-16-126-007 to amend the 
current site zoning C-3 Corridor Commercial & R-1 One Family Dwelling to R-1 One Family Dwelling zoning 
district and 64-14-16-126-008 to amend the current site zoning C-3 Corridor Commercial & R-1 One Family 
Dwelling to C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning district. 

Public Comment 

Mayor, Clerk and Council Closing Comments 

Adjournment 

Upcoming Special Presentations-November 30, 2021 
1. Election Report 
2. Medical Marihuana Application Review Process Update 

2 



#1 
MINUTES 



November 16, 2021 Study Draft 

Call to order 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

262'"1 Session of the Tenth Council 

A Study Session of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order at the City Hall Council 
Chambers, 47450 Woodward Ave Pontiac, MI 48342 on Tuesday, November 16, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. by 
Councilwoman Mary Pietila. 

Roll Call 

Members Present-Miller, Pietila, Shramski and Taylor-Burks 

Mayor Waterman was present. 
A quorum was announced. 

Excuse Councilmembers 
21-343 Excuse Councilmembers Randy Carter, Patrice Waterman and Kermit Williams for 
personal reasons. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson Miller. 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Shramski and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda 
21-344 Motion to remove item #10 (resolution to request the Enhanced Pension Benefit 
supplemental actuarial reports) from the agenda. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second 
by Councilperson Shramski. 

Ayes: Pietila, Shramski and Taylor-Burks 
No: Miller 
Motion Failed 

21-345 Motion to approve the agenda as is. Moved by Councilperson Miller and second by 
Councilperson Shramski. 

Ayes: Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Miller and Pietila 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

Approval of Minutes 
21-346 Motion to approve meeting minutes for November 9, 2021. Moved by Councilperson 
Miller and second by Councilperson Shramski. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Miller, Pietila and Shramski 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

Public Comment 
Eleven ( 11) individuals addressed the body during public comment 

1 



November 16, 2021 Study Draft 

Special Presentation 
Report on Maynard Court: Volunteer Efforts to Clean Up Condemned Site Occupied by Tenants of 
Landlord with Blight Violation History and Management Issues 

Discussion 
Pontiac Youth Recreation and Enrichment Center (PYREC) 

Suspend the Rules 
21-347 Motion to suspend the rules. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by 
Councilperson Miller. 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Shramski and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

21-348 Motion to schedule a special meeting on Thursday, November 18, 2021 at 2:00 p.m. 
to consider a budget amendment for fiscal year 2021/2022 to allocate a total of $180,000 in 
American Rescue Plan Funding as a matching grant to the Pontiac Skate Park Project "The Skate 
Park Project" (formerly the Tony Hawk Foundation) grant awardee. Moved by Councilperson 
Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson Shramski. 

Adjournment 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Shramski and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

Councilwoman Mary Pietila adjourned the meeting at 8:41 p.m. 

Garland Doyle 
Interim City Clerk 

2 



#2 

MINUTES 



November 18, 2021 Special Draft 

Call to order 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

263rd Session of the Tenth Council 

A Special Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order at the City Hall Council 
Chambers, 47450 Woodward Ave Pontiac, MI 48342 on Thursday, November 18, 2021 at 2:01 p.m. by 
Council President Kermit Williams. 

Roll Call 

Members Present- Miller, Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 

Mayor Waterman was present. 
A quorum was announced. 

Excuse Councilmembers 
21-349 Excuse Councilmember Randy Carter for personal reasons, Moved by Councilperson 
Pietila and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Slu·amski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda 
21-350 Motion to approve the agenda. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by 
Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Resolution 

Ayes: Pietila, Shramski, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried 

21-351 Resolution to approve expenditure of allocated funds for the purpose of the Pontiac 
Skate Park Project. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Whereas, the Pontiac Skate Park Project was awarded $250,000 in matching funds for the construction of 
a free public skate park in addition to $50,000 to fund project design costs that specifically intend to 
lessen the environmental impact of the skate park. 
Whereas, the Oakland County Sheriff Police Athletic League is the acting fiduciary for the Pontiac Skate 
Park Project. 
Whereas, the grant requires matching funds to secure the $250,000 from the Skate Park Project. 
Whereas, with matching funds acquired, the Pontiac Skate Park Project could construct a 10,000 square 
foot skate park by November 2022. 
Whereas, with $70,000 raised by the Pontiac Skate Park Project, $250,000 in matching awards from the 
Skate Park Project, addition to $50,000 to fund project design costs that specifically intend to lessen the 
environmental impact of the Skate Park, and $180,000 allocated by the City of Pontiac there would be a 
total of $550,000 established for the family. 
Whereas, the City of Pontiac would allocate to the Pontiac Skate Park Project $180,000 from its FY 2021-
2022 Budget. 

1 



November 18, 2021 Special Draft 

Now, therefore, Be Resolved, that the City Council hereby approves $180,000 allocation to The Pontiac 
Skate Park Project from the City of Pontiac's FY 2021-2022 Budget, Capital Improvement Fund (fund 
445) GL Account 445-265-976-001 - Building Additions & Improvements. 

Ayes: Shramski, Taylor-Burks, waterman, Williams, Miller and Pietila 
No: None 
Resolution Passed 

Public Comment 
One (1) individual addressed the body during public comment 

Adjournment 
Council President Kermit Williams adjourned the meeting at 2:25 p.m. 

Garland Doyle 
Interim City Clerk 

2 



#3 

RESOLUTION 



Pontiac Medical Marihuana Commission Rules and Regulations 

All meetings of the Medical Marihuana Commission ("Commission") will be held in compliance with all 
applicable statutes, including the Open Meetings Act, 1976 PA 267 as amended, and with these rules and 
regulations. 

Commission Membership Requirements 

Members of the Commission shall be residents of the City of Pontiac and shall serve without pay. 

Commission Powers and Duties 

The Commission shall review and decide all appeals that are forwarded to it by the City Clerk pursuant to 
Ordinance 2357(B). The Commission shall review all appeals de novo. The Commission may overturn a 
decision or finding of the City Clerk ifit finds such decision or finding to be arbitrary or capricious and not 
supported by material, substantial, and competent facts on the whole record considered by the City Clerk 
in arriving at such decision or finding. 

Meeting Schedule 

The Committee shall post a meeting notice in a manner consistent with applicable law subsequent to 
receiving an appeal forwarded to it by the City Clerk pursuant to City Ordinance 2357(B). Due to the 
timing irregularity of the receipt of appeals, the Commission may not schedule Regular Meetings as set 
forth in the Michigan Open Meetings Act, Michigan Public Act 267 of 1976, at MCL 15.265. If the 
Commission does adopt a regular meeting schedule, it shall be posted in a manner consistent with MCL 
15.265. 

Minutes of meetings 

Minutes of all meetings of the Commission shall be kept in a manner consistent with applicable law. A 
copy of the minutes of meetings shall be available for public inspection at the City Clerk's Office during 
regular business hours. 

Conduct of meetings 

All meetings of the Commission shall be open to the public except as permitted by applicable law. All 
open meetings shall be open to the media, freely subject to recording by radio, television and photographic 
services at any time, provided that such arrangements do not interfere with the orderly conduct of the 
meetings. 



Commission meeting agenda 

Meeting agendas will be as follows 

1. Call to order 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Roll Call 
4. Amendments to and approve of the agenda 
5. Approval of the Minutes (As needed) 
6. Agenda Items 
7. Public Comment (3 Minute Limit) 
8. Adjournment 

Quorum 

A majority of the Commission shall constitute a quorum for the review of appeals. 

Chairperson and Vice Chairperson 

At its first meeting, the Commission shall select, by majority vote, a Chairperson and Vice Chairperson. 

Presiding Officer 

The Presiding Officer shall be responsible for enforcing these Rules and Regulations and for enforcing 
orderly conduct at meetings. The Chairperson shall be the Presiding Officer. If the Chairperson is absent, 
the Vice Chairperson shall act as the Presiding Officer. In the event of a resignation or other permanent 
absence of the Chairperson or Vice Chairperson position, it shall be filled by nomination and majority vote 
of the Commission members serving. 

Disorderly conduct 

The Presiding Officer may call to order any person who is being disorderly by speaking out of order or 
otherwise disrupting the proceedings, failing to be germane, speaking longer than the allotted time or 
speaking vulgarities. Such person shall be seated until the Presiding Officer determines the person is in 
order. 

Closed sessions 

Closed sessions may be held only for the reasons consistent with applicable law, as determined by the City 
Attorney. 

Calling closed sessions 

The Commission by a two-thirds roll call vote may call a closed session subject to the conditions herein. 
The roll call vote and purpose(s) for calling the closed meeting shall be entered into the minutes of the 
public part of the meeting at which the vote is taken. 

Minutes of closed meetings 

A separate set of minutes shall be taken at the closed session. These minutes will be retained by the City 
Clerk and shall not be available to the public. 



Discussion and voting 

Rules of parliamentary procedure 

The rules of parliamentary practice, as contained in the 11th edition of Robert's Rules of Order, shall govern 
the council in all cases to which they are applicable, provided they are not in conflict with these rules, city 
ordinances or applicable state statutes. The Presiding Officer shall preserve order and decorum and may 
speak to points of order in preference to other members. If a point of order is given it should not exceed 
two (2) minutes. 

Conduct of discussion 

During the council discussion and debate, no member shall speak until recognized for that purpose by the 
Presiding Officer. After such recognition, the member shall confine discussion to the question at hand and 
to its merits and shall not be interrupted except by a point of order or privilege raised by another member. 
Speakers should address their remarks to the chair, maintain a courteous tone and avoid interjecting a 
personal note into debate. 

Public comment 

Each meeting agenda shall provide reserved time for public comment participation. During public 
comment, each individual shall be limited to three (3) minutes, and shall not engage in conduct or language 
that disrupts, makes fun of, or otherwise impedes the orderly conduct of the meeting. In addition, members 
of the audience shall not engage in disorderly or boisterous activity including but not limited to; the 
utterance of loud, obnoxious, threatening, or abusive language, cheering, whistling, or any other acts that 
disturb, disrupt, or impede, or otherwise interfere with the orderly conduct of the meeting. 

Suspension of rules 

The rules of the Commission may be suspended for a specified portion of a meeting by an affirmative vote 
of two-thirds of the members present except that council actions shall conform to applicable law. 



#4 
COMMUNICATION 

FROM THE CITY 
CLERK 



Medical Marihuana Commission Top 10 Most Frequently Asked Questions 

1. Who are the Medical Marihuana Commissioners? 
On November 9, 2021, Mayor Waterman appointed three of the four commissioners. They are Cristi 
Coles Terrell, Gladys Smith, a city employee and herself (Mayor Deirdre Waterman). Section 4(b) of 
Ordinance 2357(B) City of Pontiac Medical Marihuana Facilities Ordinance states that members of the 
Medical Marihuana Commission shall be appointed by the Mayor to serve at the pleasure of the Mayor 
for a term of three (3) years. 

2. Is it legal for Mayor Waterman to appoint herself to serve as a member of the Medical 
Marihuana Commission? 

No. It is illegal. Section 6.107(c) of the Pontiac City Charter states No elective officer shall hold any 
appointive position, which was created or the compensation for which was fixed or increased during 
his or her incumbency, until one year after such person's leaving office. Since the Medical Marihuana 
Commission was established by Ordinance 2357(B) in 2018 while Mayor Waterman was in office, 
Mayor Waterman is ineligible to currently serve on the Commission. 

3. When can the Medical Marihuana Commission begin to hear applicant appeals? 
Not until the Commission has a public meeting and votes to establish its rules. After the Commission 
establishes its rules, the City Council must approve the rules before the Commission can hear any 
appeals. 

4. What are the Medical Marihuana Commission powers and duties? 
The Medical Marihuana Commission shall review and decide all appeals that are forwarded to it by the 
City Clerk under Ordinance 2357(B). The Medical Marihuana Commission shall only overturn a 
decision or finding of the clerk if it finds such decision or finding to be arbitrary or capricious and not 
supported by material, substantial, and competent facts on the whole record considered by the clerk in 
arriving at such decision or finding. 

5. How will the Commission overturning the decision of a non top 5 ranked Provisioning Center 
applicant in a district affect the ranking of the top 5 ranked Provisioning Center applicants 
in that district? 

If a top 5 ranked applicant is affected by another applicant's appeal to the commission, the Clerk's 
Office will notify the affected top 5 ranked applicant and they will be given the right to first appeal to 
the Hearing Officer and if necessary to the Medical Marihuana Commission. 

6. Can the City of Pontiac issue more than 5 permits for Provisioning Centers per district as 
result of the Commission's decisions? 

No, Ordinance 2363 the Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance permits the City to issue no more than 
5 permits for Provisioning Centers in the Cesar Chavez, Downtown, and Walton Blvd Overlay Districts 
as well as no more than 5 permits in C-1, C-3 and C-4 zoned properties combined outside the Medical 
Marihuana Overlay Districts (Non-Overlay). 

Office of the City Clerk Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A., Interim City Clerk Phone: (248) 758-3005 



2 

7. What happens if a decision of the Commission results in their being a tie for the fifth place 
Provisioning Center ranking in a district? 

Per Ordinance 2357(B) Section 9(h) "the scoring-tied applicants will be entered into a random draw. 
The applicant randomly selected shall be eligible to receive a permit to operate a provisioning center. 

8. What happens if the Medical Marihuana Commission exceeds its authority and overturns a 
decision of the Clerk that was not arbitrary or capricious and was supported by material, 
substantial and competent facts? 

If the Commission exceeds its authority and overturns a decision that was not arbitrary, then an 
applicant would have to appeal the decision of the Medical Marihuana Commission to the Oakland 
County Circuit Court. 

9. Have any of the top 5 ranked Cesar Chavez Provisioning Center Applicants been issued a 
permit? 

No. Before the Clerk can issue the top 5 ranked applicants a conditional approval, the Medical 
Marihuana Commission must hear the 4 applicants that did not rank in the top 5 appeals. The Cesar 
Chavez applicants have been waiting since June to have their appeal heard by the commission. 

10. Have any of the top 5 ranked Downtown Provisioning Center Applicants been issued a 
permit? 

No. Before the Clerk can issue the top 5 ranked applicants a conditional approval, the Medical 
Marihuana Commission must hear the 9 applicants that did not rank in the top 5 appeal. 

Office of the City Clerk Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A., Interim City Clerk Phone: (248) 758-3005 



GARLAND s. DOYLE, M.P.A. 
Interim City C1erk 
FOIA Coordinator 

SHEILA GRANDISON 
Deputy City Clerk 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Honorable City Council 

FR: Garland Doyle, M.P.A. 
Interim City Clerk 

DA: October 14, 2021, 

OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

4 7 450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 
Phone: (248) 758-3200 

Fax: (248) 758-3160 

RE: Medical Marihuana Commission Violation of the Open Meetings Act 

As a result of a FOIA the City received from Mr. Charles Blackwell requesting emails from 
the Mayor about the Medical Marihuana Commission, the Clerk's Office has discovered 
that Mayor Waterman and the Medical Marihuana Commission violated the Open 
Meetings Act. 

In the correspondences attached, the Mayor appointed Mr. Graham Cassano to the Commission 
on May 6, 2021. Mayor Waterman subsequently scheduled an orientation for Mr. Cassano on 
May 11, 2021. The orientation meeting was a violation of the Open Meetings Act. Ordinance 
2537 (B) Section 6 (c) requires "all meetings of the commission shall be held in conformance 
with the open meetings act, Act. No. 267 of the Public Act of 1976, being sections 15.261 to 
15.275 of the Michigan Complied Laws.". 

Additionally, I provided this honorable body with a memorandum on July 22, 2021 stating that 
adoption of the Medical Marihuana Commission rules and regulations prior to the Medical 
Marihuana Commission Approval violates Ordinance 2357 (B). I have attached a copy of the 
memorandum. 



Garland Doyle 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

From: FOIA 

Mary Castro 
Thursday, October 14, 2021 12:12 PM 
Garland Doyle 
FW: Pontiac Violation of FOIA ACt 
Response to FOIA Request - Charles Blackwell.pdf 

Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2021 9:01 AM 
To: 'Charles Blackwell' <cb1ack618@gmail.com> 
Cc: Garland Doyle <gdoyle@pontiac.mi.us>; Sheila Grandison <SGrandison@pontiac.mi.us> 
Subject: FW: Pontiac Violation of FOIA ACt 

Good Morning Charles, 
Here within this email is an attachment pertaining to your most recent FOIA Request. Please review the attached 

file at your earliest convenience. Thank you. 

Sincerely, 
Mary Castro 

Election Specialist 

Main: 248.758.3008 I Office: 248.758.3200 I Fax: 248.758.3160 
e: foia@pontiac.mi.us I www.pontiac.mi.us 
47450 Woodward Avenue I Pontiac, Ml 48342 

Click on a logo below for City of Pontiac City Clerk's updates via 
Social Media: 

From: Charles Blackwell <cb1ack618@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2021 8:09 AM 
To: Anthony Chubb <achubb@gmhlaw.com>; John Clark <jclark@gmhlaw.com>; Garland Doyle 
<GDoyle@pontiac.mi.us>; Darin Carrington <DCarrington@pontiac.mi.us>; Mayor Deirdre Waterman 
<DWaterman@pontiac.mi.us>; Monique Sharpe <MSharpe@pontiac.mi.us>; Sheila Grandison 
<SGrandison@pontiac.mi.us>; Mary Castro <MCastro@pontiac.mi.us>; Jonathan H. Starks <JStarks@pontiac.mi.us> 
Subject: Re: Pontiac Violation of FOIA ACt 

!WARNING: This email originated from outside of City of Pontiac. DO NOT click on any links or open any 
!,attachments_ unless _you _recognize the _sender _and_ are .. expecting_ the message ......................................................................................... . 

The City of Pontiac has not responded to my FOIA request. 
1 



On Mon, Oct 11, 2021 at 8:57 AM Charles Blackwell <cblack6l8@gmail.com> wrote: 

The City of Pontiac failed to respond to my FOIA request on Friday 

September 24, 2021 

Charles Blackwell 
2220 Collingwood 
Detroit, Ml 48206 

Re; IO~Day Extension to respond to your FOIA Request. 

Dear Mr. Blackwell: 

Please be advised that your FOlA request received by the City of Pontiac on September 20, 202 
regarding emails sent and received by Mayor Watenuan wi.th applicants or potential applicants 
about being appointed to the Medical Marijuana Commission will require extra time to search fi 
and respond to your request 

Pursuant to MCL 15.235 (2)(d), we are requesting to extend and respond to your request. 
Accordingly, the City of Pontiac will respond to your request on or before October 8, 2021. 
Please contact our office if you have any questions. 

Sincerely. 

Sheila Grandison. CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 

2 



May61 2021 

DR. DEIRDRE WATERMAN 

MAvoR 
CITY OF PONTIAC 

0Qar Mr. Graham Cassano: 

I am delighted that you have Bccepted mv nomination for your appointment as a Medlcol MariJ1,1ana 
Commissioner, Vour appointment wlll ~ for a three (3) year term, 

From your leadership b11cl<grou~d and previous sstvlc;e$ to the city, yr,u WIii brliis a much needed 
p81$pective to the appll,atlon review process. For your information there are documents attached to 
this email Including: 

• . Medic.I Marijuana RUie$ 
• M1ulk.il Marijuana Ordinance 

To prepare vou for betnasworn In for the role of Medlt;al Marijuana Commissioner, we have arranged an 
Orientation session. Please select either of the foll owing dates and times; 

• Tuesday, M.iy u, 2021 I 2:00 PM 
• Thursday, May 13, 20211 5:00 PM 

Plea5e cont;1ct Tiunul',I V,my at 248•758•3329 or vltt omail ot: 1V~1w@pontlac.ml,Y§, for questions or to 
choo11e the dote that best fits your schedule. Upon receil/lng conflrmatlon qf your av~llabillty, a meellng 
zoom llnk wm be sent via email. 

I am appraciatlve that you 1.1re wlllin11 to &hare your lime and experience for this lmportilnt position for 
the city. Thonk you for your wllllngness to serve the City of Pontiac. 

Sincere)',', 

~vw/-v ~ 
Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

47450 Woodward Avenue• PMtiuc, Michigan 48342 
Direct: (248) 758-318 l • Appointments: (248) 758•3326 • l<ax: (248) 758-3292 

E-rnail: DWaterman@pont1ac.m1.us • www.ponUac.mi.us 
https:/ /www,fo.ccbook.com/pontiaomayo1·/ 

246 



From: Tamura Veasy 
Sent: 
To: 

Tuesday, May 11, 202112:31 PM 
Graham Cassano 

Cc: 
Subject: 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman;Maroofa Peter 
RE: Commission Appointment... 

Attachments: Medical Marihuana Commission Rules and Regulations.pdf 

Mr, Cassano, 

Please see the link to this afternoon's Medical Marijuana meeting below. I have also attached the Medical Marlhuana 
Commission Rules and Regulations for your review. 

Tamura Veasy is Inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

Topic: Medical Marlhuana Meeting 
Time: May 11, 2021 02:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https:/ /us02web,zoom. us/j/85494163080?pwd=ZTRaROFPcWJ 1czl5SzdtZy9FMFVOdz09 

Mee~lng ID: 854 9416 3080 
Passcode: 746414 
One tap mobile 
+16699006833,,85494163080#1111 *746414# US (San Jose} 
+12532158782,,85494163080#,,,, *746414# US (Tacoma) 

Dial by your location 
+1669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
+1346248 7799 US (Houston) 
+1301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
+1312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1929 205 6099 US (New York) 

Meeting ID: 854 9416 3080 
Passcode: 746414 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/ky61gskRb 

From: Graham Cassano [mailto:cassano@oakland.edu] 
Sent: Tuesday, May 11, 2021 9:43 AM 
To: Tamura Veasy <tveasy@pontiac.mi.us> 
Subject: Re: Commission Appointment... 

lw~~¢~-T~li.·~m:@ .• ?fi~ip~t~4 .. f&m.•~~t~•~ihf.¢hr•··~r.f9~tii:;p9Jtqt.•~1i~.ijJ~-~itf•.H#~~f~.,~~).~Y· .. ·1 
!attachments unless you;recoi:rnize the sender arid are exnectin11 the niessa11e>i •· L. \ .<\ <:.: :.>.\•... .,:.: .. <• · .. · • 
•., .... ••••••• .. •• ............................. , .................. ,..,,,.,,f:?. ..................................... ,,.,.,, ........... u,u•o,,,..J;'" .......... ,,.F;? ........... H ............ ,fi? .................................. ""''"'""1 ............... u,.,, .. ,..,.,..,,,,,.,.,.,,,,,, .. 

Hi--

244 



My home address is : _ · ., My phone number is: · ) , I have not yet received the link 
for the zoom meeting. Let me know when you are able to send it. 

Thanks, 
Graham 

On Mon, May 10, 2021 at 1 :03 PM Tamura Veasy <tveasy@pontiac.mi.us> wrote: 

Perfect I I will send the meeting link shortly. Mr. Cassano, can you also provide your contact Information ( mailing 
address and phone number)? 

From: Graham Cassano [mailto:cassano@oakland.edu] 
Sent: Monday, May 10, 20211:01 PM 
To: Tamura Veasy <tveasy@pontiac.ml.us> 
Subject: Re: Commission Appointment... 

Hi Tamura, 

I am available tomorrow (Tuesday) for my orientation. Please send me a link at your earliest convenience. 

Thank you, 

Graham 

On Fri, May 7, 2021 at 7:24 PM Tamura Veasy <tveasy@pontiac.mi.us> wrote: 

Sent on Behalf of Mayor Deirdre Waterman ... 

**Please note the Medical Marihuana Commission Rules will follow in a separate email. ** 

245 



From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Tamura Veasy 
Friday, May 14, 2021 5:34 PM 
Mayor Deirdre Waterman 
Maroofa Peter 
FW: Messages/Requested Items 

f" '.'.I \j;., ff';1!~i.:"~l 'j1'1 \\~/,'/ 1H·1," f.'{~ 
i•\\' i .,,. ,., ,. 11'""· 1• \·iv 111-l'J \'h 
[;;!( ,; ,IJ ·•:•.'/ ,;l,' •If,:,) 

1

-, 

1

""' ,1\./l 

il:iii OCT -~ 1 2021 ,.,;I/@ f :s1-1 PM 

•r,~c,r,• qw. JJ)J J_l ~ Q~...,J~ I ll<')(,~.,.,.-..c,,..,9,n,1, 

Attachments: Senior Zoom 5/5/2021; Draft Letter of Support for Pike Street Properties on Mayor 
Waterman Letterhead - 29 and 46 N Saginaw Street projects; TDC - Pontiac 
Graduation Program - Monday May 17; Fwd: HE Schoarship - Teresa Perez; Meeting 
Announcement .pdf; Rev. Newsletter - City of Pontiac - April 2021.pdf; Retiree Malling 
Attachments (1); NEWS RELEASE - GSA Closing (glbb3,12.21).docx; Medical Marihuana 
Commission Rules and Regulations.pdf; Commission Appointment Joanne Green 

Attachments added .... 

1. Phoenix Center Press Release 
2. Medical Marihuana Rules and Regulations 
3, Copy of email sent to Commissioner Green (inclu9es letter1 Ordinance) 

Thank you 

Tamura Veasy 

From: Tamura Veasy 
Sent: Wednesday, May 12, 2021 9:53 PM 
To: Mayor Deirdre Waterman (DWaterman@pontiac.ml.us) <DWaterman@pontiac.mi.us> 
Cc: Maroofa Peter <MPeter@pontiac.ml.us> 
Subject: Messages/Requested Items 

Mayor, 

Attached are the following requested Items: 

1. Senior Center Zoom-Meeting Invite 

2. Letter of Support for Mr. Loren Guzik of Pike Street Properties, Inc, (Received from Linnette). Waiting for your 
approval before placing on the your letterhead. 

3, Vince Deleonardis Invite to Monday's graduation for Auch's apprenticeship program (TDC-Pontiac Graduation) 

4. Linda Zabik message regarding the Fran Anderson Scholarship 

5. Medlcal Marlhuana Meeting Announcement 

6. Latest Newsletter 

7. Retiree Attachments 

Items forth coming ... 



GARLAND s. DOYLE, M.P.A. 
Interim Ci'ty L1erlc 
FOIA Coordinator 

SHEILA GRANDISON 
Deputy City Cleric 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Honorable City Council 

FR: Garland Doyle, M.P.A. 
Interim City Clerk 

DA: July 22, 2021, 

OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

4 7450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 
Phone: (248) 758-3200 

Fax: (248) 758-3160 

RE: Adoption of Medical Marihuana Commission Rules and Regulations Prior to the Medical 
Marihuana Commission Approval violates Ordinance 2357(B) 

According to Ordinance 2357(B) City of Pontiac Medical Marihuana Facilities Ordinance 
Section 6 

(a) "The medical marihuana commission shall adopt such rules and regulations as it deems 
necessary to govern its proceedings and deliberations." 

(b) "The rules and regulations adopted by the medical marihuana commission shall be 
subject to approval by the council." 

If the City Council approves the rules and regulations prior to the medical marihuana 
commission adopting them would be a violation of Ordinance 2357(B). 

Furthermore, the Ordinance 2357(B) Section 6(c) states the following 

( c) "The commission shall maintain a written record of its proceedings and actions which 
shall be available for public inspection, showing the action of the commission and the 
vote of each member upon each question considered. All meetings of the commission 
shall be held in conformance with the open meetings act, Act. No. 267 of the Public Acts 
of 1976, being sections 15.261 to 15.275 of the Michigan Compiled Laws." 

If the commission is required to conduct its business in public, then how can rules be 
established before the commission has a meeting and commissioners are named. 

Mayor Waterman has not revealed the names of the four ( 4) commissioners. 



Medical Marihuana Commission Rules and Regulations Approval 
Process according to Ordinance 2357(B) 

The Mayor appoints the four ( 4) members of the commission that are residents of the city 
(Ordinance 2357(8) Section 4 (a)(b)) 

Commissioners serve at the pleasure of the Mayor for a term of there (3) years. 
Ordinance 2357(8) Section 4(b) 

Commissioners hold a public meeting. 
Ordinance 2357(8) Section 6(c) 

Commissioners adopt rules and regulations as it deems necessary to govern its proceedings and 
deliberations at a public meeting. 
Ordinance 2357(8) Section 6(c) 

Commissioners elect a chairman, vice-chairman and secretary from its membership at a public 
meeting. 

Ordinance 2357(8) Section 3(a) 

City Council approves rules and regulations adopted by the commission. 
Ordinance 2357(8) Section 6(b) 

Council cannot approve rules prior to the commission developing and approving them. This 
would be a violation of the ordinance. If the process is not followed, decisions of the 
Commission may be invalid. 

2 



City Clerk's comments on rules developed by the City Attorney 

Although Ordinance 2357(8) is clear that the Commission must develop its rules, there are three 
major problems with the City Attorney proposed rules. 

1. The rules make no reference to the secretary position as required by Ordinance 2357(8) 
section 

2. Closed Session 
The City Attorney proposed rules state that closed sessions may be held only for the reasons 
consistent with applicable law, as determined by the City Attorney. 

The Open Meeting Act 15.268 Sec. 8 states the permissible purposes of closed sessions. 

15 .268 Closed sessions; permissible purposes. 
Sec. 8 a public body may meet in a closed session only for the following purposes: ,---------,1 ~ (a) To consider the dismissal, suspension, or disciplining of, or to hear complaints 

Not Applicable _ Ly' or charges brought against, or to consider a periodic personnel evaluation of, a 
public officer, employee, staff member, or individual agent, if the named 
individual requests a closed hearing. An individual requesting a closed hearing 
may rescind the request at any time, in which case the matter at issue must be 
considered after the rescission only in open sessions. 

Not Applicable I ¢ (b) To consider the dismissal, suspension, or disciplining of a student if the public 
~----- body is part of the school district, intermediate school district, or institution of 

higher education that the student is attending, and if the student or the student's 
parent or guardian request a closed hearing. 

Not Applicable I¢ ( c) For strategy and negotiating sessions connected with the negotiation of a 
~----~ collective bargaining agreement if either negotiating party requests a closed 

hearing. 
Not Applicable I¢ (d) To consider the purchase or lease of real property up to the time an option to 

~------ purchase or lease that real property obtained. 
( e) To consult with its attorney regarding trial or settlement strategy in connection 

with specific pending litigation, but only if an open meeting would have a 
detrimental financial effect on the litigating or settlement position of the public 
body. 

Since section 8(e) is the only applicable section to go into a closed session, than that should 
be stated in the rules. 

HAVING CLOSED SESSIONS IS WHAT GOT THE CITY OF WARREN IN TROUHLI{ 
AND LED TO NUMEROUS LA WSlJITS. PONTIAC DOES NOT WANT TO MAKE 
WARREN'S MISTAKE. 

3. In the discussion and voting and the conduct of discussion sections of the rules, there are 
several references made to council when it should state commission. 

3 



#5 

RESOLUTION 
' 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

Honorable Mayor, Council President, and City Council Members 

Abdul H Siddiqui, PE, City Engineer 

DATE: November 16, 2021 

RE: SEMCOG Planning Assistance Program Grant Agreement - Auburn 

Avenue Road Diet Study 

The City of Pontiac Department of Public Works, Engineering Division, applied for and was 
awarded a grant to conduct a feasibility study for a road diet along Auburn Avenue through 
the Southeast Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) Planning Assistance Program. 

The road diet study will investigate safety concerns along Auburn Avenue and determine 
the feasibility of various solutions, including recommendations in the City's Complete 
Streets Master Plan. 

The grant award is in the amount of $36,000, of which the City's match is $6,534. The 
matching contribution will be paid from the Engineering Services account of the Major Street 
Fund (202-463-806.000). 

It is the recommendation of the Department of Public Works, Engineering Division that the 
City sign the attached SEMCOG agreement for Planning Assistance Program Grant for a 
road diet study on Auburn Avenue: 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

NOW, THEREFORE, 
BE IT RESOLVED, 

AHS 

attachments 

The City of Pontiac has received the Planning Assistance Grant 
agreement from the Southeast Michigan Council of Governments 
(SEMCOG), and; 

The Department of Public Works, Engineering Division has 
reviewed the subject agreement, and; 

The City's match of $6,534 will towards the total grant amount of 
$36,000 will be paid through Engineering Services account 202-
463-806. 000, 

The Pontiac City Council authorizes the Mayor to sign the 
SEMCOG agreement for Planning Assistance Program Grant for 
a road diet study on Auburn Avenue. 



Planning Assistance Program Award Notice: City of Pontiac 

Mayor Waterman, 

Congratulations! SEMCOG's Regional Review Committee has approved your Planning Assistance 
Program funding for Transportation Equity and Sustainable Infrastructure for FY2022: 

City of Pontiac - Auburn Avenue Road Diet Study 

Grant Award: $36,000 

Federal Funding: $29,466 

Local Match: $6,534 

SEMCOG staff will be contacting you in the coming weeks with additional information, including grant 
agreement, reimbursement prbcess, reporting, etc. 

If you have any questions regarding the award, please contact Kevin Vettraino at (313) 324-3357 
or vettraino@semcog.org. 

Thank you and congratulations. 

~o~ 
Amy O'Leary 
Executive Director 



PASS THROUGH AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

CITY OF PONTIAC AND 

SOUTHEAST MICHIGAN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

TIDS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this_ day of October 2021 by and between CITY OF 
PONTIAC (here in after, together with its assignees and successors in interest, called the "GRANT 
RECIPIENT") and SOUTHEAST MICHIGAN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS - a Michigan Regional 
Planning Commission; 1001 Woodward - Suite 1400, Detroit, Michigan 48226 (hereinafter called 
SEMCOG). All terms and conditions of the prime contract 2021-0009, between SEMCOG and the 
Michigan Department of Transportation are incorporated in this Agreement. In the event of a conflict 
between the terms and conditions of the subcontract and the prime contract, 2021-0009, the prime contract 
prevails. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, SEMCOG, in cooperation with MDOT, FHWA and the FTA, desires to enter into an 
agreement with the GRANT RECIPIENT; 

NOW, THEREFORE, SEMCOG and GRANT RECIPIENT agree that: 

GRANT RECIPIENT WILL: 

1. GRANT SPECIFICATIONS 

a. The grant award was developed in response to SEMCOG's Planning Assistance Program and 
approved by the Regional Review Committee. 

b. SCOPE OF WORK: GRANT RECIPIENT shall do, perform and complete in a satisfactory manner, 
as determined by SEMCOG, the work described in the narrative and budget described in Section 
27 of this agreement. 

c. MODIFICATIONS: Unless prior written approval of SEMCOG is obtained, the GRANT 
RECIPIENT may not modify or change the proposal, timeline, or budget. 

d. METRICS and DELIVERABLES: GRANT RECIPIENT is responsible for the metrics and 
deliverables proposed in their narrative. 

2. ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS 

a. GRANT RECIPIENT will establish and maintain accurate records, in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, of all expenses incurred for which payment is sought or made under 
this Agreement, said records to be hereinafter referred to as the "RECORDS." Separate accounts 
will be established and maintained for all costs incurred under this Agreement. 

b. GRANT RECIPIENT will maintain the RECORDS for at least three (3) years from the date of final 
payment made by SEMCOG under this Agreement. In the event of a dispute with regard to the 



allowable expenses or any other issue under this Agreement, GRANT RECIPIENT will thereafter 
continue to maintain the RECORDS at least until that dispute has been finally decided and the time 
for all available challenges or appeals of that decision has expired. 

c. SEMCOG and MDOT or its representative may inspect, copy, or audit the RECORDS at any 
reasonable time after giving reasonable notice. 

d. If any part of the work is subcontracted, GRANT RECIPIENT will assure compliance with 
subsections (a), (b), and (c) above for all subcontracted work. 

3. AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS 

a. The GRANT RECIPIENT will require audits to be made to determine, at a minimum, the fiscal 
integrity of financial transactions and reports and the compliance with laws, regulations, and 
administrative requirements. Audits will be scheduled in accordance with the requirements of 2 
CFR Part 200, including Subpart F - Audit Requirements, as amended. 

b. Audits are to be performed by an independent accounting firm and must conform to the regulations 
and procedures established by the federal Office of Management and Budget as set forth in 49 CFR 
Part 18, as amended, 2 CFR Part 200, as amended, and such other regulations and procedures 
established by MDOT, the FHWA, and the FTA. All such audits are subject to review and approval 
by MDOT, the FHWA, the FTA, and the Office of Inspector General. 

c. Audit and Inspection. The GRANT RECIPIENT will comply with the Single Audit Act of 1984, 
as amended, including, but not limited to, the Single Audit Amendments of 1996 (31 USC 7501-
7507), and the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, including Subpart F - Audit Requirements, as 
amended, and the provisions of 1951 PA 51, MCL 247-660h, as applicable, that are in effect at the 
time of Agreement award with regard to audits. 

i. Grant recipients expending a total of Seven Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($750,000.00) 
or more in federal funds from one or more funding sources in their fiscal year must have a 
single audit conducted for that year. The Seven Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars 
($750,000.00) threshold represents all federal funding sources. This is in accordance with 
the Single Audit Act of 1984, as amended, and 2 CFR Part 200 Subpart F, as amended. 

ii. Grant recipients expending less than Seven Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($750,000.00) 
in federal funds must submit a letter to MDOT advising that a single audit was not required. 
The letter will indicate the applicable fiscal year, the amount of federal funds spent, the 
name(s) of the MDOT federal programs, and the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance 
(CFDA) grant number(s). · 

111. Grant recipients must complete their single audits electronically through the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse website (http://harvester.census.gov.facL). Users are instructed to create an 
online report ID and then to complete Form SF-SAC prior to submitting their reporting 
packages. The audit will be completed and submitted electronically within thirty (30) days 
after receipt of the agency's report(s) or within nine (9) months after the end of the agency's 
fiscal year, whichever is earlier. 

iv. Grant recipients will also comply with applicable state laws and regulations relative to 
audit requirements. 

2 



v. Grant recipients will not charge audit costs to MDOT's federal programs that are not in 
accordance with the aforementioned 2 CFR Part 200 requirements. 

vi. All grant recipients are subject to the federally-required monitoring activities, which may 
include limited scope reviews and other on-site monitoring. 

d. The provisions set forth in subsections ( a), (b ), and ( c) above will be included in all contracts and 
subcontracts relating to this Agreement. 

4. BILLINGS AND PROGRESS REPORTS 

Submit monthly billing and progress reports to SEMCOG on work accomplished based on the approved 
grant award narrative and budget. Progress reports will be in a form and manner acceptable to 
SEMCOG. A billing and progress report will be submitted not later than fifteen (15) days after the end 
of each billing period. 

GRANT RECIPIENT agrees that the costs reported to SEMCOG for this Agreement will represent 
only those items that are properly chargeable in accordance with this Agreement. GRANT RECIPIENT 
also certifies that it has read the Agreement terms and has made itself aware of the applicable laws, 
regulations, and terms of this Agreement that apply to the reporting of costs incurred under the terms 
of this Agreement. 

5. FINAL REPORT 

Submit a final performance report covering the grant award accomplishments not later than ninety (90) 
days following the end of the grant award time period. 

6. INDEMNIFY AND SA VE HARMLESS 

In addition to the protection afforded by any policy of insurance, GRANT RECIPIENT agrees to 
indemnify and save harmless the State of Michigan, the Michigan State Transportation Commission, 
MDOT, FHWA, FTA, SEMCOG, and all officers, agents, and employees thereof: 

a. From any and all claims by persons, firms or corporations for labor, services, materials, or supplies 
provided to GRANT RECIPIENT in connection with GRANT RECIPIENT performance under 
this Agreement; and 

b. From any and all claims for injuries to or death of any and all persons, for loss of or damage to 
property, for environmental damage or degradation, response and clean-up costs, and for attorney 
fees and related costs arising out of, under, or by reasons of GRANT RECIPIENT performance 
under this Agreement, except claims resulting from the sole negligence or willful acts or omissions 
of said indemnitee, its agents, or its employees; and 

c. Against all claims, suites, costs, damages, and expenses that the State of Michigan, the Michigan 
State Transp01iation Commission, MDOT, SEMCOG, FHWA, and/or the FTA may sustain by 
reason of any scandalous, libelous or unlawful matter obtained or alleged to be obtained in the 
work, or any infringement or violation by the work of any copyright or property right. 

3 



SEMCOG will not be subject to any obligations or liabilities by contractors of GRANT 
RECIPIENT or its GRANT RECIPIENTS or any other person not a party to the Agreement without 
its specific consent and notwithstanding its concurrence in or approval of the award of any contract 
or subcontract or the solicitation thereof. 

It is expressly understood and agreed that GRANT RECIPIENT will take no action or conduct that 
arises either directly or indirectly out of its obligations, responsibilities, and duties under this 
Agreement that results in claims being asserted against or judgments being imposed against the 
State of Michigan, SEMCOG, MDOT, the Michigan State Transportation Commission, FHW A, 
and/or the PTA, as applicable. 

In the event that the same occurs, it will be considered as a breach of this Agreement, thereby giving 
the State of Michigan, MDOT, SEMCOG, the Michigan State Transportation Commission, FHWA, 
and/or the PTA a right to seek and obtain any necessary relief or remedy, including, but not limited 
to, a judgment for money damages. 

GRANT RECIPIENT will provide, at grant award cost, public liability, property damage, and 
workers' compensation insurance, insuring as they may appear all claims that may arise out of the 
GRANT RECIPIENT operations under this Agreement. 

7. APPRAISAL OF GRANT AWARD 

Through the SEMCOG staff representative, reserve the right to advise and recommend changes to each 
task and activity appearing in the narrative and the basic study methods, procedures, and analytical 
techniques to be applied in carrying out those portions of each portion of the narrative that, in total or 
in part, are financed with funds from FHW A, or the FT A. 

8. STAFF REPRESENTATIVE 

Provide a SEMCOG staff representative to assist or otherwise advise GRANT RECIPIENT in the 
performance of its transportation planning responsibilities as provided herein. 

9. DOCUMENT APPROVAL 

Develop and maintain appropriate procedures to reflect the various responsibilities of document review 
and approval at the state and federal levels. 

10. REIMBURSABLE COSTS 

Reimburse GRANT RECIPIENT for costs properly chargeable in accordance with this Agreement and 
eligible for federal reimbursement under the provisions of 0MB Circular A-87. Reimbursements will 
be based on actual costs. 

11. REIMBURSEMENT TO GRANT RECIPIENT FOR COSTS INCURRED 

SEMCOG hereby agrees that payment to the GRANT RECIPIENT shall be made within (10) days of 
the receipt of payment from the State of Michigan. 

4 



12. AUDIT 

In the event that an audit performed by or on behalf of SEMCOG indicates an adjustment to the costs 
reported under this Agreement or questions the allowability of an item of expense, SEMCOG will 
promptly submit to GRANT RECIPIENT a Notice of Audit Results and a copy of the audit report, 
which may supplement or modify any tentative :findings verbally communicated to GRANT 
RECIPIENT at the completion of an audit. 

Within sixty (60) days after the date of the Notice of Audit Results, GRANT RECIPIENT will (a) 
respond in writing to SEMCOG indicating whether or not it concurs with the audit report, (b) clearly 
explain the nature and basis for any disagreement as to a disallowed item of expense, and ( c) submit 
to MDOT and SEMCOG a written explanation as to any questioned or no opinion expressed item of 
expense hereinafter referred to as the "RESPONSE." The RESPONSE will be clearly stated and will 
provide any supporting documentation necessary to resolve any disagreement or questioned or no 
opinion expressed item of expense. Where the documentation is voluminous, GRANT RECIPIENT 
may supply appropriate excerpts and make alternate arrangements to conveniently and reasonably 
make that documentation available for review by SEMCOG and MDOT. The RESPONSE will refer 
to and apply the language of the Agreement. GRANT RECIPIENT agrees that failure to submit a 
RESPONSE within the sixty ( 60) day period constitutes agreement with any disallowance of an item 
of expense and authorizes SEMCOG and MDOT to finally disallow any items of questioned or no 
opinion expressed cost. 

MDOT and SEMCOG will make its decision with regard to any Notice of Audit Results and 
RESPONSE within one hundred twenty (120) days after the date of the Notice of Audit Results. If 
SEMCOG determines that an overpayment has been made to GRANT RECIPIENT, GRANT 
RECIPIENT will repay that amount to SEMCOG or reach agreement with SEMCOG on a repayment 
schedule within thirty (30) days after the date of an invoice. If GRANT RECIPIENT fails to repay the 
overpayment or reach agreement with SEMCOG on a repayment schedule within the thirty (30) day 
period, GRANT RECIPIENT agrees that SEMCOG will deduct all or a portion of the overpayment 
from any funds then or thereafter payable by SEMCOG, to GRANT RECIPIENT under this Agreement 
or any other agreement or payable to GRANT RECIPIENT under the terms of 1951 PA, as applicable. 
Interest will be assessed on any partial payments or repayments or repayment schedules based on the 
unpaid balance at the end of each month until the balance is paid in full. The assessment of interest will 
begin thirty (30) days from the date of the invoice. The rate of interest will be based on the Michigan 
Department of Treasury common cash funds interest earnings. The rate of interest will be reviewed 
annually by SEMCOG and adjusted as necessary based on the Michigan Department of Treasury 
common cash funds interest earnings. GRANT RECIPIENT expressly consents to this withholding or 
offsetting of funds under those circumstances, reserving the right to file a lawsuit in the Court of Claims 
to contest SEMCOG's decision only as to any item of expense the disallowance of which was disputed 
by GRANT RECIPIENT in a timely filed RESPONSE. 

13. PROMPT PAYMENT 

GRANT RECIPIENT agrees to pay each subcontractor for the satisfactory completion of work 
associated with the subcontract no later than ten (10) calendar days from the receipt of each payment 
GRANT RECIPIENT receives from SEMCOG. This requirement is also applicable to all sub-tier 
GRANT RECIPIENTs and will be made a part of all subcontract agreements. 

This prompt payment provision is a requirement of 49 CFR, Part 26, as amended, and does not confer 
third-party beneficiary right or other direct right to a GRANT RECIPIENT against the SEMCOG or 

5 



MDOT. This provision applies to both Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) and non-DBE 
GRANT RECIPIENTS. 

GRANT RECIPIENT further agrees that it will comply with 49 CFR, Part 26, as amended, and will 
report any and all DBE GRANT RECIPIENT payments to MDOT semi-annually in the format set forth 
in Appendix D, dated July 2010, attached hereto and made a part hereof, or any other format acceptable 
to MDOT. 

14. FHWA AND FTA PARTICIPATION 

Certain funding under this Agreement is contingent on participation from year to year by FHW A or 
FTA. No obligations for such costs not reimbursable by FHWA or FTA will be knowingly entered into 
and billed to SEMCOG for reimbursement. Incuned costs that are not reimbursable by FHW A or FTA 
will be the sole responsibility of the GRANT RECIPIENT. 

15. FEDERAL LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

All applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances are incorporated into and made 
a part of this Agreement, and the parties will comply therewith. 

16. NONDISCRIMINATION, DBE, AND ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS 

GRANT RECIPIENT will comply with and will require any contractor or GRANT RECIPIENT to 
comply with the following: 

a. In connection with the performance of the Agreement, GRANT RECIPIENT (hereinafter in 
Appendix A refened to as the "contractor") agrees to comply with the State of Michigan provisions 
for "Prohibition of Discrimination in State Contracts," as set forth in Appendix A, dated March 
2010, attached hereto and made a part hereof. This provision will be included in all subcontracts 
relating to this Agreement. 

b. During the performance of this Agreement, GRANT RECIPIENT, for itself, its assignees, and its 
successors in interest (hereinafter in Appendix B refened to as the "contractor"), agrees to comply 
with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, being P.L. 88-352, 78 Stat. 241, as amended, being Title 42 USC 
Sections 1971, 1975a-1975d, and 2000a-2000h-6, and the Regulations of the United States 
Department of Transportation ( 49 CFR, Part 21) issued pursuant to said Act, including Appendix 
B, dated March 2010, attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

c. GRANT RECIPIENT will carry out the applicable requirements of the MDOT's Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprise (DBE) program and 49 CFR Part 26, including, but not limited to those 
requirements set forth in Appendix C, dated October 1, 2005, attached hereto and made a part 
hereof, with respect to the UWP, said UWP allowing GRANT RECIPIENT to operate under the 
provisions of its own MDOT-approved DBE program. 

d. GRANT RECIPIENT will make achieving environmental justice a part of its mission by identifying 
and addressing, as appropriate, disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental 
effects of its programs, policies, and activities on minority populations and low income populations. 

I 

6 



e. GRANT RECIPIENT further certifies that it agrees to use the E-Verify system to verify that all 
persons hired during the contract term by the Contractor are legally present and authorized to work 
in the United States. 

17. REPORT LANGUAGE 

All reports published by GRANT RECIPIENT will contain the following statement in the credit line if 
MDOT or FHW A or FTA does not subscribe to the findings: 

"The contents of this _____________ (report) reflect the view 
of _____________ (the author), who is responsible for the 
facts and accuracy of the data presented herein. The contents do not necessarily 
reflect the official view or policies of __________ (the name of 
nonconcurring party.) This _____________ (reports) does not 
constitute a standard, specification, or regulation. " 

18. OWNERSHIP OF DATA 

Ownership of data collected hereunder will be vested in GRANT RECIPIENT with full rights of free 
access and use thereto guaranteed to SEMCOG, MDOT, FHWA and FTA, and/or all other participating 
agencies. 

19. PATENT RIGHTS AND COPYRIGHTS 

Patent rights and copyrights will be the property of GRANT RECIPIENT. GRANT RECIPIENT will 
obtain the written approval of the MDOT prior to submitting applications in the name of GRANT 
RECIPIENT for copyrights or patents on any papers, reports, forms, or other materials that are a part 
of the GRANT RECIPIENT work as above noted under this Agreement, said approval being necessary 
before, during, and after the performance of said work by GRANT RECIPIENT with respect to this 
Agreement. SEMCOG, MDOT, and FHWA and/or FTA reserve a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and 
irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use and authorize others to use the work for 
governmental purposes. 

20. UNFAIR LABOR PRACTICES 

In accordance with 1980 PA 278, MCL 423.321 et seq.; MSA 17.458(22) et seq., GRANT RECIPIENT, 
in performance of this Agreement, will not enter into a contract with a GRANT RECIPIENT, 
manufacturer, or supplier listed in the register maintained by the United States Department of Labor of 
employers who have been found in contempt of court by a federal court of appeals on not less than 
three (3) separate occasions involving different violations during the preceding seven (7) years for 
failure to correct an unfair labor practice, as prohibited by Section 8 of Chapter 372 of the National 
Labor Relations Act, 29 USC 158. MDOT may void this Agreement if the name of GRANT 
RECIPIENT or the name of a GRANT RECIPIENT, manufacturer, or supplier utilized by GRANT 
RECIPIENT in the performance of this Agreement subsequently appears in the register during the 
performance of this Agreement. 

21. INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES 

GRANT RECIPIENT agrees that not otherwise qualified individuals with disabilities in the United 
States, as defined in Section 1630.2 of the Americans with Disabilities Act, Title 42, USC 12101, will, 

7 



solely by reason of their disabilities, be excluded from the participation in, be denied the benefits of, or 
be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving benefits under this Agreement. 

22. CERTIFICATION 

GRANT RECIPIENT signature on this Agreement constitutes GRANT RECIPIENT certification of 
"status" under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States with respect to 49 CFR Part 29 
pursuant to Executive Order 12549. 

The certification included as a part of this Agreement as Attachment A is Appendix A of 49 CFR Part 
29 and applies to GRANT RECIPIENT (referred to in Appendix A as "the prospective primary 
participant"). 

GRANT RECIPIENT is responsible for obtaining the same certification from all GRANT 
RECIPIENTS under this Agreement by inserting the following paragraph in all subcontracts: 

"The GRANT RECIPIENT's signature on this Agreement constitutes the GRANT 
RECIPIENT's certification of 'status' under penalty of perjury under the laws of the 
United States with respect to 49 CFR Part 29 pursuant to Executive Order 12549. 
The certification included as a part of this Agreement as Attachment B is Appendix B 
of 49 CFR Part 29. " 

This certification is required of all GRANT RECIPIENTS, testing laboratories, and other lower tier 
participants with which GRANT RECIPIENT enters into a written arrangement for the procurement of 
goods or services provided for in this Agreement. 

23. APPROVALS, REVIEWS, AND INSPECTIONS 

Any approvals, acceptances, reviews, and inspections of any nature by SEMCOG and MDOT will not 
be construed as a warranty or assumption ofliability on the part of SEM COG and MDOT. It is expressly 
understood and agreed that any such approvals, acceptances, reviews, and inspections are for the sole 
and exclusive purposes of SEMCOG and MDOT, which is acting in a governmental capacity under this 
Agreement, and that such approvals, acceptances, reviews, and inspections are a governmental function 
incidental to the performance of the UWP under this Agreement. 

Any such approvals, acceptances, reviews, and inspections by SEMCOG and MDOT will not relieve 
GRANT RECIPIENT of its obligations hereunder, nor are such approvals, acceptances, reviews and 
inspections by SEMCOG and MDOT to be construed as a warranty as to the propriety of GRANT 
RECIPIENT performance but are undertaken for the sole use and information of SEMCOG and MDOT. 

24. TERMINATION 

SEMCOG may terminate this Agreement for convenience or cause, as set forth below, before the 
services are completed. Written notice of termination will be sent to GRANT RECIPIENT. GRANT 
RECIPIENT will be reimbursed in accordance with the following: 

a. Termination for Convenience: 

If SEMCOG terminates this Agreement for convenience, SEMCOG will give GRANT 
RECIPIENT written notice of such termination thirty (30) days prior to the date of such 

8 



termination, and GRANT RECIPIENT will be reimbursed for all costs incurred for work 
accomplished on the UWP up to receipt of the notice of termination. Such reimbursement will be 
as set forth in Section 16, but not to exceed the amount set f011h in the grant award. SEMCOG will 
receive the work product produced by GRANT RECIPIENT under this Agreement up to the time 
of termination, prior to GRANT RECIPIENT being reimbursed. In no case will the compensation 
paid to GRANT RECIPIENT for partial completion of services exceed the amount GRANT 
RECIPIENT would have received had the services been completed. 

b. Termination for Cause: 

In the event GRANT RECIPIENT fails to complete any of the services in a manner satisfactory to 
SEMCOG, SEMCOG may terminate this Agreement. Written notice of termination will be sent to 
GRANT RECIPIENT. GRANT RECIPIENT will be reimbursed as follows: 

GRANT RECIPIENT will be reimbursed for all costs incurred for work accomplished based upon 
the grant award narrative and budget up to receipt of the notice of termination. SEMCOG may pay 
a proportional share for a partially completed work product. The value of such partially completed 
work product will be determined by SEMCOG based on actual cost incurred up to the estimated 
value of the work product received by SEMCOG, as determined by SEMCOG. Such actual costs 
will be as set forth in Section 16, but not to exceed the amount set forth in the grant award. 
SEMCOG will receive the work product produced by GRANT RECIPIENT under this Agreement 
up to the time of termination, prior to GRANT RECIPIENT being reimbursed. In no case will the 
compensation paid to GRANT RECIPIENT for partial completion of the services exceed the 
amount GRANT RECIPIENT would have received had the services been completed. 

In the event that termination by SEMCOG is necessitated by any wrongful breach, failure, default, 
or omission by GRANT RECIPIENT, SEMCOG will be entitled to pursue whatever remedy is 
available to it, including, but not limited to, withholding funds or off-setting against funds owed to 
GRANT RECIPIENT under this Agreement, as well as any other existing or future contracts or 
agreements between GRANT RECIPIENT and SEMCOG, for any and all damages and costs 
incurred or sustained by SEMCOG as a result of its termination of this Agreement due to the 
wrongful breach, failure, default, or omission by the GRANT RECIPIENT. In the event of 
termination of this Agreement, SEMCOG may procure the professional services from other sources 
and hold GRANT RECIPIENT responsible for any damages or excess costs occasioned thereby. 

25. ASSIGNMENT OF ANTITRUST RIGHTS 

With regard to claims based on goods or services that were used to meet GRANT RECIPIENT 
obligation to SEMCOG under this Agreement, GRANT RECIPIENT hereby irrevocably assigns its 
right to pursue any claims for relief or causes of action for damages sustained by the State of Michigan 
or MDOT and SEMCOG due to any violation of 15 USC, Sections 1 - 15, and/or 1984 PA 274, MCL 
445.771 - .788, excluding Section 4a, to the State of Michigan. 

GRANT RECIPIENT shall require any GRANT RECIPIENTS to hTevocably assign their rights to 
pursue any claims for relief or causes of action for damages sustained by the State of Michigan MDOT 
and SEMCOG with regard to claims based on goods or services that were used to meet the GRANT 
RECIPIENT obligation to SEMCOG under this Agreement due to any violation of 15 USC, Sections 1 
- 15, and/or 1984 PA 274, MCL 445.771 - .788, excluding Section 4a, to the State of Michigan as a 
third-party beneficiary. 

9 



GRANT RECIPIENT shall notify MDOT and SEMCOG if it becomes aware that an antitrust violation 
with regard to claims based on goods or services that were used to meet the GRANT RECIPIENT 
obligation to MDOT and SEMCOG under this Agreement may have occurred or is threatened to occur. 
GRANT RECIPIENT shall also notify MDOT and SEMCOG if it becomes aware of any person's intent 
to commence, or of commencement of, an antitrust action with regard to claims based on goods or 
services that were used to meet GRANT RECIPIENT obligation to SEMCOG under this Agreement. 

26. TERM OF AGREEMENT 

Upon award, this Agreement will be in effect from 10/01/21 through 9/30/22 for an amount not to 
exceed $36,000 as budgeted in the 2021-2022 Unified Work Program. Reimbursements will be based 
on actual costs. 

Pass-Through Grant Recipient Information: 

Total Funds Federal Funds 
FHW A PL 112 Funds $36,000 $29,466 
CFDA #20.205 

Federal Award: October 1, 2021 
Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): 
SEMCOG Grant: Consolidated Planning Grant (CPG22) 
SEMCOG Project: Local & Public Capacity Billing (22314) 

Local Match 
$6,534 

This agreement hereby certifies and guarantees that the local match of $6,534 for the Transportation 
Equity and Sustainable Infrastructure Grant award of $36,000 from the SEMCOG Planning Assistance 
Program, which is funded in the 2021-2022 Unified Work Program for Southeast Michigan, has been 
properly appropriated and provided by CITY OF PONTIAC. 

The funds herein provided shall be utilized for transportation planning activities carried out by the 
hereinafter-named authority in accordance with the 2021-2022 Unified Work Program. These are not 
R&D funds. 

27. NARRATIVE AND BUDGET 

Grant Recipient: City of Pontiac 

Project Name: Auburn Avenue Road Diet Study 

Narrative 

Under this project, the City of Pontiac will conduct a road diet study to determine the feasibility of 
implementing a road diet on Auburn A venue in the City of Pontiac. The primary goal of this study is 
to understand the feasibility of returning underutilized vehicular right-of-way to non-motorized 
modes of transportation and improve safety for all road users. Through a consultant, the road diet 
study will include a kick-off meeting and findings meeting will be used to review crash data and 
develop recommendations. Field visits will be performed as part of the study based on project need. 

10 



Budget 

Road Diet Study - Auburn Ave and Woodward Ave $6,000 

Road Diet Study - Auburn Ave and Hill St $6,000 

Road Diet Study - Auburn Ave and Paddock St $6,000 

Road Diet Study - Auburn Ave and Sanford St $6,000 

Road Diet Study -Auburn Ave and Dr. Martin Luther King $6,000 
Jr. Blvd. 
Road Diet Study-Auburn Ave and Opdyke Rd $6,000 

TOTAL $36,000 

28. AWARD 

The Agreement will become binding on the parties and of full force and effect upon signing by the duly 
authorized representatives of GRANT RECIPIENT and SEMCOG and upon adoption of a resolution 
approving said Agreement and authorizing the signature( s) thereto of the respective representative( s) 
of GRANT RECIPIENT, a certified copy of which resolution will be sent to SEMCOG with this 
Agreement, as applicable. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be awarded. 

SOUTHEAST MICHIGAN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

By: 
Executive Director 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

By: 
Title: 

Entity Identifier (DUNS#) 

11 



APPENDIX A 
PROHIBITION OF DISCRIMINATION IN STATE CONTRACTS 

The Michigan Department of Transportation has a responsibility to ensure that contractors comply with 
federal contracting requirements, including equal opportunity requirements, and to assist in and cooperate 
with Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) programs to ensure that equal opportunity is afforded to 
all. In connection with the performance of work under this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, 
and its successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the "contractor"), agrees as follows: 

1. In accordance with Public Act 453 of 1976 (Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act), the contractor shall not 
discriminate against an employee or applicant for employment with respect to hire, tenure, treatment, 
terms, conditions, or privileges of employment or a matter directly or indirectly related to employment 
because of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, weight, or marital status. A breach of 
this covenant will be regarded as a material breach of this contract. 

In accordance with Public act 220 of 1976 (Persons with Disabilities Civil Rights Act), as amended by 
Public Act 478 of 1980, the contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment with respect to tenure, terms, conditions, or privileges of employment or a matter directly 
or indirectly related to employment because of a disability that is unrelated to the individual's ability 
to perform the duties of a particular job or position. A breach of the above covenants will be regarded 
as a material breach of this contract. 

Furthermore, on any federally-assisted contract, the contractor and GRANT RECIPIENT shall comply 
with the equal employment opportunity provisions of 23 CFR Subpart D-Construction Contract Equal 
Employment Opportunity Compliance Procedures, 49 CFR Part 21--Non-Discrimination in Federally
Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation --Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964, Executive Order 11246, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title VII), Public Act 
220 of 1976, and Public Act 453 of 1976. 

2. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants for employment and employees are 
treated without regard to their race, color, religion, national origin, sex, height, weight, marital status, 
or any disability that is unrelated to the individual's ability to perform the duties of a patiicular job or 
position. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employments; treatment; 
upgrading; demotion or transfer; recruitment; advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other 
forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 

3. The contractor shall, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the 
contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard 
to race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, weight, marital status, or disability that is 
unrelated to the individual's ability to perf01m the duties of a particular job or position. 

4. The contractor or its collective bargaining representative shall send to each labor union or representative 
of workers with which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or 
understanding a notice advising such labor union or workers' representative of the contractor's 
commitments under this Appendix. 

5. The contractor shall comply with all relevant published rules, regulations, directives, and orders of the 
Michigan Civil Rights Commission that may be in effect prior to the taking of bids for any individual 
state project. 

12 



6. The contractor shall furnish and file compliance reports within such time and upon such forms as 
provided by the Michigan Civil Rights Commission; said forms may also elicit information as to the 
practices, policies, program, and employment statistics of each GRANT RECIPIENT, as well as the 
contractor itself, and said contractor shall permit access to the contractor's books, records, and accounts 
by the Michigan Civil Rights Commission and/ or its agent for the purposes of investigation to ascertain 
compliance under this contract and relevant rules, regulations, and orders of the Michigan Civil Rights 
Commission. 

7. In the event that the Michigan Civil Rights Commission finds, after a hearing held pursuant to its rules, 
that a contractor has not complied with the contractual obligations under this contract, the Michigan 
Civil Rights Commission may, as a part of its order based upon such findings, ce1tify said findings to 
the State Administrative Board of the State of Michigan, which State Administrative Board may order 
the cancellation of the contract found to have been violated and/or declare the contractor ineligible for 
future contracts with the state and its political and civil subdivisions, departments, and officers, 
including the governing boards of institutions of higher education, until the contractor complies with 
said order of the Michigan Civil Rights Commission. Notice of said declaration of future ineligibility 
may be given to any or all of the persons with whom the contractor is declared ineligible to contract as 
a contracting party in future contracts. In any case before the Michigan Civil Rights Commission in 
which cancellation of an existing contract is a possibility, the contracting agency shall be notified of 
such possible remedy and shall be given the option by the Michigan Civil Rights Commission to 
participate in such proceedings. 

8. The contractor agrees to cooperate with the Department's Project Manager or designee and the 
Depaitment's Equal Employment Opportunity Officer to resolve any complaints brought against the 
contractor or any GRANT RECIPIENT on any federally assisted project or program by an employee, 
applicant for employment, or employee of the Department, regardless of whether or not the employee 
is employed by the contractor, GRANT RECIPIENT, or the Department, or is an applicant for 
employment, alleging prohibited discrimination. Prohibited discrimination includes, but is not limited 
to, sexual harassment, racial discrimination, and other protected categories set forth under Title VII and 
Public Act 453 of 1976. 

9. The contractor shall comply with 23 CFR Subpart D and Executive Order 11246, and as such, the 
contractor or GRANT RECIPIENT shall conduct a prompt, thorough, and fair investigation of all 
complaints brought forward under Title VII and Public Act 453 of 1976, in cooperation with the 
Department's Equal Employment Opportunity Officer. 

10. The contractor shall provide a written report detailing the findings of the investigation to the 
Department's Project Manager and Equal Employment Opportunity Officer when the complaint made 
against the contractor is by a Department employee or by an applicant for employment. The 
Department's Equal Employment Opportunity Officer shall review the report for compliance with 23 
CFR Subpart D. It is the Department's intent to correct any current acts and prevent any future acts of 
discrimination arising out of a Title VII or Public Act 453 of 1976 complaint. Title VI complaints will 
be addressed through the Contractor Compliance Section in the Department's Office of Business 
Development. 

11. The contractor shall include or incorporate by reference the provisions of all applicable covenants set 
forth in Sections 1 through 10 above in all subcontracts and purchase orders unless exempted by rules, 
regulations, or orders of the Michigan Civil Rights Commission; all subcontracts and purchase orders 
will also state that said provisions will be binding upon each GRANT RECIPIENT or supplier. 

13 



Application: 

1. On any federally assisted contract, the contractor and GRANT RECIPIENT agree to comply with the 
equal employment opportunity provisions of 23 CPR Subpart D, 49 CPR Part 21, Executive Order 
11246, Title VII, Public Act 220 of 1976, and Public Act 453 of 1976. 

2. FHWA responsibilities under 23 CPR Part 230.405: The FHWA has the responsibility to ensure that 
contractors meet contractual equal opportunity requirements under Title 23 USC and to provide 
guidance and direction to states in the development and implementation of a program to ensure 
compliance with equal employment opportunity requirements. 

3. FHWA Order 4710.8 clarifies that the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs of the 
Department of Labor has exclusive authority to determine compliance with Executive Order 11246 and 
its implementing regulations. 

4. Failure of the Depaiiment to discharge the responsibilities set forth in 23 CPR Part 230.405(b)(l) may 
result in the U.S. Department of Transportation taking any or all of the following actions (see 23 CPR 
Part 630, Subpart C, Appendix A): 

i) canceling, tenninating, or suspending the federal aid project agreement in whole or in part; 

ii) refraining from extending any further assistance to the Department for the program under 
which the failure or refusal occurred until satisfactory assurance of compliance is received from 
the Department; and 

iii) referring the case to the appropriate federal agency for legal proceedings. 

14 



APPENDIXB 
TITLE VI ASSURANCE 

During the performance of this contact, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and its successors in 
interest (hereinafter referred to as the "contractor"), agrees as follows. 

1. Compliance with Regulations: For all federally assisted programs, the contractor shall comply with 
the nondiscrimination regulations set forth in 49CFR Part 21, as may be amended from time to time 
(hereinafter referred to as the Regulations). Such Regulations are incorporated herein by reference and 
made a part of this contract. 

Furthermore, on any federally assisted contract, the contractor and GRANT RECIPIENT shall comply 
with the equal employment opportunity provisions of 23 CFR Subpart D--Construction Contract Equal 
Employment Opportunity Compliance Procedures, 49 CFR Part 21--Non-Discrimination in Federally
Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation--Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964, Executive Order 11246, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Public Act 220 of 1976 
(Persons with Disabilities Civil Rights Act), and Public Act 453 of 1976 (Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights 
Act). 

2. Nondiscrimination: The contractor, with regard to the work performed under the contract, shall not 
discriminate on the grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin in the selection, retention, and 
treatment of GRANT RECIPIENTS, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The 
contractor shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 
21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices, when the contractor covers a program set 
fmih in Appendix B of the Regulations. 

3. Solicitation for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: All 
solicitations made by the contractor, either by competitive bidding or by negotiation for subcontract 
work, including procurement of materials or leases of equipment, must include a notification to each 
potential GRANT RECIPIENT or supplier of the contractor's obligations under the contract and the 
Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin. 

4. Information and Reports: The contractor shall provide all information and reports required by the 
Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, 
other sources of information, and facilities as may be determined to be pertinent by the Department of 
Federal Highway Administration in order to ascertain compliance with such Regulations or directives. 
If required information concerning the contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or 
refuses to furnish the required information, the contractor shall certify to the Department or the Federal 
Highway Administration, as appropriate, and shall set forth the efforts that it made to obtain the 
information. 

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the 
nondiscrimination provisions of this contract, the Department shall impose such contract sanctions as 
it or the Federal Highway Administration may dete1mine to be appropriate, including, but not limited 
to, the following: 

a. Withholding payments to the contractor until the contractor complies; and/or 

b. Canceling, terminating, or suspending the contract, in whole or in part. 

15 



6. Incorporation of Provisions: The contractor shall include the provisions of Sections (1) through (6) 
in every subcontract, including procurement of material and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the 
Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto. The contractor shall take such action with respect to 
any subcontract or procurement as the Department or the Federal Highway Administration may direct 
as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for non-compliance, provided, however, 
that in the event a contractor becomes involved in or is threatened with litigation from a GRANT 
RECIPIENT or supplier as a result of such direction, the contractor may request the Department to 
enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the state. In addition, the contractor may request the 
United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

Revised March 2010 

16 



(Revised October 1, 2005) 

APPENDIXC 
Assurances that Recipients and Contractors Must Make 
(Excerpts from US DOT Regulation 49 CFR § 26.13) 

A. Each financial assistance agreement signed with a DOT operating administration ( or a primary 
recipient) must include the following assurance: 

The recipient shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the award and 
performance of any US DOT-assisted contract or in the administration of its DBE program or the 
requirements of 49 CFR Part 26. The recipient shall take all necessary and reasonable steps under 49 
CFR Part 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of US DOT-assisted 
contracts. The recipient's DBE program, as required by 49 CFR Part 26 and as approved by US DOT, 
is incorporated by reference in this agreement. Implementation of this program is a legal obligation and 
failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this agreement. Upon notification to the 
recipient of its failure to carry out its approved program, the department may impose sanctions as 
provided for under Part 26 and may, in appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 
U.S.C. 1001 and/or the Program Fraud Civil Reme.dies Act of 1986 (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq.). 

B. Each contract MDOT signs with a contractor (and each subcontract the prime contractor signs with a 
GRANT RECIPIENT) must include the following assurance: 

The contractor, subrecipient or GRANT RECIPIENT shall not discriminate on the basis ofrace, color, 
national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable 
requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of US DOT-assisted contracts. Failure 
by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result 
in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the recipient deems appropriate. 

17 



Michigan Department 
Of Transportation 
0165 (07/10) 

Inf< . d. da 
PRIME CONSULTANT 

BILLING PERIOD: 

CERTIFIED 

Prime Consultant Statement of DBE Sub-Consultant Payments 
· h 49 CFR §26.37 to monitor progress of the prime consul · · 

/~HECK IF PRIME IS AUTHORIZATION NO. 
OT-DBE CERTIFIED 

Check if Final Payment D JOB NO. 

CUMULAT 

TOTAL 
IVE 

DOLLAR ACTUAL 
CONTRA 

DBE VALUE OF DEDUCT! AMOUNT 
SUBCONSUL 

SERVICES WORK PERFORMED CT 
SERVICES ONS PAID TO 

AMOUN TANT 
T 

COMPLET DATE 
ED 

AppendixD 

1 obl" 1J)aUons to DBE 
CONTRACT NO. 

ACTUAL DBE 
AMOUNT AUTHOR! 

PAID ZED 
DURING SIGNATU 

THIS RE (Final 
DATE 

REPORTING Payment 
PERIOD Report 

Onlyf 

As the authorized representative of the above prime consultant, I state that, to the best of my knowledge, this information is true and accurate 
PRIME CONSULTANTS AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE TITLE DATEMDO 
(signature) 

. 

18 



COMMENTS: 

SPECIAL NOTE: "Prime Consultant or Authorized Representative" refers to recipients of federal funds as defined at 49 Code of Federal 
Re{!Ulations Part 26 

19 



MDOT 0165 (07/10) 
INSTRUCTIONS 

PRIME CONSULTANT OR AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATNE: 

This statement reports the actual dollar amounts of the project cost earned by and paid to DBE subconsultants. Complete and submit to the Payment 
Analyst with each billing and within 20 days of receipt of final payment. Some forms may be blank if no payment was made since the previous billing. 

For "Contract No., Authorization No.," and "Job No." as appropriate, use the numbers assigned by MDOT. 

For "Period Covered," report the calendar days covered by the billing. 

For "Services Work Performed" report the main service performed by the subconsultant during the reporting period. 

For "Total Contract Amount" report the total amount of the contract between the prime consultant and the subconsultant. 

For "Cumulative Dollar Value of Services Completed" report the total amount the sub consultant has earned since beginning this project. 

For "Deductions," report deductions made by the prime consultant to the subconsultant's "Cumulative Dollar Value of Services Completed" for retainage, 
bond or other fees, materials, services or equipment provided to the sub consultant according to mutual, prior agreement ( documentation of such agreement 
may be required by MDOT). 

For "Actual Amount Paid to Date," report cumulative actual payments made to the subconsultant for services completed. 

For "Actual Amount Paid During this Report Period" report actual payments made to the GRANT RECIPIENT for services during this reporting period. 

"Provide "DBE Authorized Signature" for final payment only. 

Be sure to sign, title and date this statement. 

MDOT PAYMENT ANALYST: 

Complete "Comments" if necessary, sign date and forward to the Office of Business Development within seven (7) days of receipt. 

MDOT Office of Business Development 
PO Box30050 

Lansing, Michigan 48909 
Questions about this form? Call Toll-free 1-866-DBE-1264 

20 



ATTACHMENT A 
(This is a reproduction of Appendix A of 49 CFR Part 29) 

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other 
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions 

Instructions for Certification 

1. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective primary participant is providing the 
certification set out below. 

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in 
denial of participation in this covered transaction. The prospective participant shall submit an 
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set out below. The certification or 
explanation will be considered in connection with the department or agency's determination 
whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary participant to 
furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this 
transaction. 

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 
when the department or agency determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined 
that the prospective primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in 
addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency may 
terminate this transaction for cause or default. 

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the department or 
agency to which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant leans 
that its ce1iification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of 
changed circumstances. 

5. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered transaction, 
participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, and voluntarily excluded, as 
used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the 
rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact the department or agency to which 
this proposal is being submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations. 

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed 
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered 
transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, 
debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this 
covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency entering into this transaction. 

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include 
the clause titled "Certification Regarding Debannent, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary 
Exclusion Lower Tier Covered Transaction," provided by the department or agency entering into 
this covered transaction, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all 
solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in 
a lower tier covered transaction that it is not proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, 
subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, 
unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and 
frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not 

21 



required to, check the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement and Nonprocurement 
Programs. 

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of 
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge 
and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a 
prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a 
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 
proposed for debarment under 48 CPR part 9, subpart 9.4, suspended, debarred, ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available 
to the Federal Government, the department or agency may terminate this transaction for cause or 
default. 

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered 
Transactions 

1. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its 
principals: 

a. Are not presently deba1Ted, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded by any Federal department or agency; 

b. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a 
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or 
local) transaction or contract under a public transaction: violation of 

c. federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, 
falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen 
property; 

d. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 
governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses 
enumerated in paragraph ( 1 )(b) of this certification; and 

e. Have not within a three year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more 
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default 

2. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to cetiify to any of the statements in this 
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 

[60 FR 33042, 33064, June 26, 1995] 

22 



ATTACHMENT B 

[This is a reproduction of Appendix B of 49 CFR Part 29] 
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND 

VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION--LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

Instructions for Certification 

1. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier paiiicipant is providing the 
certification set out below. 

2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 
when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier 
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available 
to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may 
pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment. 

3. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to 
which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its 
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become enoneous by reason of changed 
circumstances. 

4. The terms "covered transaction", "debarred", "suspended", "ineligible", "lower tier covered 
transaction", "participant", "person", "primary covered transaction", "principal", "proposal", and 
"voluntarily excluded", as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and 
Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact the person to 
which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations. 

· 5. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the 
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier 
covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or 
agency with which this transaction originated. 

6. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will 
include this clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and 
Voluntary Exclusion--Lower Tier Covered Transaction", without modification, in all lower tier 
covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

7. A participant is a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in 
a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A 
participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its 
principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List 
(Telephone No. (517) 335-2513 or (517) 335-2514. 

8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of 
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge 
and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is notmally possessed by a 
prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

23 



9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a 
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 
suspended, debaned, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in 
addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department, or agency with 
which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or 
debarment. 

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier 
Covered Transactions 

1. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor 
its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency. 

2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this 
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 

[Federal Register Doc. 88-11561 Filed 5-25-88; 8:45 a.m.] March 9, 1989 

24 



#6 
RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

Honorable City Council President and City Council Members 

Linnette Phillips, Director, Economic Development 

THROUGH: Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

DATE: November 16, 2021, moved to Nov. 23, 2021 

RE: Resolution to Schedule Public Hearing Notice for Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2022 
Recommended Projects to be posted by Nov. 26·2021. 

Overview 
The City of Pontiac's application deadline for the Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2022 is due for submission to Oakland 
County on December 17, 2021, no later than 5:00 pm EST. A total allocation of 
$798,883 is projected for the CDBG Program Year 2022. The City of Pontiac 
(COP) is a sub-recipient to Oakland County to administer the program. 
Contractors submit invoices to the COP who processes for the County to 
reimburse and directly pay the contractor. The COP may submit up to four projects 
per Program Year. Program Year 2022 funds are allocated for calendar year 2023 
spending. 

Prior to the City Council voting to approve the application, a public hearing will 
need to be held at the meeting on December 7, 2021. The notice for the 
public hearing should be posed by Nov. 26, 2021. We are required to inform 
the public at least 10 days prior to the public hearing. 

We are requesting that your honorable body set the public hearing for 
Tuesday, December 7, 2021. Again, the deadline date for the CDBG Program 
2022 Application is Friday, December 17th by no later than 5:00 pm EST. 

Proposed Projects Considered for Recommendation for CDBG PY2022 

The following projects are being considered for CDBG PY2022: 

1. Child Care Services for $75,000. Funds for services that will benefit 
children under age 13 years old, including parenting skills and related 
classes. The COP has 74 child care centers many of which are home 
based. While they meet the State of Michigan's criteria for child care 
centers, many are home based where perhaps, relatives are providing the 
care for family members who are working and/or going to school. 



This proposed program would be managed by an RFP contractor who 
would provide outreach services to the child care centers. Some examples 
of services are: 

• Provide grant information for child care centers; 
• assistance with the education component they may provide in the 

child care centers with learning tools and modules for the owners; 
• connect with resources to provide books, electronic educational tools 

and computers; 
• assist with resources to provide meals and snacks; 
• proviqe resources and information to the child care center owners to 

assist parents enhance their parenting skills; 
• provide resources and information to the child care center owners to 

share information with parents regarding jobs and enhanced 
workforce development programs. 

Funds for this program would include activities and services. Studies have 
proven that by providing resources to engage and assist parents result in 
overall success of the total child. 

2. Code Enforcement Officer/Representative for $75,000. Funds for this 
project entail a staff addition grant funded by CDBG. The duties for this 
position would entail providing rental enforcement support for the City of 
Pontiac's code enforcement division, as well as, help provide administrative 
support to the group. The primary goal of the position would be to improve 
the rental compliance rate within the City by managing new and existing 
enforcements, while also helping to processes and address complaints from 
residents. Performance would be evaluated through an established criteria 
of metrics, including but not limited to; (1) enforcement compliance 
clearance percentage, (2) number of corrective action letters issued, (3) 
number enforcement inspections completed, (4) amount of blight tickets 
issued, (5) amount of enforcement records filed. 

The Code Enforcement Officer/Representative staff person would work both 
in the field and in the office to enforce rental property compliance and 
generate and review reports. Funds for this full time position include 
wages, benefits and equipment such as a laptop computer and/or smart 
phone with software access. Other tools and equipment may be required 
including valid driver's license and access to a vehicle. 

3. Economic Development: Technical Assistance for for-profit Small 
Businesses for $150,000. These funds are proposed to provide technical 
assistance to for-profit businesses, including workshops, assistance in 
developing business plans, marketing and referrals to lenders or technical 
resources. Participants in this program would follow a curriculum to 
prepare them or enhance their skills in managing their small business with 
access to subject matter experts in the areas of entrepreneurship, legal, 
marketing, accounting, project management and information industry 
specific referrals as deemed appropriate. 



4. Crime Awareness and Prevention for $125,000: These funds are to 
promote awareness and prevention programs above and beyond normal 
staffing levels including installation of security cameras throughout the COP 
in targeted high crime areas. Funding for this program could provide 
monitoring and increasing security staff. 
Implementation of a crime awareness and prevention program to deter and 
diminish crime in the COP comprised of: 

(a) Signs alerting of neighborhood watch where residents will report 
suspicious activity; 

(b) Installation of security cameras strategically located in areas of high 
crime activity in all 7 of the COP's districts, plus 3 in other designated 
areas throughout the city; 

(c) Promotion of the crime awareness and prevention program 
communicated on the COP website, social media and at City Council 
and town hall meetings; 

(d) Addition of security staff to monitor security camera data and also part 
time security staff. 

(e) Create and generate quarterly reports to determine the impact of the 
initiative. 

5. Sidewalks for $798,83: Funds to repair sidewalks throughout the City of 
Pontiac. Priority for sidewalk repair is based on complaint areas in 
neighborhoods, and the amount of repairs needed. DPW have a generated 
complaint referred to for repairs. See map attached 

While 5 projects are being proposed, only four can be submitted. The 
amounts are suggested for each project, but cannot total more than 
$798,883. One suggestion was to allocate all of the funds to repair 
sidewalks. 



CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION TO SCHEDULE PUBLIC HEARING FOR COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) ON NOVEMBER 30, 2021 FOR 

PROGAM YEAR 2022 RECOMMENDED PROJECTS 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac is submitting an application for the Community Development 
Block Grant; and 

Whereas, the grant application will be submitted on December 17, 2021 to Oakland 
County for Program Year 2022 projects; and 

Whereas, a Public Hearing is required with a minimum 10 notice, published by November 
26, 2021 to the public; and 

Whereas, we are requesting to hold the Public Hearing on December 7, 2021 at 6:00; and 

Whereas, the following projects being considered: 

1. Child Care Services for $75,000. Funds for services that will benefit 
children under age 13 years old, including parenting skills and related 
classes. Funds can be used for programs and services to promote and 
enhance early childhood education in partnership with Head Start, STEM, 
STEAM and similar programs that focus on the entire child. Additional 
programs to support and enhance parental educational and training 
programs that would assist parents and involved adults in their parenting 
roles. Studies have proven that by providing resources to engage and 
assist parents result in overall success of the total child. Funds for this 
program would include activities and services. 

2. Code Enforcement Representative for $75,000. Funds for a Rental 
Enforcement Representative staff person to work both in the field and in the 
office to enforce rental property compliance and generate and review 
reports. Funds for this full time position include wages, benefits and 
equipment such as a laptop computer and/or smart phone with software 
access. Other tools and equipment may be required including valid driver's 
license and access to a vehicle. 

3. Economic Development: Technical Assistance for for-profit Small 
Businesses for $150,000. These funds are proposed to provide technical 
assistance to for-profit businesses, including workshops, assistance in 



developing business plans, marketing and referrals to lenders or technical 
resources. Participants in this program would follow a curriculum to 
prepare them or enhance their skills in managing their small business with 
access to subject matter experts in the areas of entrepreneurship, legal, 
marketing, accounting, project management and information industry 
specific referrals as deemed appropriate. 

4. Crime Awareness for $125,000: These funds are to promote awareness 
and prevention programs above and beyond normal staffing levels including 
installation of security cameras, monitoring and increasing security staff. 

5. Sidewalks for $798,883. Funds to repair sidewalks throughout the City of 
Pontiac. 

Now Therefore be it Resolved, that the Pontiac City Council schedule a public hearing on 
the Community Development Block Grant Application for Program Year 2022 on 
December 7, 2021 at 6:00 PM and instruct the Interim Clerk to have a public notice 
published in the newspaper 10 days on or before November 26, 2021. 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
~0-~ ¥""- ,- ~-

✓ \_. 

I A . 

:4il£Tt(~ 

CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

RECOMMENDING PROGRAM YEAR 2022 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
BLOCK GRANS PROJECTS 

NOTICE IS HEARBY GIVEN that the City of Pontiac will hold a public hearing to 
recommend Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) projects for Program 
Year 2022. Four projects are proposed for a total of $798,883. The 
recommended projects are: (1) Child Care Services for $75,000; (2) Code 
Enforcement Officer/Representative for $75,000 including salary, benefits and 
equipment; (3) Economic Development Technical Assistance for For-Profit Small 
Businesses for $150,000; ( 4) Crime Prevention for $125,000 and (5) Sidewalk 
Repairs for $798,883. Only four projects can be submitted and all four cannot 
amount for more than $798,883. Note that the entire amount of $798,883 is 
proposed for sidewalks. If selected, no other projects can be submitted. 

Pyblic Comment For individuals who desire to make a public comment, please 
submit your name and comment in writing to publiccomments@pontiac.mi.us by 
5:00 PM, December 6, 2021. Additionally, you may submit your public comment in 
writing directly to the Office of the Interim City Clerk gdoyle@pontiac.mi.us 

The hearing will be held on Tuesday, December 7, 2021 at 6:00 pm at the 
City of Pontiac City Council Chambers at Pontiac City Hall, 47450 
Woodward Avenue, 2nd Floor in Pontiac, Michigan. 



CHILD CARE SERVICES 
Program/Account# 
HUD Matrix Code 05L 

Authority 24 CFR 570.201 (e) or 42 USC 5305(a)(8) + 24 CFR 570.482(c)(2) 
Environmental Code Exempt 

Services that will benefit children (generally under age 13), 
including parenting skills classes. 

Eligible Uses For services exclusively for abused and neglected children, use 
05N. 
Project service delivery costs including staff timesheets, other direct 

Project Delivery Costs costs, and service costs directly related to carrying out this activity 
are eligible. Cost reasonableness standards apply. 
Contact Planning & Evaluation at (248) 858-5312 to determine 

Notes eligibility before applying for this project. 
Contact Contract Compliance at (248) 858-0196 when compiling 
bids/specs. 

Contact Planning & Evaluation at (248) 858-5312 to determine 

National Objective Codes 
National Objective. Options include: 
LMC - Low-income limited clientele benefit: activities that benefit a 
limited clientele, at least 51 % of which are low-income. 

Accomolishment TvPe Peoole 
Performance Objective Suitable Livina Environment 
Performance Outcome Improved Availability/Accessibility 

54 



CODE ENFORCEMENT 
Program/Account# 172170-730310 

Code enforcement involves the payment of salaries related to the 
enforcement of state and/or local codes. Code enforcement cannot pay 
the costs of correcting code violations. CDBG funds may be used for 

Eligible Uses 
code enforcement only in deteriorating or deteriorated areas where such 
enforcement, together with public improvements, rehabilitation and 
services to be provided, may be expected to arrest the decline of the 
area, and provided the code enforcement meets a national objective of 
the CDBG program. Reference: s570.202(c). 
Project Service Delivery Costs including staff timesheets, other direct 

Project Delivery Costs costs, and service costs directly related to carrying out this activity 
are eligible. Cost reasonableness standards apply. 

This is an areawide benefit activity. See HUD CPD-14-016 below and 
application pages for specific requirements. Communities should refer 
clients to the Oakland County Home Improvement Program so that 

Notes 
low-income persons can correct violations cited under CDBG funded 
code enforcement without being unduly burdened financially. Time 
reports must be submitted to receive reimbursement for this activity. 
Provide the number of inspections when requesting reimbursement. 

Environmental Code Exempt 
HUD Matrix Code 15 
Authoritv 24 CFR 570.202(c) or 42 USC 5305(a)(3) 

In order to meet a National Objective and be eligible for Code 
Enforcement funding: LMA - Low-income area benefit: the 

National Objective Codes service area identified for activities is at least 45.08% low-
income income. Code Enforcement is eligible only In primarily 
residential service areas. 

Report People when Code Enforcement consists of inspecting 
privately-owned vacant lots and/or tagging abandoned vehicles. When 

Accomplishment Type Code Enforcement includes inspection of multiple types of property, 
report Housing Units in the proposed and actual unit's fields and report 
number of People, Businesses and/or Organizations inspected, as 
appropriate, in Accomplishments Narrative. 

Performance Objective Create Suitable Living Environment 

Performance Outcome Sustainability 

87 



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT: TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 
Program/Account# 

Technical assistance to for-profit businesses, including workshops, 

Eligible Uses assistance in developing business plans, marketing, and referrals to 
lenders or technical resources. Also use 18B for activity delivery costs 
eliQible under 24 CFR 570.203(c). 
Project Service Delivery Costs including staff timesheets, other direct 

Project Delivery Costs costs, and service costs directly related to carrying out this activity are 
eligible. Cost reasonableness standards apply. 
Contact Planning & Evaluation at (248) 858-5312 to determine 

Notes 
eligibility before applying for this project. 
Contact Contract Compliance at (248) 858-0196 when compiling 
bids/specs. 

Environmental Code Exemot 
HUD Matrix Code 188 
Authoritv 24 CFR 570.203(c) or 42 USC 5305(a)(17) 

Contact Planning & Evaluation at (248) 858-5312 to determine 
National Objective. Options include: 

National Objective Codes LMA - Low-income area benefit: the service area identified for 
activities is at least 45.08% low-income income. 
LMC -- Low-income limited clientele benefit: activities that benefit a 
limited clientele, at least 51 % of which are low-income. 

Accomplishment Tvpe 
Performance Objective Economic Opportunity 

Performance Outcome 

108 



CRIME AWARENESS 
Program/Account# 172160-TBD 

HUD Matrix Code 051 

Authority 24 CFR 570.201(e) or 42 use 5305(a)(8) + 24 CFR 570.482(c)(2) 

Environmental Code Exempt 
Promotion of crime awareness and prevention, including crime 
prevention education programs, community-oriented policing 

Eligible Uses programs above and beyond normal staffing levels, installation of 
security cameras, and paying for security guards. 
Project service delivery costs including staff timesheets, other direct 

Project Delivery Costs costs, and service costs directly related to carrying out this activity 
are eligible. Cost reasonableness standards apply. 
Contact Planning & Evaluation at (248) 858-5312 to determine 

Notes eligibility before applying for this project. 
Contact Contract Compliance at (248) 858-0196 when compiling 
bids/soecs. 
Contact Planning & Evaluation at (248) 858-5312 to determine 

National Objective Codes National Objective. Options include: 
LMC - Low-income limited clientele benefit: activities that benefit a 
limited clientele, at least 51 % of which are low-income. 

Accomolishment Tvoe Peoole 
Performance Objective Suitable Living Environment 
Performance Outcome Improved Availability/Accessibility 

51 



Program/Account# 

Eligible Uses 

Project Delivery Costs 

Notes 

Environmental Code 

HUD Matrix Code 
Authoritv 

National Objective Codes 

Accomplishment Type 

Performance Obiectlve 
Performance Outcome 

SIDEWALKS 
172170-731745 

Improvements to sidewalks. Also use 03L for sidewall< improvements 
that include the installation of trash receptacles, lighting, benches, and 
trees. 

Project service delivery costs including staff timesheets, other direct 
costs, and service costs directly related to carrying out this activity 
are eliaible. Cost reasonableness standards annlv. 
Contact Planning & Evaluation at (248) 858-5312 to determine 
eligibility before applying for this project. 
If the sidewalk runs through low-income census tract block groups, 
the project is considered an areawide benefit activity. 
Low~income persons cannot be charged to recover CDBG funded 
capital costs to install or improve sidewalks in areas where CDBG 
funds are being used on an areawide basis for the sidewalk 
installation/improvement. 
CDBG funds recovered from persons who are not low income are 
considered program income. In all other areas, CDBG funds may 
only be used to pay the special assessments against low-income 
households for construction or improvement of the sidewalk. 
Contact Contract Compliance at (248) 858~0196 when compiling 
bids/specs. 
Contact Environmental Review at (248) 858-5309 to confirm if 
project is Categorically Excluded and/or Environmentally 
Assessed 
03L 
24 CFR 570.201 tc) or 42 use 5305(a)(2) 
Contact Planning & Evaluation at (248) 858-5312 to determine 
National Objective. Options include: 
LMA - Low-income area benefit: the service area identified for 
activities is at least 45.08% low-income income. 
LMC - Low-income limited clientele benefit: activities that benefit a 
limited clientele, at least 51 % of which are low-income. 
LMH - Low-income housing benefit: activities that are carried out for 
providing or improving permanent residential structures that will be 
occupied by low-income households. 

People/Housing Units/Public Facilities 
When sole purpose is to create curb cuts, report number of curb cuts 
using Public Facilities code. When creating curb cuts in conjunction 
with other sidewalk improvements, report number of people. 

Create Suitable Livinq Environment 
Sustainability 

26 



#7 
RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: Honorable City Council President Kermit Williams, and City Council 
Members 

FROM: Honorable Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

CC: Linnette Phillips, Economic Development Director 
Michael J. Wilson, Building and Safety 

DATE: September 21, 2021 

RE: Resolution to Consider Approval of VinCon, Inc. for CDBG Batch 
17 Demolition Services 

The City of Pontiac has a sub-recipient contract with Oakland County to provide 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) projects for Program Year 2019. 
Within the scope of programs and projects Clearance and Demolition is one of the 
approved projects. To date, there is approximately $781,099.87 in Clearance and 
Demolition funds. 

Two Requests for Proposals were posted (see attachments - Exhibit 1) on both 
the City of Pontiac's website and BldNet, our procurement portal to solicit bids for 
both demolition and asbestos abatement. In summary, there were four (4) 
demolition proposals and two (2) asbestos proposals. In both cases, the sealed 
bids were reviewed and the lowest bidders were selected. 

This resolution is requesting approval to move forward with VinCon, Inc. to provide 
Demolition services for CDBG Clearance and Demolition of Batch 17 properties. 
(see Attachment- Exhibit 2). The bid amount is $205,666. 

Resolution On Following Page 



RESOLUTION TO CONSIDER APPROVAL OF VINCON, 
INC. FOR CDBG BATCH 17 DEMOLITION 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac is a sub-recipient to Oakland County for 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Programs; and; 

WHEREAS, Clearance and Demolition is one of the programs for Program 
Years 2018 and 2019; with a combined balance of approximately $781,099.87 in 
remaining funds, available for Batch 17 properties; and; 

WHEREAS, Requests for Proposals for both Demolition and Asbestos 
Abatement were posted on both the City of Pontiac (COP) website and BidNet 
portal for prospective bidders to bid; and 

WHEREAS, VinCon, Inc. was the second lowest of four (4) proposals 
submitted, for $205,666 for the properties; and 

NOW THEREFORE be resolved that the City Council in solidarity with the 
Mayor hereby authorizes and accepts the proposal to provide Demolition services. 

Attachments: 
(1) VinCon, Inc. Bid Proposal Including Request for Proposal 
(2) Bid Proposal Results 



* Irnternn.,-horcl Con;';}-\tttciion CoWlpa~ 
'5 °/o .~76, d l:>ond provtd..CLd 

·-» l'l 6 ) 000. OD LO \f\J 'BIDER 

'7lf. V ,n ~ C.on 1.ncorg>raLccl 
5°/c -~\Gl 5oncl -Provi'cleoL 

i '2.05, lotdo, 00 

* A-dcun:s 6roue 
6°/0 lnkl fu:nd '-Proikltcl 

!t·olD01 C\16. 00 

'* ·~LU.Q, ~tar Incv 
'0°1" (6,d ~d "l)ro~\ded 

-\b o'llo) 48A-. oo 

* Q'--~Uf\ed. 1-\~te.m-en-\- 5ervllQ.S inc." 
~ 0l0 ~k\ ''°ancl-"?11:)\f\GltQl 
~ \ llf6/5'A0,_00 

·* N~\r)-\-V'lcuj -~<tf(\ecM o.,tton L LC., 
6°/0 lb,d ~nci \\--a\(\d_Q_cl 

\.¥> ql\ '"6 CO . 00 

* 7?:, \ c\ ·+o.-.b 
w\l\ bQ. 

Smt. 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: Honorable City Council President Kermit Williams, and City Council 
Members 

FROM: Honorable Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

CC: Linnette Phillips, Economic Development Director 
Michael J. Wilson, Building and Safety 

DATE: September 21, 2021 

RE: Resolution to Consider Approval of Demolition Services Contract 
Consideration for CDBG Batch 17 Demolition Properties - Vin 

Tre City of Pontiac has a sub-recipient contract with Oakland County to provide 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) projects for Program Year 2019. 
Within the scope of programs and projects Clearance and Demolition is one of the 
approved projects. To date, there is approximately $781,099.87 in Clearance and 
Demolition funds. 

Two Requests for Proposals were posted (see attachments - Exhibit 1) on both 
the City of Pontiac's website and BldNet, our procurement portal to solicit bids for 
both demolition and asbestos abatement. In summary, there were four (4) 
demolition proposals and two (2) asbestos proposals. In both cases, the sealed 
bids were reviewed and the lowest bidders were selected. 

This resolution is requesting approval to move forward with VinCon, Inc. to provide 
Demolition services for CDBG Clearance and Demolition of Batch 17 properties. 
(see Attachment - Exhibit 2). The bid amount is $205,666. 

Resolution On Following Page 



WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac is a sub-recipient to Oakland County for 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Programs; and; 

WHEREAS, Clearance and Demolition is one of the programs for Program 
Years 2018 and 2019; with a combined balance of approximately $781,099.87 in 
remaining funds, available for Batch 17 properties; and; 

WHEREAS, Requests for Proposals for both Demolition and Asbestos 
Abatement were posted on both the City of Pontiac (COP) website and BidNet 
portal for prospective bidders to bid; and 

WHEREAS, VinCon, Inc. was the second lowest of four (4) proposals 
submitted, for $205,666 for the properties; and 

NOW THEREFORE be resolved that the City Council in solidarity with the 
Mayor hereby authorizes and accepts the proposal to provide Demolition services. 

Attachments: 
(1) VinCon, Inc. Bid Proposal including Request for Proposal 
(2) Bid Proposal Results 



REQl)EST TO SUBMIT BIDS 
FOR 

CDBG DEMOLITION (Batch 17) 
FOR THE 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

The City of Pontiac, Michigan (The City) is requesting bids for providing Home Oemolitlon services . 
for the City of Pontiac. · .. 

Sealed bids will be received at the City of Pontiac Clerk1s Office at 47 450 Woodw~rd Avenue, 1st 

Floor, Pontiac, Ml 48342 plainly marked with "CDBG Demolition Bid aatch 17"" until 3:00 p.m. 
EDT, Thursday, August 26, 2021, at which time they will be publicly opened. 

It is sole responsibility of the individual, and/or entity submitting the bid, to ensure that their bid is 
physically deposited to the Clerk's Office prior to the time and date specified. Late bids wlll not be 
opened and will be rejepted and unopened regardles$ of the degre~ of lateness or the reason thereto, 
including causes beyond the control of the person and/or entity submitting the bic;l. (NOTE: l;lectronic 
or faxed submis~;ions will not be accepted) 

Bic:ls, including all City-provided forms th~t shall be completed, and signed as indicated h~rein, are to 
be submitted in a sealed envelope plainly marked with the Bids title. Two (2) 99mplet~ qogi~s(s~~s of 
the bid shall be submitted. An original copy so marked, shall be signed with the firm's name and bear 
its corporate seal or logo and the hand written signature of an officer or employee having al,lthority to 
bind the company to a contract by his or her signature. 

The City of Pontiac reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids, either in part or in whole to 
waive any formalities and to accept the bid which it believes to be in the best interest of the City. 

All prQ$pective bidders need to send a~ e-mail response to lph
1
illips@po,nti~~-,mi.us the 

following information Firm name, Project Name, Contact Person, Telephone Number and E
Mail Address. 

Any interpretation, correction, or change of this document will be made only by written addendum 
hereto. Any interpretation, correction, or change made In any other manner will not be binding on the 
City and proposer~ shall not rely thereon. All inquiries are to be made in writinQ to Linnette Phillips 
and be received nQ Jat~r th(f'n five working days prior to the scheduled opening (these may be hand
delivered, malled, or faxed to (248) 758~3029 or emailed to lphlllips@p9~t,lac.~i,.4s. A written 
response, if provided, will be in the form of an addendum to th~ .Sid and will be sent to all document 
holders on file with the Purcha$ing Office. 

As sho\Nn below, :;iny addendums issued will be located on the City of Pontiac's website: 

hUPiUWWJC1-P2otiac.mi.usUhmartment~/timm<;,elpurchftsill9•PhP• 

CDBG Demolition Bid Batch 17 Page 1 Qf23 



Its receipt must be duly acknowledged with any submission. Please refer to the website for any 
addenda that may be issued. Bidders who submit bids before the deadline are advised to continue to 
monitor the website for any addenda that may be issued. Bid packages will plso be available upon 
request thro1,1gh the Purchasing Office located at 47450 Woodw~m:I Aven1,1e, 2nd Floor, Pontiac, Ml 
48342 

The selected firm shall agree to indemnify, <;lefend, and hold harmless the City .of Pontiac, its officers, 
agents, and employees from and against all .claims, losses, costs or damag.es caused by his acts or 
those of his agents, or anyone for whom he may be respom,ible. The City disclaims any responsibility 
for injury to proposers, their agents, or to others while ex~mining the work site ot at any other time. 

With regard to Home Demolition, the successfl,ll proposer sha.11 agree to indemnify and hpld the City 
harmless from any and ~II claims whatsoever arising out of, or occurring during, the performance of . 
the services and occasionec;I directly or indirectly by Its error or omission, negligence, or fault. 

Prior to the City's entering into a contract, the successful proposer shall. produce evidence satisfactory 
to the City of insurance coverage in types and amoLJnts defined in Appendix D, and naming the City 
of Pontiac, Michigan as an ac:Jditional Insured thereon. 

All work performed by the contractor and $Ubcontractors shall comply with the pertinent OSHA (as 
stated above), local, state, and federal g9vernment regulations. 

The winning bidder cann<:>t be debarred by the federal government. 

This Is a Federally Funded project. The contractor and subcontractors on this project must comply' 
with HUD contract provisions 24CFR part 8!;>,36(i), Nondiscrimination, Ec;tual Employment 
Opportunity, Affirmative Action, Section 3. requirement$, Anti-Kickback Act, Federal Oc;:cupatlonal 
Safety and Health Act and Department of Labor Standards and Regulations as set forth in the 
Contract Docl,lments. This ml,lnicipality is an Equal Opportunity Employer. Businesses owned PY 
women or minorities are strongly enco~ra~ed to bid. 

BIDS OUf;: THURSDAY, AUGUST 26, 2021 AT 3:00 PM'EDT 

NUMBER OF COPIES TO SUBMIT: TWO (2): One (1) Original and One (1) Copy 

C08G Demolition Bid Batch t 7 Pageiof,3 ill] 



I. PURPOSE 

The City of Pontiac is soliciting bids from qualified individuals for the purpose of Home Demolition, 
for sub-standard vacant residential structures for the City of Pontiac. Each of these structures 
shall be demolished by qualified contractors. Individuals or firms shall have proper credentials, 
certifications and licenses required by the City, County, State, and Fed~ral Government. 

II. BACKGROUND 

The City of Pontiac has been allocated federal f1,1nds through the Community Development Block 
Grant ("CDBG)I). These funds shall toe used to provide asbestos survey, asbestos remediation, 
and demolition activities ensuring• the City of Pontiac Federal Progr1;1ms can offer stability, 
security, and remove blight for the City of Pontiac residents. 

Ill. SCOPE OF WORK: Demolition and Disposal 

A The following scope of work and technical specifications shall apply to each and every home 
site to be demolished individually, and to the entire project. ' 

The work in general consists of: 

. 1. Dem<:>lition of the house, any accessory structures, garage or shed, basement WG¼lls and 
floors, foundations, footings, slabs, driveways up to curb line (~.~clµdin,g apgroach pnp gublig 
sidewalk), sidewalks on the private property up to the City sidewalks, and rem9valand disposal 
of landscaping (trees, shrubs~. ornamentals), and removal and disposal of all building debris and 
any other debris on the site, such as junk vehicles and fences. All existing rubbish, trash, and 
junk apart from that of the demolished structures shall be removed and the entire site shall be left 
clear of such material. All Items removed from the property shall be properly disposed of at a 
licensed public landfill. 

a. The demolition contractor shall provide a waste manifest for the construction debris from 
each demolished dwelling/structure. 

2. Backfilling Requirements; 

a. Prior to backfilling, the Contractor must request a building inspection of the site and allow 
the inspector access to take ~ny necessary photos, check for debris removal, and floor 
removal. The contractor-must also provide for inspection of the sewer capping. In addition, 
a Building and Safety Oepartm~nt representative must be present prior to beginning of th~ 
backfilling process to ensure the requirements. are met to their fullest. 

b. Backfill mat~rial is to consist of sandy loam soil; no blue clay soil shall be use<! for any 
portion of the backfill; material used is to be entirely free of all foreign materials that include, 
but are not limited to .clay, organic material vegetation, or site debris. 

c. The contractor must compact the backfill in no more than 12-inch l~yers to not less than 
90 percent unit weight; if sand is used in backfill material, the top 12-inches offill 
may be clean fill dirt as described above. The contractor shall provide for a minimum depth 
of four inch(:}s of topsoil over the excavated area. 

CDBG Oemolition Bid Batch 17 Page 3 of23 



d. The contractor mu$t grade the site to provide surface water <;lrainage to minimize the 
pooling/collection of surface water and not creat~ issues or problems to adjacent 
propertie$. 

e. The contractor must seed and straw the entire lot with perennial Blue Grass, or have a 
hydro-seed product installed after completion of finish grading before calling for a final 
inspection. Seeding shall be placed after April 15 and before October 1. A retainage 
fil!IO!,m~.of $1,00p J9pe 1ho~~c\nq dq!l?~S) p~r. h,_c~us~ .~!11.,be .. ~eld µ,n~i! f!rial ir~P~ytlon i~ 
smP,roved. 

f. The contractor must provide an affidavit, or sworn statement indicating the origin 
of the backfill to be used. If contractor has purchased the backfill to be used, please 
provide a proof of purchase/acquisition. 

g. Segt;gn 10§ Natiogal l:f.istoti~ freservptioo act of. 19§6 ,as amended: If at any time 
during the demolition process historic artifacts or places of significate interest are 
discovered.work must be stopped and the Community & EcQnomic Development Director, 
Linne~e Phillips, contacted at 248-758-3029. It shall be the responsibility of the City to 
contact the Oakland County Community & Home Improvement Oivislon regarding the 
SHPO findings. 

Historic archeological discoveries may include the following: 
• Evidence of human activity 
• Bones, burial sites or funerary 
• Pottery, beads, tools, arrowheads, weapons 
• Sculptures, monuments, fountains, boundary markers 
• Ceremonial arec;ls, religious or sacred materials 
• Plc;lnt & animal communities 

3. Provide and install traffic control signs, barricades, canopies, and flagmen when necessary 
and directed by Pontiac City Field Representative. A daily schedule of demolition needs to be 
submitted to the Community & Economic Development Director, Linnette Phillips at 
h;?~illips@P,ontiac.ml1us, so we can advise authorities of possibl~, temporary road closures. 

4. The demolition contractor will furnish the City of Pontiac with project schedule within seven 
working days of receipt of contrnct. 

5. Project must be completed within thirty days (30) days after signing demolition contract. The 
City's Project Engineering firm OCR Services and Construction has obtained all utility ~learances 
for each property. (See item 8 below for water/sewer services) 

6. Post advance notice. of construction at each property location where the dwelling/structure 
is scheduled to be demolished a minimum of three (3) days before commencing work. 

7. The Contractor is responsible for any damage to the existing adjacent City curbs/sidewalks 
that are caused by the demolition contractor's equipment. The demolition contractor shall provide 
wood planking or other protective mem~ures to prevent damage/cracking of the existing city 
sidewalk/curbs/aprons by the demolition dozers, back hoe, etc. 

COBG Oemolition Bid Satch 17 Page 4 of23 



8. Trye C9,nt~g\or i,~ ,respqnslqle fo,r p~ying all fe~s as~ocjatec!,wit,h,,der;r:io!ition ,Q,errnits,,, sewer 
c~ps irtc,l~ding ,'lf:./ater and Sew,<eyr ~erylc~s. 

9. "T:h~, Coptr~ctor mµ~t s,eQµre a ,dern9Utlq(l an~. rig~t~of-way Q~r,m\t frqm,th,e ,qity qt P9piia,c. 

1 O. The Contractor must notify the occupants of aojacent propertie$ (in writing) when the 
demolition will take place a minimum of 24 hours prior to demolition. 

11. Each property location with an open hole, must have four feet (4 1
) of plastic; snow fencing 

(tied and staked down) at the perimeter of the $ite exc;:avation to minimize unauthorized site entry, 
or follow MIOSHA guidelines for open~hole barricades, if complet~ backfilling is not finished 
before the end of a workday unless approved otherwise by the Building Inspector. Open 
excavations shall not be left unsecured overnight. 

B. WORK LOCATION 

1 The work takes place at various locations throughout the City of Pontiac. See Proposal 
form for the listing of addresses. 

2 Contractor must obtain firsthand information concerning any probable interference and the 
available facilities for transporting, handling, and storing construction equipment and 
materials, and concerning other conditions whic;:h may affect their work. 

C. WORK SCHEDULE 

1 All work shall be scheduled in advance with the City of Pontiac. 

2 Contractor shall satisfactorily complete all work under this Contract within thirty (30) days. 

3 Provide a timeline of when straw·and grass seed work will be performed at the sites of the 
demolished properties. 

D. CONFORMITY TO PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

1. All work shall conform to the plans, specifications, and contract documents 
submitted by the bidder and authorized by .the City. 

E. TEMPORARY FACILITIES 

. 1. Implementation of temporary facilities in this section shall be coordinated with and 
subject to approval by the County Representative. 

CDBG Demolition Bid Batch 17 Page 5 of23 



2. Electrical Power for Construction: All temporary electrical connections and 
equipment shall be provided by the contractor and maintained by him in accordance 
with the National Electrical Code as well as state and local rules and regulations. All 
temporary electrical work shall be removed by the contractor upon completion of the 
project. 

3. Extra Work: All extra work that may be required by the Contractor will be estimated 
and paid for under provision of the General Conditions, contained within this document, 
which govern such work. 

F. DISPOSAL 

All rubbish, debris and other waste materials whatsoever, found on the work site, whether created 
by the demolition activities or otherwise, throughout the duration of the contract shall be removed 
and legally disposed of by the Contractor, at no additional cost to the City of Pontiac. 

IV. REQUEST 

In addition to the required form ''Home DemoliUon Bid Batch 17" provided here as Appendix A, all 
firms or individuals responding to this Bid must submit complete responses to the information 
reguested in this section, and must note any exceptions to any informatio'n contained in the Bid. 
Bids will be evaluated based upon the requested criteria· and be awarded to the lowest 
responsible bidder. Bids should present information in a clear and concise manner, following the 
format indicated below. Responses to this section shall be typewritten in a font not smaller than 
11 point and may be double or single sided on standard 8½ "x 11" paper. There is no limit to 
pages submitted for complete response to this section: 

Statement of Qualifications: Contractor shall supply all company contact information, Current 
Ucense(s), Staffing, Certifications, Copy of Current Liability Insurance, along with Contractor's 
qualifications and ability to successfully provide the services requested. 

a) Name, telephone number, address, e~mail, and fax number of the individual designated 
to receive all official correspondence relating to the project. 

b) Describe the Contractor's qualifications and ability to successfully provide the services 
requested, including a description of prior experience.· 

c) Provide copy of State of Michigan License for the corporation or company and an 
individual license. 

d) Provide certified copies of Articles of Incorporation or Articles of Organization of the firm 
(if applicable). 

e) Provide current Good Standing Certificate for the firm (if applicable). 

f) Provide organizational documents for the firm such as bylaws and oper<;1ting agreement 
(If applicable), 

CDBG D~molition 8id Batch 17 Page 6 of23 



g) Provide a list of which staff members will be responsible for the project, include brief 
resumes and proof of appropriate training and relevant certificates and licenses for each. 

h) Provide a list of board of directors and officers of firm (if applicable). 
' 

i) Provide insurance as required In Appendix "D" 

,_ j) Provide contact names and _telephone n1,1mbers for at least three (3) individuals, 
municipalities or companies for which you have contracted similar work in the past ye1;1r. 

k) Provide a detailed description of any litigation resulting from use of the firm's services. 

I) Provide a statement on the notification time necessary to be~ln exect,ttion of the cfesired 
services 

m) Provide bid and performance bond as outlined in section °1x. BONDING 
REQUIREMENTS11 

The City of Pontiac Michigan reserves the right to validate proposer's qualifications, Cr;lpability to 
perform, availability, past performance record and to verify that the proposer is current in its 
obligations to the City. 

The City reserves the right to waive any informality in bids, to aocept any bid, and to reject any 
and all bids, should it be deemed in the best interest of the City to do so. 

The City reserves the right to request clarification of and/or solicit additional Information of any 
proposer, and/or to negotiate with any proposer regarding any terms of their bid including, but not 
limited to; the cost and/or scope of services, with the intent to achieve the best bid that shall result 
in a contract that Is deemed by the City 'to be in the City's best interests. Any such negotiations 
will use the selected bid as a basis to reach a final agreement, if possible. 

The City reserves the right to include In the contract for services other terms and conditions not 
specifically set forth herein. -

V. PROPOSED FEE 

Provide a fee for the services requested in the Scope of Services of work in the attached 11COBG 
Demolition Bid .Batch 17'1 In Appendix A 

It is the City's intention to utilize the successful proposer's services as soon as awarded. All 
services shall be perform~d according to the Agreement, as well as the submitted bid. 

VI. AGREEMENT 

Contract work on behalf of the City of Pontiac will·be awarded to the lowest respc;>nsible bidder. 
These structures are vacaht, and will be demolished under separate contract. 

CDBG Demolition Bid Batch 17 Page 7 of23 



The Agreement with the contractor will detail the payment procedures and documentation needed 
for the services rendered. The billing submitted by the contractor must provide a written 
description of the work completed and include any necessary justification a$/if necessary. 

Silling will be required to have ALL the following listed below aft;er servioes have been r~ndered, including 
but not limited to: 

• Vendor. Registration Packet (including E;thnlc Ownership report, Contractor Certifioation, and Prime 
Contractor Agreement) with Oakland County; 

• 10 Dey Notifications to State of Michigan; 

• Copies of signed receipts from the approved permitted landfill operator of receipt of material at the 
permitted landfill; 

• Supplement the Waste Shipl'l'\ent Record with a list of all activities that contributed to each specific 
loa<i of waste; 

• Project specific ·documentation which shall include, but not be limited to: a copy of the complete 
project design including drawings, pre anc:l post work site photos, (Ind other reports as needed; 

• Demolition Permit issued by City of Pontiac Bullding Safety Department; 
·• Rlght-of"Way Permit issued by City of Pontiac Department of Public Works 
• Sewer Cap Disconnect Permit issued by Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner: 
• Line-Item Invoice; ~nd 
• Waiver of Liens .for all subcontractors. 

All payments will be made by electronic deposits from Oakland County to the contractor 
bank account. Note: There will not be any prepayments or deposits for any demolition 
work. 

Vil. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: 

The fundi119 used for this program comes from the CDBG program, pursuant to the Housing and 
Community Development Act of 197 4, as amended (the "Act''). This fec;ieral program ha$ stri~gent 
requirements that the City and its Contractor's. must adhere to in order to receive monetary 
reimbursement. Please review the requirements .listed below E;tnd state in your bid your ability to 
fulfill these requirements. If you have any questions regarding federal requirements please 
eontact Linnett~ Phillips at (248) 758-3029. If contractor is not in possession of a Pontiac Business 
license then contraptor shall procure said license once awarded. 

• Agree to Section 3 Clause (Appendix "B") 

• Debarment"Service provider has not been suspended from fecteral benefits as listed on 
www.epls.gov 

• Conflict of Interest regulations found in 24CFR 570.611 (Appendix 11C") 

• The selected service provider will not use funds for lobbying, and will disclose ~my lobbying 
activities 

• Other Applicable State and Local Laws 

CDBG Demolition Bid Batch 17 Page 8 of23 



VIII. SUBMISSIONS 

All submissions (and original and one copy) must be hand delivered or mailed In a sealed envelope 
(NOTE: Electronic or faxed submissions will not be accepted) with "Home Demolition Bid Batch 16" 
clearly marked, on the front to Thursday, August 26, 2021 at 3:00 P.M. EDT to the following: 

City of Pontiac Clerk's Office, 47450 Woodward Avenue, 1st Floor, Pontiac, Ml 48342 

The City of Pontiac reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids, either in part or in whole to waive 
any formalities and to accept the Bid. 

IX. BONDING REQUIREMENTS . 

a) A bi9 guarantee i~ r~guired 1rom each ,bldde,r equivalep, to 6'.3/0 of the pld Price. The "bid guarantee" 
shall consi · · t such as a bid bond or certified check accompanying a bid ance 
that the bid of his bid ex'ecute such C I ntractual documents as rn uired 
within the ti . be Included with bid. 

','II • ; 

NQIE; If the Cgnjracts or §ut,gontracts exceed $5o,oog,oo vou wm n~eg bl & c) 

b) A performance bond shall be delivered to the Agency when the contract is executed on the part of the 
contractor for 100% of the contract price. A "performance bond" Is on executed in connection with a 
contract to secure fulfillment of all the contractor's obligations under such contract. 

c) A payment bond (labor & material bond) shall be delivered to the Agency when the contract is 
executed on the part of the contractor for 100% of the contract price. A "payment bond" is one executed 
in connection with a contrapt to assure payment as required by law of all persons supplying labor and 
material in the execution of th~ work provided for in the contract. 

If a contractor fails to deliver the required bonds, the bid )Nill be rejected. The City of Pontiac reserves the 
right to reject a bid if the contractor can,t provide a performance and payment bond within 5 days of a 
signed contract. 

X. INCOMETAXES 

Contractor agrees to contact City of Pontiac Income Tax Division, Audit and Compliance Section, 47450 
Woodward, Pontiac, Michigan, 48342, telephone (248) 758-3092, to establish reporting and withholding 
obligations under the City of Pontiac Income Tax Ordinance. Contractor will require the same of all 
subcontractors employing labor under this contract. 

Contractor is required to withhold City of Pontiac income tax from wages paid to: 

(1) Pontiac resident employees regardless of where they work for the employer; and. 
(2) Nonresident employees for work performed in the City. 
(3) Contractor is also required to file City of Pontiac income tax returns reporting and paying 

income tax on any net profits earned in the City. 
J '' :WPb,p:age~: http://www.potHiao.tni.us/departments/income tax/index.php 

rf~~'f¢fm~'~: htlJ)://www.pontlac.mi.us/departments/incon1y tax/tax fom1s.php 

Cl,)BG Demolition Bid Batch 17 Page9o03 



APPENDIX A 

City of Pontiac CDB9 -Demolition Program 

) CDBG Demolition Bid Batch l 'l < 
Bidding Contractor: 
Company Name: Yu-l~ ~N ,tr~<:;-, 
Representative: -:VJ N C.cN -r; \-\ o kJ A \'Z..Q 
Address::{ I I$ CJ t;;. ,ANW l)l?,!3of2 -r-e., 
Office#: ',3l3 .. 35(,., .,,:;oo 

, . City: E7~r'1:-1 90;-r'\~ '" · ,)1p
0

:4·e1·1~· 
Fax#: ]J1:-359·~ 5160 

Cell#: '3 \ o .,. 3i.;\j· .. >1 ?"o~ " Email: ,<.e-r<.MV
0

1 /v ~ MSN, 'c..~' 
,, ~ 

'; 
License#: ?-.lo i '? ... 2 l ·1 e2. 
Contractor will provide all labor & 111aterial for tlie following service work: The Co~tactor Is re;ponsible for paying all fees 
associated with demolition permits, sewer caps including Water and Sewer Services. 

Asbestos Surveys Batch 17 for the properties can be found here: 
https://wV;Jw,dropbox.com/sh/fsuekddk8crqg75/AAAM0zXv7BNClnF045U0uU31~ 

Bid Price per Residential Property: 

64-14-21-362-043 
529 N Perry $ b ,S@C) . .'-
Cost in Words for 5~9 N Perry %,x' ·n-1-ov.5hrJD9 ):N,e. +lvNP'P-c:--0) o\&\jT1 ◊ o\...l,A--,f-...S, 

Lot N Perry $ I 1 'i G O ~·---
Cost in Words for Lot N Perry qNE T1-4ov.s·,:,,NJ:> 1 ty!N 6, 1;1 vN DI~is.o ";I > I 'J<:·-ry JJo ,'-':-"A11)-J -: 

64-19-04-102-001 -195 S Blvd W $ 3 )JO~'t ... 
Cost in Words for 195 S Blvd W 'ft~ 112-·ry otJfE 1+1()J$Af'I01 :rtrrt N/tv'G pot-LAf2.J:\• 

64-14-28-436-019 
497 E Pike {Garage Only) $ 2 1 eoo ,--

. CostinWords497EPike ,Xft:JO '(HouJA1vD, 1;3.IG+-11 t/-Jf'lf;?~l:?'o, 

64-14-30-4 77-010 

68 Mark $ 14, 5boJ·-
Cost in Words for 68 M~rk ·& vf?-TG:-Rkt:l ·n-1ouzt;,r-Jt> ,, •fJYE- H vNDg.E;p ,, .> I '/--"f'Y, Oc1..-\.A\1$, 

64-19-04-151 ·006 

567 Franklin $ J 7, (;55 ~ -
Cost in Words for 567 Franklin .s i{'l/s1'1 'fe.EN 

64-14-21 .. 264-007 
654 E Kennett $ 6 , o 4o. _. 
Cost in Words for 554 E Kennett 

1
::, \ X '(8ou..5ANJ>,. =r=-§)P-'T>:' J)oL.~P-J. 

64-14-21-331-016 

124 Oliver $ I I, b1oe·-
' 

CDBG Demolition Bid Batch 17 Page 10 of23 



Costin Wprds for 124 Oliver f.t-~~€,N f(-,h::sJSA-rvD) $ IX' JJ.)Nf>€;~D I f0~7 Y. O,cn-LAfLS 

64-14-22-351-011 (Two Duplex's 778, 782, 786 & 790) 

778Universlty $ 1,.790,-
Cost In Words for 778 University ,:St;;.VSt?£t8EN n;tov..SAtvD, 5 r;;:.V6f'-! (-tU,NO P-fD, NINeTY pol-LABJ; 

64-14-33-102-013 

129 Judson $ I v1a·2_-. ·-
Cost in Words for 129 Judson EL-~VE:N: tt::lux?SAN D>' ;;.sy1p.~ f:;tvf'::JDf¼ ()) tZ.t 0'4 Ti T'-..D (X;t.LAR-3 

64-1 ~-04-134 .. 016 
200 Cedardale $ , 1 100 • -
Cost in Words for 200 Cedardale zliyir-..1 f+-JayS'AN Dl NI !'Je HU N,DP-E;-0 1 ;'5 IX ·r}: Do l-t...A P-.S .. 

64-14-20-452-011 
79 Home $ 6,4 9o,·-
Cost in Words for 79 tiome e.1dfr -r1-1 vu::JANI> /''Foy(¼ HuND~D ,1 N/tvEc'f D ';->u..Af<-5. 

64-14-28-459•035 
415 Auburn $ 2-7, /:JO~ -
Cost in Words for 415 Auburn r,Jif;N'TY 2E,Vi2N ·n-101.JS.(\ND. 01-CG lf--JNQ'2-e() Tf+(l2.7'r' /)Ol-1-AR.; 

f I i 

64-14-28-331-01 O 

104 N Jessie $ I J 800 .. ·-
Cost in Words for 104 N Jessie JE !--e. y EN "(,../av .SAND) r;:.1 G ft7 ffvl-lD f!-,tSQ , Do L. LAfZ.-5,, 

64-14-28-303-001 
104 Union $ ;2.@. 1:?-o,. ·-
Cost in Words for 104 Union 11J.Jr&.NrY ~I '°H-7 7].+ov.;,At{D 1 £0 uf-. H Ut-JOf2.ED ~<..1SN7}'-1 D:1uA1~ 

GrandTotal$ 2o?J 666 .. --
Grant Total Cost in Words I w o -~ Ut-;\ o R-,&.D :£l Vt;;. . -n-f ovSA(j D) :;> l ¥ HywDP-ef.>; 

The City reserves the right to remove any of the homes listed above and have the contractor hold 
the price for the remaining homes listed. 

CDSGDemolition Sid Batch 17 Page 11 of23 

~ 



Please Note: Contractor will have a maximum of 30 days from the 
time the contract is signed to complete the project. 

Company Name: 

\/IN-C-ON ING-, 

Representative Signature: 

Prl:::!:4 
Date: 

'?86,6 &.~·-i, I 

COBG Demolition Bid Batch 17 Page 12 of23 

7 



Site Specifications: OCR Batch 17 

Batch Parcel ID Address street Name Type Sq. Year Stories Basement . Garage 
Ft, Built So, Ft. So. Ft 

17 14-21-352-043 529 N Perrv Comm. 631 1920 1 
17 14·21-352-042 Lot N Perrv 

'' 

comm. Lot 1 
17 19-04-102-001 195 South Blvd W Comm. 3982 1910 1 
17 14-28-436-0i9 497 EPlke Garaae 1956 360 
17 14-30-477·010 68 Mark SFR 1sss·· 1931 2 890 333 
17 19-04·151-006 567 Franklin Duolex 2354 1956 1 
11' 14-21-254-007 554 E Kennett SFR 763 1920 1 763 293 
17 14·21-331-016 124 Oliver SFR 1032 1920 2 543 360 
17 14..:22.:.:351- 778/782 University Duplex 1198 1942 1 1198 

011 
14-22-351- 786/790 University Duplex 1198 1942 1 1198 

011 
17 14-33-102-013 129 E Judson SFR 1502 1910 2 720 
17 '19-04-134-016 200 Cedardale SFR 928 1929 1 754 373 
17 14-20-452-011 79 Home SFR 892 1910 1.75 510 260 
17 14-28-459-035 415 Auburn Comm. 4178 1921 1 
17 14-28-331-010 104 N Jessie Comm. 1416 1940 1 
17 14-28-303-001 104 Union Comm. 3968 1920 

CDBG Demolition Bid Batch 17 Page 13 of23 

/11 



The Undersigned hereby declares that he/she or they are the only person{s), firm or corporation interested 
in' this bid as principal, and that it is made without any connection with any other person(s), firm or 
corporation submitting a bid for the same. 
( 

The Undersigned hereby declares that they have read and understand all conditions are outlined in the 
Request for Bids and that the bid Is made in accordance with same. 

The Undersigned hereby declares that any person(s) employed by the City of Pontiac Michigan who has 
direct or indirect personal or financial interest in this bid or in any portion of the profits that may be derived 
therefrom has been identified and the Interest disclosed by separate attachment. (Please include in your 
disclosure anv interest which you know of, An example of a direct Interest would be a City employee who 
would be paid to perform services under this bid. An example of an indirect interest would be a City 
employee who is related to any officers, employees, principal or shareholders of your firm or to you. If in 
doubt as to status or interest, please disclose to the extent known). 

The proposer acknowledges the receipt of Addenda numbered -M--f-6, ____ ....,...,,..... 

Note: Bids must bear the handwritten signature of a duly authorized member or employee of the 
organization submitting a bid. 

Company Name: ~/ ! N- (1'';) tJ /t«:.. r . 

Representative Signature:_. -~-..µ.~:__...::;...._-1--,.-.,....-.,--.--------.----.,...,....--

Print Name: VJ N Ct::,1,rT 

Title: \J l CE. - ~I DEN 1 Date: c;;:>[,-::3 /i l. / '2.0 2.-, I 

Office# 313--35~> 7000 Cell# 3fLJ•-34S--'1°oo, 

· Website: \(INCot-H-A\. l.O<"\ Federal Tax I.D. #: 83·· 42 .. 9 ;3 O,S:Q 

CDBG Demolition Bid Batch 17 Page 14 of23 



APPENDIX B 
Section 3 clause 135.38 
All section 3 covered contracts shall include the following clause (referred to as the section 3 clause): 

A. The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of section 3 of the 
Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u (section 3). The 
purpose of section 3 is to ensure that employment and other economic opportunities generated 
by HUO assistance or HUD-assisted projects covered by section 3, shall, to the greatest extent 
feasible, be 9irected to low- and very low-income persons, particularly per$ons who are 
recipients of HUD as$istance for housing. 

B. The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 135, which 
implement section 3. As evidenced by their execution of this contract, the parties to this 
contract certify that they are under no contractual or other impediment that would prevent them 
from complying with the part 135 regulations. _ 

C. The contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or representative of workers with 
which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other understanding, if any, a 
notice advising the labor organization or workers' representative of the contractor's 
commitments under this section 3 clause, and will post copies of the notice In conspicuous 
places at the work site where both employees and applicants for training and employment 
positions can see the notice. The notice shall describe the section 3 preference, shall set forth 
minimum number and job titles subject to hire, availability of apprenticeship and training 
positions, the qualifications for each; and the name and location of the person(s) taking 
applications for each of the positions; and the anticipated date the work shall begin. 

D. The contractor agrees to include this section 3 clause in every subcontract, subject to 
compliance with regulations in 24 CFR part 135, and agrees to take appropriate action, as 
provided in an applicable provision of the subcontract or in this section 3 clause, upon a finding 
that the subcohtractor is in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR part 135. The contractor will 
not subcontract with any subcontractor where the contractor has notice or knowledge that the 
subcontractor has been found in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR part 135. 

E. The contractor will certify that any vacant employment positions, including training positions, 
that are filled· (1) after the contractor ls selected but before the contract is executed, and (2) 
with persons other than those to whom the regulations of 24 CFR part 135 require employment 
opportunities to be directed, were not filled to circumvent the contractor's obligations under 24 
CFR part 135. 

F. Noncompliance with HU D's regulations in 24 CFR part 135 may result in sanctions, termination 
of this contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD assisted contracts. 

G. With respect to work performed in connection with section 3 covered Indian housing 
assistance, section 7(b) of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (25 
U.S.C. 450e) also applies to the work to be performed under this contract. Section 7(b) requires 
that to the greatest extent feasible (i) preference and opportunities for training and employment 
shall be given to Indians, and (ii) preference in the award of contracts and subcontracts shall 
be given to Indian organizations and lndian"owned Economic Enterprises. Parties to this 
contract that are .subject to the provisions of section 3 and section 7(b) agree to comply with 
section 3. 

CDBG Demolition Bid Batch 17 Page 15 of23 



APPENDIXC 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENT 

"Code of Standards of Conduct," 24 CFR Part 85.36 (b) (3): (Applicable to Community 
Development Block Grant Expenditures) 

(3) Grantees and sub-grantees. will maintain a written code of standards of conduct 
governing the performance of their employees engaged in the award and administration of 
contracts. No emph:;,yee, officer or agent of the grantee or sub-grantee shall participate in 
selection, or in the award or administration of a contract supported by Federal funds if a conflict of 
Interest, real or apparent, would be involved. Such a conflict would arise when: 

Date: 

(i) The employee, officer or agent, 
(ii) Any member of his immediate family, 
(iii) His or her partner, or 
(iv) An organization which employs, or is about to employ, any of the above, has a 

financial or other interest in the firm selected for award. The grantee's or su~ 
grantee's officers, employees or agents will neither solicit nor accept gratuities, · 1 

favors or anything of monetary value from contractors, potential contractors, or 
parties to sub agreements. Grantee and sub grantees may set minimum rules 
where the financial interest is not substantial or the gift is an unsolicited item of 
nominal intrinsic value. To the extent permitted by State or local law or regulations, 
such standards of conduct will provide for penalties, sanctions, or other disciplinary 
actions for violations of such standards by the grantee's and sub grantee's officers, 
employees, or agents, or by contractors or their agents. The awarding agency may 
In regulation provide additional prohibitions relative to real, apparent, or potential 
conflicts of interest. 

Signature: 

CPBG Demolition Btd·Batch 17 P,ge 16 of23 / 



APPENDIX D INSURANCE 

1. INSURANCE 

The Contractor shall provide to protect the City of Pontiac as outlined below. 

2. LIMITS OF INSURANCE (See also Section 1 of the General Conditions) 

The contractor, or any of their subcontractors, shall not commence work under this contract until they have 
obtained the insurance required under this paragraph, and shall keep such insurance in force during the 
entire life of this contract. All coverage shall be with Insurance companies licensed and admitted to do 
business in the State of Michigan and acceptable to the City of Pontiac. The requirements below should 
not be interpreted to limit the liability of the Contractor. All deductibles and SI R's are the responsibility of 
the Contractor. 

1) Workers' Compensation Insurance The Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life of 
this contract, Workers' Insurance, including Employers Liability Coverage, in accordance with all 
applicable statutes of the State of Michigan with a minimum limit of $100,000 each accident for any 
employee 

2) Commercial General Liabjlity Insurance The Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life 
of this contract, Commercial General Uability Insurance on an "Occurrence Basis" with limits of 
liability not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence and aggregate for Personal Injury, Bodily Injury 
and Property Damage, coverage shall include the following extensions; (A) ContractuGll Liability; 
(B) Products and Completed Operations; (C) Independent Contractors Coverage; (D) Broad Form 
General Liability Extensions or equivalent: (E) Deletion of all Explosion, Collapse and Underground 
(XCU) Exclusions, if applicable; (F) Per project aggregate. 

3) Motor Vehicle Liabmtv The Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life of this contract 
Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance, including Michigan No-Fault Coverage, with limits of liability of 
not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence co'mbined single limit for Bodily Injury and Property 
Damage. Coverage shall Include all owned vehicles, all non-owned vehicles, and all hired vehicles. 

4) Addjtjonaf Insured: Commercial General Liability and Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance, as 
de$cribed above, shall include an endorsement stating the following shall be Additionally Insured~ 
The City of Pontiac, all elected and appointed officials,, all employees and volunteers, all boards, 
commissions, and/or authorities and board members, Including emploJ'.ees ,aryd v9lunteers. It Is 
understood and agreed by naming The City of Pontiac as additional insured, coverage afforded ls 
considered to be primary and any other insurance The City of Pontiac may have in effect shall be 
considered secondary and/or excess. 

5) Cancenatlon Notjce: All policies, as described above, shall Include an endorsement stating that 
is it understood and agreed Thirty (30) days, Ten (1 O) days for non-payment of premium, Advance 
Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, Reduction, and/or Material Change shall be sent to: 
Linnette Phillips, City of Pontiac 47450 Woodward Ave. Pontiac, Ml48342' 

· 6) proof of Insurance Coverage: The Contractor shall provide The City of Pontiac at the time that 
the contracts are returned by him/her for execution, two (2) copies of Certificates of Insurance as 
well as the required endorsements. 

CDBG Demolition Bid Batch 17 Page 17 of23 



7) Explratjon of PolJcjes: If any of the above coverage expires during term of this contract, the 
Contractor shall deliver renewal certificates and/or policies to the City of Pontiac at least ten (10) 
days prior to the expiration date. 

3. INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE 

The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the City of Pontiac for and from all claims, demands 
payments, suits, actions, recoveries, and judgments; of every name and description, brought or recovered 
ag~inst them or.to property received or sust~ined by any person or p~rsons whomsoever by reason of any 
action or omission of the said Contractor, his agents, servants, or his Contractors in the performance of 
said Work, or by or In consequence of any negligence or carelessness in connection with the same or on 
account of the death of or Injuries to persons who shall be engaged in or about the work to be performed 
under this Contract; and on account of liability or obligation imposed directly or indirectly upon the City of 
Pontiac by reasons of any law of the State or the United States, now existing or which shall hereafter be 
enacted, imposing any liability or obligation, or providing for compensation to any person or persons on 
account of or arising from the death of, or Injuries to employees. Said Contractor shall pay, settle, 
compromise and procure the discharge of any and all such claims and all such losses, damages, 
expenses, liabilities, and obligations, and shall defend at his own cost and expense any and all claims, 
demands, suits and actions made or brought against the City of Pontiac, and all Additional Named 
Assured, for or upon any such claim. In case the said Contractor shall fail, neglect, or refuse to comply 
with any of the provisions of this paragraph, the City of Pontiac may, in order to protect Itself, and all 
Additional Named Assured, from liability, defend any such claim, demand, suits or action and pay, settle, 
compromise, and procure the discharge thereof, in which case the said Contractor shall repay the City of 
Pontiac any and all such loss, damage and expense, including attorney's fees paid, suffered or Incurred 
by the City of Pontiac, and all Additional Named Assured, In so doing. So much of the monies due, or to 
become due, to said Contractor under this agreement as shall be deemed necessary by the City of Pontiac, 
shall or may be retained by the City of Pontiac until every and all such claims, demands, suits, actions, 
recoveries, judgments, liabilities and obligations have been settled and discharged and evidence to that 
effect furnished the City of Pontiac, or the City of Pontiac may collect the same in whole or In part in any 
lawful manner from said Contractor. The Contractor shall provide adequate insurance until his work Is 
completed, with a reasonable insurance company which meets with the approval of the City of Pontiac, 
covering liability to the public for loss resulting from injury to persons or damage to property arising out of 
or caused by his operations, acts, or omissions, or those of his subcontractors, agents, or employees in 
procuring work for the City of Pontiac. Such Insurance coverage shall be in such amounts as are provided 
in public liability and property damage section herein, provided, however, that such insurance coverage 
shall include an endorsement providing that the contractual exclusion shall be removed or in the 
alternative, contractual insurance shall be afforded. If the former, such endorsement shall contain specific 
language as follows: 

I 

"It is hereby agreed that the contractual exclusion does not apply to the contract entered into between the 
insured and the City of Pontiac, and each Additional Named Assured as their interest may appear for the 
project work. Such insurance coverage shall also contain an endorsement guaranteeing that thirty (30) 
days' notice to the City of Pontiac and each Additional Named Assured, shall be given in writing prior to 
the cancellation of, or change in any such insurance." 

4. EXTRAS 

No claim for extra compensation because of either decrease or Increase in quantities will be allowed. 
Contractor and Owner mutually agree that in the event the Contractor is to perform services beyond, or at 
variance with the Scope and total price of this Contract, such services must be mutually agreed to, in 
advance, in writing, with agreed upon price included. Accordingly, claims for the payment of 

CPBG Demolition Bid Batch 17 Page 18 of23 



Extra Services must be substantiated by the Contractor with a written order signed by Owner or his 
authorized agent. 

J 

5. EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 

The Contractor must submit Emergency (24 Hours) phone numbers on the company letterhead when 
submitting contracts. 

6. INCLUDED WORK 

All Items of work noted on the Plans or In the Specifications that are not specifically noted in the bid, shall 
be considered as included with the contract and shall be completed at no extra cost to the Owner. 

7. SUB-CONTRACTS 

The Contractor shall not execute:an Agreement with any Sub-Contractor or sub-subcontractor or permit 
any Sub-Contractor or sub~subcontractor to perform any work included in this Contract without the prior 
written consent of owner. · 

Certified by: V, N c.e.,,rr 1--i-o NA£?£?-

Its; \,/1cr= - P~s1Qrav1 

Signature: ~ 

Printed Name: V \N C,.f;;:!Y'I Y-o\,0 AW 

Date: _ _..::::D::,...:C::,;::c,-1-l.,!:?-....::0::::..·.,_/-=""2..o~r~"2-=....i..l _______________ _ 

CpBG Demolition Bid Batch 17 Page 19 of23 



APPENOIXE 
STANDARD FEDERAL EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT SPECIFtpATIONS (EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246) 

a) The equal opportunity clause published at 41 CFR 60-1.4(a) of this chapter Is required to be Included 
in, and is part of, all nonexempt Federal contracts and subcontracts, Including construction 
contracts and subcontracts. The equal opportunity clause published at 41 CFR 60-1.4{b) is 
required to be included In, and is a part of, all nonexempt federally assisted construction contracts 
and subcontracts. In addition to the clauses described above, all Federal contracting officers, all 
applicants and all non-construction contractors, as applicable, shall Include the specifications set 
forth in this section in a.II Federal and federally assisted construction contracts in excess of $10,000 
to be.performed in geographical areas designated by the Director pursuant to Sec, 60-4.6 of this 
part and In construction subcontracts in excess of $10,000 necessary in whole or in part to the 
performance of non-construction Federal contracts and subcontracts covered under the. Executive 
order. 

Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications (Executive 
Order 11246) 

1 As used In these specifications: 

a. "Covered area11 means the geographical area desoribed in the solicitation from which this contract 
resulted; 

b. "Director11 means Director, Office of F~deral Contract Compliance Programs, United States 
Department of Labor, or any person to whom the Director delegates authority; 

c. "Employer identification n,umber'1 means the Federal Social Security number used on the E;:mployer's 
Quarterly Federal Tax Return 1 U.S. Treasury Department Form 941. 

d. "Mlnority11 Includes: 
(I) Black (all persons having origins In any of the Black African racial groups not of Hispanic origin); 
(ii) Hispanic {all persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American or other Spanish 
Culture or origin, regardless of race); 
(iii) Asian and Pacific \slander (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, 
Southeast Asia, the Indian 
Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands); and 
(iv) American Indian or Alaskan Native (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of North 
America and maintaining identifiable tribal affiliations through membership and participation or community 
Identification). 

2. Whenever the Contractor, or any Subcontractor at any tier, subcontracts a portion of the work Involving 
any construction trade, it shall physically include in each subcontract in excess of $10,000 the provisions 
of these specifications and the Notice which contains the applicable goals for minority and female 
participation and which is set forth in the solicitations from which this contract resulted. · 
3. If the Contractor Is participating (pursuant to 41 CFR 60~4.5) in a Hometown Plan approved by the 
U.S. Department of Labor in the covered area either individually or through an associatton, Its affirmative 
action obligations on all work in the Plan area (Including goals and timetables) shall be in accordance with 
that Plan for those trades which have unions participating in the Plan. Contractors must be able to 
demonstrate their participation In and compliance with the provisions of any such Hometown Pian. Each 
Contractor orSubcontractor participating ln an approved Plan is individually required to comply with Its · 
obligations under the EEO clause, and to make a good faith effort to achieve each goal under the Plan in 
each trade In which It has employees. 

CDBG Demolition Bid Batch 17 Page 20 of23 



The overall good faith performance by other Contractors or Subcontractors toward a goal in an approved 
Plan does not excuse any covered Contractor's or .Subcontractor's failure to take good faith efforts to 
achieve the Plan goals and timetables. 

4. The Contractor shall implement the specific affirmative action standards provided in paragraphs 7 a 
through p of these specifications. The goals set forth in the solicitation from which this contract resulted 
are expressed as percentages of the total hours of employment and training of minority and female 
utilization the Contractor should reasonably be able to achieve in each construction trade In which it has 
employees in the covered area. Covered Construction contractors performing construction work in 
geographical areas where they do not have a Federal or federally assisted construction contract shall 
apply the minority and female goals established for the geographical area where the work is being 
performed. Goals are published periodically In the Federal Register in notice form, and such notices may 
be obtained from any Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs office or from Federal procurement 
contracting officers. The Contractor is expected to make substantially uniform progress in meeting its goals 
in each craft during the period specified. 

5. Neither the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement, nor the failure by a union with whom the 
Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement, to refer either minorities .or women shall excuse the 
Contractor's obligations under these specifications, E~ecutive Order 11246, or the regulations 
promulgated pursuant .thereto. 

6. In order for the nonworking training hours of apprentices and trainees to be counted in meeting the 
goals, such apprentices and trainees must be employed by the Contractor during the training period, and 
the Contractor must have made a commitment to employ the apprentices and trainees at the completion 
of their training, subject to the availability of employment opportunities. Trainees must be trained pursuant 
to training programs approved by the U.S. Department of Labor, 

7. The Contractor shall take specific affirmative actions to ensure equal employment opportunity. The 
evaluation of the Contractors compliance with these specifications shall be based upon its effort to achieve 
maximum results from its actions. The Contractor shall· document these efforts fully, and shall implement 
affirmative action steps at least as extensive as the following: 

a. Ensure and maintain a working environment free of harassment, Intimidation, and coercion at all sites, 
and in all facilities at which the Contractor's employees are. assigned to work. The Contractor, where 
possible, will assign two or more women to each constructio.n project. The Contractor shall specifically 
ensure that all foremen, superintendents, and other on-site supervisory personnel are aware of and carry 
out the Contractor's obligation to maintain such a working environment, with specific attention to minority 
or female Individuals working at such sites or in such facilities. 

b. Establish and maintain a current list of minority and female recruitment sources, provide written 
notification to minority and female recruitment sources and to community organizations when the 
Contractor or its unions have employment opportunities available, and maintain a record of the 
organizations' responses. 

c. Maintain a current file of the names, addresses and telephone numbers of each minority and female 
off-the-street applicant and minority or female referral from a union, a recruitment source or community 
organization and of what action was taken. with respect to each such individual. If such individual was sent 
to the union hiring hall for referral and was not referred back to the Contractor by the union or, if referred, 
not employed by the Contractor, this. shall be documented in the file with the reason therefor, along with 
whatever additional actions the Contractor may have taken, 

CDBG Demolition Bid Batch 17 Page21 of23 



d. Provide immediate written notification to the Director when the union or unions with which the Contractor 
has a collective bargaining agreement has not referred to the Contractor a minority person or woman sent 
. by the Contractor, or when the Contractor has other information that the union referral process has 
impeded the Contractor•s efforts.to meet Its obligations. 

e. Develop on-the-job training opportunities and/or participate in training programs for the area which 
expressly include minorities and women, Including upgrading programs and apprenticeship and trainee 
programs relevant to the Contractor's employment needs, especially those programs funded or approved 
by the Department of Labor. The Contractor shall provide notice of these programs to the sources compiled 
under 7b above. 

f. Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy by providing notice of the policy to unions and training 
programs and requesting their cooperation in assisting the Contractor in meeting Its EEO obligations; by 
including it in any policy manual and collective bargaining agreement; by publicizing It in the company 
newspaper, annual report, 
etc.; by specific review of the policy with all management personnel and with all minority and female 
employees at least once a year; and by posting the company EEO policy on bulletin boards accessible to 
all employees at each location where construction work is performed. 

g. Review, at least annually, the company's EEO policy and affirmative action obllgations under these 
specifications with all employees having any responsibility for hiring, assignment, layoff, termination or 
other employment decisions including specific review ofthese items with onsite supervisory personnel 
such as Superintendents, General Foremen, etc., prior to the initiation of construction work at any job site. 
A written record shall be made and maintained identifying the time and place of these meetings, persons 
attending, subject matter discussed, and disposition of the subject matter. 

h. Disseminate the Contractor•s EEO policy externally by Including it in any advertising in the news media, 
specifically including minority and female news media, and providing written notification to and discussing 
the Contractor's EEO policy with other Contractors and Subcontractors with whom the Contractor does or 
anticipates doing business. 

1 

i. Direct its recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority, female and communityorganizations, to 
schools with minority and female students and to minority and female recruitment and training 
organizations serving the Contractor's recruitment area and employment needs. Not later than one month 
prior to the date for the acceptance of applications for apprenticeship or other training by any recruitment 
source, the Contractor shall send written notification to organizations such as the above, describing the 
openings, screening procedures, and tests to be used in the selection process. 

j. Encourage present minority and female employees to recruit other minority persons and women and, 
where reasonable, provide after school, summer and vacation employment to minority and female youth 
both on the site and In other areas of a Contractor's work force. 

k. Validate all tests and other selection requirements where there is an obligation to do so under41 CFR 
Part 60-3. 

I. Conduct, at least annually. an Inventory and evaluation at least of all minority and female personnel for 
. promotional opportunities and encourage these employees to seek or to prepare for, through appropriate 
training, etc., such opportunities. 

m. Ensure that seniority practices, Job classifications, work assignments and other personnel practices, 
do not have a discriminatory effect by continually monitoring all personnel and employment related 
activities to ensure that the EEO policy and the Contractor's obligations under these specifications are 
being carried out. 

CDBG Demolition Bid Batch 17 Page22 of23 



n. Ensure that all facilities and company activities are nonsegregated except that separate or single- user 
toilet and necessary changing facilities shall be provided to assure privacy between the sexes. 

o. Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of offers for subcontracts from minority and female 
construction contractors and suppliers, including circulation of solicitations to minority and female 
contractor associations and other business associations. 

p. Conduct a review, at least annually, of all supervisors' adherence to and performance under the 
Contractor's EEO policies and affirmative action obligations. 

8. Contractors are encouraged to participate in voluntary associations which assist in fulfilling one or more 
of their affirmative action obligations (7a through p}. The efforts of a contractor association, joint contractor
union, contractor-community, or other similar group of which the contractor is a member and participant, 
· may be asserted as fulfilling any one or more of Its obligations under 7a through p of these Specifications 
provided that the contractor actively participates in the group, makes every effort to assure that the gro1,.1p 
has a positive impact on the employment of minorities and women in the industry, ensures that the 
concrete benefits of the program are reflected in the Contractor's minority and female workforce 
participation, makes a good faith effort to meet Its individual goals and timetables, and can provide access 
to documentation which demonstrates the effectiveness of actions taken on behalf of the Contractor. The 
obligation to comply, however, is the Contractor's and failure of such a group to fulfill an obligation shall 
not be.a defense for the Contractor's noncompliance. 

9. A single goal for minorities and a separate single goal for women have been established. The 
Contractor, however, is required to provide equal employment opportunity and to take affirmative action 
for all minority groups, both male and female, and all women, both minority and non-minority. 
Consequently, the Contractor may be in violation of the Executive Order if a particular group is employed 
in a substantially disparate manner (for example, even though the Contractor has achieved Its goals for 
women generally, the Contractor may be in violation of the Executive Order if a specific minority group of 
women is underutilized). 

10. The Contractor shall not use the goals and timetable.s or affirmative action standards to discriminate 
against any person because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. 

11. The Contractor shall not enter into any Subcontract with any person or firm debarred from Government 
contracts pursuant to Executive Order 11246. 

12. The Contractor shall carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of these specifications and of 
the Equal Opportunity Clause, including suspension, termination and cancellation of existing subcontracts 
as may be imposed or ordered pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and its lmplemenUng 
regulations, by the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs. Any Contractor who fails to carry out 
such sanctions and penalties shall be in violation of these specifications and Executive Order 11246, as 
amended. · 

13. The Contractor, in fulfilling Its obligations under these specifications, shall implement specific 
affirmative action steps, at least as extensive as those standards prescribed In paragraph 7 of these 
specifications, so as to achieve maximum results from its efforts to ensure equal employment opportunity. 
If the Contractor falls to comply with the requirements of the Executive Order, the implementing 
regulations, or these specifications, the Director shall proceed In accordance with 41 CFR 60-4.8. 

CDBG Oemolition Bid Batch 17 Page 23 of23 



14. The Contractor shall designate a responsible official to monitor all employment related activity to 
ensure that the company EEO policy Is being carried out, to submit reports relating to the provisions hereof 
as may be, required by the Government and to keep records. Records shall at least include for each 
employee the name, address, ,telephone numbers, construction trade, union affiliation If any, employee 
identification number when assigned, social se·curity number, race, sex, status (e.g., mechanic, apprentice 
trainee, helper, or laborer), dates of changes in status, hours worked per week 1n the indicated trade, rate 
of pay, and locations at which the work was performed. Records shall be maintained in an easily 
understandable and retrievable form; however, to the degree that existing records satisfy this requirement, 
contractors shall not be required to maintain separate records. 

15. Nothing herein provided shall be construed ~s a limitation upon the application of other laws which 
establish. different standards of compliance or upon the application of requirements for the hiring of local 
or other area residents (e.g., those under the Public Works Employment Act of 1977 and the Community 
Development Block Grant Program). 

a. The notice set forth in 41 CFR 60-4.2 and the specifications set forth in 41 CFR 60-4.3 replace the 
. New Form for Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Bid Conditions for Federal and Federally 
Assisted Construction published at 41 FR 32482 and commonly known as the .Model Federal EEO 
Bid Conditions, and the New Form shall not be used after the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4 
become effective. {43 FR 49254, Oct. 20, 1978; 43 FR 51401, Nov. 3, 1978, as amended at 45 FR 
65978, Oct. 3, 1980] 

CDBG Demolition Bid Batch 17 Page 24 of23 



, 08/26/2021 

h Statement of Qualifications, Pr. Section 4. Of RFQ. "Home Demolition Bid 
· ·Batch 17" , 

A. Vincent Howard. 313-356-7000. 41130 E.AnArbor Tr., Plymouth, Ml. 
48170. ketchvin@msn,.cpm 734-359-5180 

B. VIN-CON INC. Is a full Demolition, Infrastructure, and Environmental 
Remediation, Contractor. The.owners, and its, officers have been 
successfully performing and completing 100 % , projects of this nature and 
larger since 1990. See attached. Exhibit 7. Letters, and References. 

C. See attached. Exhibit 2. State of Michigan Licenses 

D. See attached. Exhibit 3. Articles of Incorporation. VIN-CON INC. 

E.N/A 

F. N/A 

G. See attached. Exhibit 4. VIN-CON INC. Partial list Responsible staff 
members. 

H. See attached. Exhibit 5. VIN-CON INC. Officers 

I. See attached. Exhibit 6. Certific,ate of Insurance 

J. See Attached. Exhibit 7. Letters and References 

K. No litigation. Current or Previous. 

L. Upon award of Project, VIN-CON INC will begin immediately, following 
all guidelines outlined in the proposal, in addition to local, state and federal 



' ' 

rules. Pay all fees, necessary, pull all permits, and notify all authorities 
: involved with this project. 

M. See attached. Exhibit 8. Bid Bond. 



EXHIBIT 2. 

State of Michigan Licenses 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 
DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING 
AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS 
P.O. BOX 30670. 
LANSING, Ml 48909 

\ 

• Please tell us about your licensing 
~xperience by com~leting our 
anonymous customer ,survey at: 
www,michigan,gov/larasurvey 

VINCENT HOWARD 
41130 E ANN ARBOR TRAIL 
PLYMOUTH MI 48170 

M210523 001 R -0052 

~ : .. .... .. . .. ...... ,. .................... -· .. ·~ ............ ,"'(', 

i STAT~:Qf Hl~HXGAN~bEPARTttENT QF ~lCENSING AND RtGULATORV AFFAIRS ;X 
i auRE:'/i.U, ◊F' PROFESSIONAL LICENSING. ' i 
I · .. RE~IDENTIAL BUILDER I 
! LICENSE 1 
I : 

i VINCENT HOWARD , 
! 41130 E ANN AReOR TRAIL , i PLVMOUT~ MI.. 48170 , . l 
: , l 
1 Ll!;E:N~e: NO, EXPIRATION DATE AUDIT NO , 

\ 2101221782 0_S/31/2022 3413791 \ 
.J{, •-•••-.•••••••h•h••••<• ••••••••• <•••••. •••"-' ........ •••••••••••••••••••• ••••••h • ••--•••••••• ><i 

Complaint Information 
The issuance of this license or permit should not be 
construed as a w~iver or dismissal of any complaints or 

lnquiri 'Reg d'n th· L' n yiolations pending against the licensee, its agents,· 
_es ar I g IS ice se . employees or qualifying officer, 

Please provide your license number on all qorrespondence, 
and when cohtacting the Department. 

www.mlchigan.gov/bpl 

Bur~au of Profes,sionat Licensing 
Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs 
P.O. Box 30670. 
Lans_ing, Ml 48909 

+-~5~7}241-019~ _. 

VINCENT HOWAR» . 

BUREAU OF PROFESSIONAL LICENSING. 

, .· ~ESlDENTIAL 'BUILDER 
'LICENSE 

41130 E ANN.ARBOR TRAIL 
) PLYMOUTH MI 4gt70 

LICENSE: N◊, 

2101221782 



VIN-CON Inc. 
41130 East Ann Arbor Trail 
Plymouth, Ml 48170 

Expiration Date 
, Sil~/2021 

The Michigan Department of Labor and Economic Opportunity (LEO) has reviewed and ·approved your application 
for a Michigan Asbestos Abatement Contractors License. The License Certificate is valid for a period of Qne year. 

The Department is requiring each licensed asbestos abatement contractor to notify the Department of any asbestos 
abatement project exceeding 10 linear feet or 15 square feet of friable asbestos containing material. This notification 
must reach the .qffice of the Asbestos Program at least 10 days before the beginning of each project. If f9r any reason 
there are revisions or modifications. to a notification, your company must notify LEO by FAX (517.284.7700), tele
phone, or email (asbestos@michigan.gov). If the revision is via telephone, your company must follow-up with a for
mal written revision., 

Please be advised, your company must continue to maintain records of post-abatement ~r monitoring results. LEO 
can and may request these.post asbestos abatement monitoring results perioc,iically. Please be reminded that any addi
tional or new employees must be accredited before they engage in any asbestos abatement activities. 

To apply for renewal of this license, please submit an application no sooner than 90 days anc,l no later than 30 days 
before the license expires. The Department must also be notified of any addr(}ss or ownership changes. Project noti
fications and questions regaroing your license should be directed to the Michigan Oepa.rtment of Labor and Economic 
Opportunity, MIOSHA Asbestos Progr~, P.O. Box 30671, Lansing, Michigan 48909, 517.284.7698. 

Michael T. Mason 
.·Industrial Hygiene Manager 



This is to certify that 

in-C n Inc. 
has satisfactorily met the requirements of the Michigan Lead Abatement Act of 1998, 

and is hereby recognized,as a 

LEAD ABATEMENT CONTRACTOR 

Contractor number C-01·064 

This certification entitles the named persons to~ the rights and privileges afforded by the Act, as well 
as the authority to perform .regulated lead:-:-based paint acti0ties in the State of Michigan 

- until December31~ 2019. 

-~ - 11111111 
M6DHHS 1••• 
Michigan OepartmcintorHcallh1.Human.54micc5 Slcdll 

... ~ . .,.,i.·,-.:,-1!"_,C,) i••t.;::•,;t ... •.t: 1\U.t:-_l•tl"\.J...?«' 

DCH-0650 (6/99} 
amended 

~U-1...- ...• 
. . 

. . . 

Manager, HHS " 
Septemberl0,2019 

Authority: P .A.368 of 1978, as 



EXHIBIT 3 

Articles of Incorporation 



· · Filed by Corporations Division Administrator Filing Number: 201957260990 Date: 04/04/2019 

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS 

FILING ENDORSEMENT 

This is to Certify that the ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 

f()r 

VIN-CON INC. 

ID Number: 802~07763 

received by electronic trahsmission ,,n April 04, 2019 , is hereby endorsed. 

File'd on Aprll 04, 2019 , by the Administrator. 

The document is e"ective on the date filed, unless a subsequent effective date within 90 days after 
received date is stated in the document. 

In testimony whereof, I have.hereunto set my 
hand and afflxed the Seal of th~ Department, 
in the City of Lansing, this 4th day 
of April, 2019. 

Jl)l/a Dale, Director 

Corporations, Securities & Commercial Licen$ing Bureav 



, ; \ ,1 RACHELLE ~LEARY 41130 E. ANN ARBOR TRAlL, PLYMOUTH, Ml 481?0 USA , , IJ i 
: i - - . . .:=:::::-.:::::::::=~-! i 
·. i ARTICLE , VI 1· ~ 
j 'Any actipn required or permitted under the Act to be taken at an annual or special meeting of sharehol.ders may be taken without a i ; .• j 
, .meeting, without prior notice, and without a vote, If consents in writing, setting forth the action so taken, are signed by the holders of . 
!· outstandln'g shares that have at least the minimum number of votes that would be necessary'to authorize or take the action at a 1 
i meeting at which all shares entitled to vote on. the action were present and voted, A written consent shall bear the date of signature of •:~ 
, the shareholder that signs the consent. Written consents are not effective to take corporate action unless within 60 days after the H 
f record date for determining shareholders entitled to express consent to or to dissent from a proposal without a meeting, written ij l consents (lated not more than 10 days before the record date and signed by a sufficient number of shareholders to take the action are ~ 
f delivered to the corporation. Delivery shall be to the corporation's registered office, Its principal place of business, or an officer or agent ij r: of the cwporatlon that has custody of the minutes of the proceedings of Its shareholders. Delivery made to a corporation's registered ➔ ! .,office sha~I be by hand or by certlfled or registered mall, re.turn receipt requested. i 
! Prompt notice, of taking of the corporate action without a meeting by less than unanimous written consent shall be given to shareholders ] 
l that would have been entitled to notice of the shareholder meeting If the action had been taken at a meeting and that have not :1 
.; 'j consented•to the action In writing. An electronic transmission consenting to an action must comply with section 407(3), ~ l . . I ~ 
f - . .. - ·---.. ·------·--------· --·-·· -··- --· -------·---------•---' ~ ! I u,e tha space below for •ddltlOnal Artkles or for contlnuatlon of ,,..,1,"s Artlelea, Please Identify any Artlde being eontln"ed or added, l l 
:, ARTICLE VII l ) 
! ' J -~ I A DIRECTOR OF THE CORPORATION SHALL NOT BE PERSONALLY LIABLE TO THE CORPORATION OR ITS STOCKHOLDERS FOR MONETARY I i 
~ DAMAGES FOR BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DU1Y A$ A DIRECTOR, EXCEPT FOR LIABILITY (I) FOR MN BREACH OF THE DIRECTOR'S Dl,ITY OF l 1 
~ ' LOYALTY TO THE CORPORATION OR ITS STOCKHOLDERS, {II) FOR ACTS OR OMISSIONS NOT IN GOOD FAITH OR THAT INVOLVE I i 
j INTENT,IONAL MISCONDUCT OR A KNOWING VIOLATION OF LAW, (Ill) FOR VIOLATION OF SECTION 551 OF THI: MICHlGAN BUSINESS i • 
I CORPORATION ACT, OR (IV) FOR ANY TRANSACTION FROM WHICH THE DIRECTOR DERIVED ANY IMPROPER PERSONAL BENEFIT. IF THE l ~ 
~ MICHIGAN BUSINESS CORPORATION ACT IS AMENDED AFTER THIS PROVISION IS INCLUDED IN THE ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION TO i , 
§ AUTHORIZE CORPORATE ACTION FURTHER El,lMINATING OR UMmNG THE PERSONAL LIABILITY OF DIRl;CTORS, THEN THE LIABILITY OF A l ~ 
i. DIRECTOR OF THE CORPORATION SHALL BE ELIMINATED OR LIMITED TO THE: FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY THE MICHIGAN BUSINESS I J 
i . CORPORATION ACT, AS SO AMENDED, , / 
1 ! j 

~ ANY REPEAL OR MODlFlCATION OF THE FOREGOING PARAGRAPH BY THE STOCKHOLDERS OF THE CORPORATION SHALL NOT ADVERSELY ! l .f Afflt:CT Am RIGHT OR PROTEcnON OF A DIRECTOR OF THE CORPORATION EXISTING AT THE TIME OF SUCH REPEAL OR MODIFICATION, ! 1 
~ i ; 
\ -- ·-------·---- , __ ,, __ ,., ___ , .... .,_,_,__ -·--:::..-:::::.:::.-=.:-..::::=:::.·:-=:-:::::==.; t 
~ f 1 
~ ~ 
1 Signed this 4th Day of April, 2019 by the lncorporator(s), : \ , I . 

t I i 
\ I •.l 

s 1-,:..;::..:;::.:~~,;..:..;..----..-----.--r-......... -,-,-~.......,--.-.--~--~---.-,------.-..,....,--~.,..........,...~~..,.....,.........,~7 t ~ 
IL.......--~ ......... -..,.._-~---~--------~-__,...--~---,,~~---------~---~·' J By selecting ACCEPT, I hereby acknowledge that thl$ electronic document Is being signed In acc;ordance with the Act. I further certify I j 

· f that to the best of my knowledge the information provided Is true, accurate, and In compliance with the Act, l i 
~ · . e Decline t Accept I ·1 . i.........-----------·--·-----------··--·-----·"-----·-·-·- _, .... -- ,,_.,, ........... , .... ___ ,,., .... ·--· ·--·. - ·•-•-'•--·"•-····" __ J r. 

~ 



CSCUC0.641 (Rev. 10/17) 

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS 
CORPORATIONS, SECURITIES & COMMERCIAL LICENSING BUREAU 

Date Rer.eived l~c1I (FOR BUREAU. USE ONLY)' 
. 

Thia dQeurrKmt i$ effe.ctiv$ on th~ date filed, unleas a 
subsequent effective date within 90 days after re<:elved 
date is 8tatei;I In the document 

Name 
Oenlse Whlteh1;1ad-Couzens, l.ansky, Fealk, EHls, Roeder & ~ar, P.C. 

'Address 

39395 W. 12 Mile Road, Suite 200 
City State ZIPOodo EXPIRATION PATE: Farmington HIiis Michigan 48331 DECEMBER 31, 

Oooument will ~ rotumed to then.me and acklre5$. you enter aboVe, ~ 
If left blank, document wlll be returned to tho registered ()fflce. 

CERTIFICATE OF ASSUMl'!D NAME 
For use by Corporations, Umited Partnerships and ~imltod l,.labllity companies 

(Please read infonnatlon and Instructions en the last page) 

Pursuant to the pf'Qvislons of Aot 284, Pub/lo Acts of 1972 (profit corporations), or Act 162, Pub/lo Acts of 1982 (nonprofit corporations), Aot 
213, Public Aots of 1982 (lfmited partnerships), or Act 23, Pub/I<; Acts of 1993 (limited llab/Nty companies), the undersigned execute the 
following Certificate: 

1. The name of the corporation, limited partnership, or limited llablllty company is: 
VIN-CON INC. 

2. The Identification number assigned by the Bureau Is: ... r_:, _: ___ : · __ so_2_30_1_1a_3_...,:_, .... : ___ : __.I 

3. The assumed name under which business Is to be tranaaoted is: 

VINCON 

4. This document is hereby signed as required by the Aot.. . 

COMPLETE ITEM 6 ON PAGE 3 IF THIS NAME IS ASSUMED BY MORE THAN ONE ENTITY. 

/J 5>
11

- dA '/ 
$ignedthls . .r- . dayof _·-"''~-;,.,; ....... ~-.,;.. ________ , ,_,...,2_0_19......,..._ 

By ✓wJ&~ 
Rachelle Cleary President 
(Type or Print NIIIT19) {Type or Print i'iile ~r Capacity) ' 

(Umitml Pa'rtnenihlpa Only- lndk:ato NWl'HI of Genml P!lrtnor, tr 11\e a.nen'il f>Qrtner ~ a corporation or olher'enttty) 



CSCl,JC0--541 (Rev.10/17) 

Preparers Name Denise VVhltehead 

Bueiness Telephone Number ,..(_24_B__..) __ 4_8_0-_s_eo_o _____ _ 

INFORMATION AND INSTRUCTIONS 

1. This form may be used to draft your Certtficate of Assumed Name. A document required or permltted to be filed under the act 
cannot be filed unless it contains the minimum information required by the act. The format provided contains only the minimal 
Information required to make the document fileabk! and may not meet your needs. This is a legal document and agency staff 
cannot provide lf:lgal advice. 

2. Submit one original of this document. Upon filing, the document will be added to the records of the Corporations, Securities & 
Commercial Licensing Bureau. The original will be returned to your registered office address unless you enter a different address In 
the box on the front of this document. 

Since this document wlll be maintained on electronic format, lt is lmp0rtant that the fillng be legible. Documents with pQQr black and 
white c;ontrast, or otherwise Illegible, Will be rejected. 

3, The certificate Is effective for a period expiring on December 31 of the fifth full calendar year following the year In which It was 
filed, unless a Certificate of Termination Is filed. 

4. VVhen the same name Is assumed by more than one entity, each participant corporation, limited partnership, or limited liability 
company must slmultaneously,file a separate CMffioate of Assumed Name. The assumed name Will be effective for the same 
period for each participant. 

6, Item 1 - The name Is the name contalned In the original, amended, or restated Articles of Incorporation, Certificate of Limited 
Partnenshlp, or Articles of Organization, The name of a foreign oorporatlon, limited partnership, or Umlted llablllty company, is that 
name under which it obtained Its authority to transa~ business or conduct affairs In Michigan. 

·' . 
a. Item 2 - Enter the Identification number assigned by the Bureau. If this number is unknown, leave it blank, 

7. The Certificate must be signed by: 
CORPORATIONS: an aut.horized offlCE!r or agent. 
LIMlTED PARTNERSHIPS:· a general partn$r. 
DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANIES: a manager, if managed by one or more managers, a member if 

management remains in the members, or an authorized agent of .the company. . . . 
FOREIGN LIMITED LIABILITY QOMPANll;S: a person with authority to. do so under the laws of the Junsd1otlon of 

Its organization. 

a. NONREFUNDABLE FEES: Make remittance payable to the State of Michigan. lnciude entity name end ldentlflcat!on number on 
check or money order. 

CORPORATION OR LIMITED PARTNERSHIP .......................................... $10.00 
LIMITED l.lABILITY OOMPANY ............................................................... ,. $26.00 

Submit with check or money order by mall: 

Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs 
Corporations; Securities & Commercial Licensing Bureau 
Corporations Olvlslon 
P.O. Box 30054 
Lansing, Ml 46909 

0OFS (Corporations Online Flllng Syatem): 

To submit In person: 

2501 Wood4=lke Circle 
Okemos, Ml 
Telephone: (617) 241-8470 

Fees may be paid by check, money order, Vl$A. MasterCard, 
or Dlseovar when delivered In petaon to our office. 

This document may be oompleted and submitted online at www.mlchlgan.gov/oorpfileonllna. 

Fees.may be paid by VISA, MasterCard, or Discover. 

Doc::umente that are endorsed filed are available atwww.mtchlgan.gov/cofP$ntlty~reh, If the submitted doeument la not flleable, the nptlce of refusal to 
fife and doe1,1ment will be available at the Rejet:lll<f Filings Searoh website at www.mlchlg.an.gov/c:orprejectedseerth. 

LARA la an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids, serviees and other reuonabl8 acxx,mmodattons are available upon request to Individuals 
w'rth dlaabllltles •. 



EXHIBIT 4 

List of Responsible Staff Members 



PROFILE 

Vincent Howard 

41130 E. Ann Arbor Tr. 
Plymoul;h, Michigan 48170 

310345-7000 

Ov~r thirty years in the construction ind1,1stry, Licensed Bµil<;ler/ General Contractor in Michigan and 

Cal.ifornia. Self employe<;l Suc;c;essful l;>l!siness owner since 1990, in the building, 4~molition, 

infrastructure, and ~nvironmental remediation industry. A dynamic lead~r, good communicatc;,r, and 
stro~ understandins of ~hat it takes to run a successful contracting business. 

EXPERIENCE 

PRESENT 
Vice President, VIN-CON INC; Plymouth MI. 

Involved with all aspects of the business, including contract negotiations, estimating, fi~ld operations, 
site safety; state, fe<;leral and local regulations 

President, Vince Howard,lnc. LosAngeles, CA. 200~-2018 
Licensed Builder/ General Contractor. Design Build Residential and C-ommercial buildings. Negotiate 

with clients, work with architects build or reh~b structures. 

President, Paloma Contracting, Detroit, MI. 2000-2005 
Purchase and develop land foi; both residential and commercial prqperties, Plymouth, Dearborn, and 

Dearborn Heights. Acquite all state and local permits inc;luding wetland permits where necessary. Self 

Perform all site work, Infrastructure, and CQ!'J,crete , StnlGtural ~d fiat work. 

Pre$ident, Enkon Environmental Services, Inc. Prep~Con, Inc Livonia, Ml 

Full service environmental remediation, demolition, and infrastructure company. 

Underground Storage Tank removal. Hazardous Waste remedial services. 

EDUCATION 
Ferris State University. 1984-1986. CMl Engineering 

University Of Michigan Dea,rborn :2.oo:2.""2004 

University California at Los Angeles 2005-2007 



SKILLS/ CERTIFICATIONS 
Licensed Builder. State. of Mi. ~rtified Asbestos Inspector, Lead inspector Risk Assessor 

CDL Ha.zMat certified. Licensed in all Heavy equipment 

/ 



Appropriate refre ·.
exam must be tak 

. Ct'!rtffication f:)ef or, 

~ 

141918 

ent Howard 
. ·. ~~~J).i'··~r . 

Lead Ins,,... or/Rh,k ~~or 
EBl lnvesti~~ :. · . 

. ,,,./r: 

~ert. number ~~;02.tt 
Ann~al fee due by,~~~--· 

Appropriate refre -'_'··:-~:-~ ~::-::··. ·; · 
· exam must be ta · · · 
certification befoi 

Q~'€f1A t- SYP'r:-fl-ir,:(~PrtJ?; -s 1 "'('~ 6/-rWi'! 
{){:.fi C-!i::12-; ES~\ftv/t£r\,'1 of'~?,o(Z. J 

C. D L A µ A--Z- i..;tr.57' ~J I 
r f•~see?::ro5 ~ SYP,:1!,-V( ;>Qf.-/ 1rJSPt£.::t<-1£.... 

~/YO ~-»avt.so'2..
1 

JrJsfectoR-1 P<,511'5.x,g_ 

~e, L / tfVc?5Tt 6 P<(o f2_ 



"' 

Certificate of Attendance 
The National Demolition Association to presents this certificate to 

Vincent Howard 
for attending the eight-hour 

Foundations of Demolition 
Risk Management Course 
held in Boston, Massachusetts on October 25, 2019 

~1--

Chris Godek, NDA President 

£NATIONAL 

DEMOLITION 
...dASSOCIATION 

di?' 
Steve Schwartz, NOA Education 

Committee Chairman 



~s~~.ll;'l!llli~~ ~· , "" 11~,-,a~~~~\~~tt1~~~.:illiffi?~1k.._~~~iGr2i 
~ --~-~~--...-----~wio !l>I< _.,.. ••---.-...--..-i:~~---,N,t,~t•-~•-• 

Certificate of Attendance 
The National Demolition Association to presents this certificate to 

. incent Howard 
for attending the twelve-hour 

oundations of Demolition 
Estimating Course 

held in Phoenix, Arizona on September 26 - 27, 2019 

,-· /.' 
///.. /}' ~ 
!../2.~:·:7· . -~_J NATIONAL 

DEMOLITION 
~ 

Chris Godek, NOA President 
..i4ASSOCIATtON Steve Schwartz. NOA Education 

Committee Chairman 



---- ------ .. ·-•-··•-- ... -·--- ·•-·- ·-----·-··· ... ~------. ·-~-- ····-·: .... •·· ·-----•---•···-·-·-•·'~---·---·•····-· ... -•·· -- ....... ··--···---•-· -··-· ---- -•- ----- .. -----

Certificate Number: R-1-18379 -19-12974 

ETC Training Services Group 
38900 W. Huron River Drive, Romulus, Ml 48174-1159 

(734) 95.5-6600 

PRESENTS 

Vincent Howard 
SSN: .,,.,.,,""._-1675 

with certification for having successfully completed the 8 hour/1 day course which meets the requirements for 

Renovator Initial (English) 

~~~ 
Trainer 

Per40 CFRPart 745.225 

Course date: Aug 05, 2019 
Exam Date: August 05, 2019 

Expiration date: August 05, 2024 

~--~b 
ETC President 



7451 Third Street 
Detroit, Ml 48202 
(313) 963-1433 

This is to certify that 

Vincent Howard 
XXX-XX-1675 

Has attended and successfully completed a 24-hour/3-day course 
Which meets the Accr~ditation Requirements for 

HlJILI)IN(; 1-NSPE(:l'OR INITIAL 
This coui·se fulfills the requirements under TSCA Title II and is in compliance with 40 CFR 763 

aJJd Michigan Public Act 440 of 1988 as amended 

Training Dates: June 17-19, 2019 

Exam Date: June 19, 2019 

Expiration Date: June 19, 2020 

Certification Number: 1675-061919 

... l 
'-•··-,( •. c. 

·••••-" ,,._..-'~w... L. • 

Stephen Dancy 

Trainer 

-- ...... ,.,. ..- ....... -·· ._ ... ·• ~ .-.-,.- ..... -•• ·~,.-,•;, ·----r-•i-... --. ~- -... -~~.,,- .. _ ~ ....... w;-:-,.~ -,.c,.,;;;..7=• .. ,,.::.-.1.,'\;' .. >lM -~-., .. ~.,, l-"•' ;,-~1,;;.-,,..,:.i.~"C';,oJ•:::·,:.::-r.;!.:,::_;.:.~.;~~=1Ji:.l/!!;.":,....,"'C;,;ti~l~d1:t4~"'-'le~:~-~-:.yr...:,.i:".t:lWai.rk-U"":.:: ,,:;-.,;;.11;.c,,-1•-,:·•:-J1,,.. .. , .,,...._.,. r '"'.:1:;.-.;1.v..•~r,..--'l:':"?u,;t11',,.,... .... _;. 

,:· 
.-' ~~~-



Rachelle R. Cleary 

VIN•CON INC/ President 
Email rachellecteary@gmall.com 
Cell (517) 404-1009 

Skills 

• Leadership Development 
• Interpersonal Skills 
• Marketin~romoting 
• Problem-Solving 
• creativity 

Education 

Lansing Community College 
-Liberal Arts/ General Studies 

Certlfteations 

TCM Mastery Cooch 
Emotion Code Practitioner 
NFPT • Personal Trainer Cert 
Yoga Alllonce •E•RYT certmcation 
Chung Do Kwan- 1st Degree 

Training 

• Pre$ence Based Coaching 

• Health CQaching Institute 

• Advanced TCM Coaching 

• Body Code Training 

• EFT Training Seminar 

• Google - SIY Seminar 
• Marie Forleo's B--School 

PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY 

Dynamic health and wellness coach who Is passionate about educoting 
and motivating individuals and groups In creating ond sustoinlng positive chonge, 

Work History 
doT!:RRA lntemational • Natural Health and Wellness Educator 
Pleasant Grove, UT • 02/2013 - Current 

• Developed and taught a plethora of wellness workshops and local events 

• Prepared and presented clear and effective presentations using powerpolnt slides with 

enthusiasm and confidence. 

• Created and implemented promotions on continued natural heolth education for 3,600+ 

customers. 

• Devoted private coaching sessions for team leaders on various Issues, includln9 goal setting,. 

stress management, mindset and belief. 

• Led Q variety of team trainings, topics included c;ustomer service, self•c;:ore, time manQgement, 

Interpersonal skills and leadership development 

Local Yoga Studios -Yoga ond Meditation Teocher 
Brighton, Ml • 01/2001- Current 

• Led group discussions on yoglc theory, breathwork and meditation techniques, 

• Developed classes a.ccesslble to students of all levels, cultivoting acceptonce • 

. • Designed creative and unique mind-body closses weekly. 

• Developed and executed marketing programs for mind-body workshops. 

• Co-hosted International Yoga Retreats. including Ball and Italy. 

Local Fitness centers - Personal Trainer/Fitness lnstructar 

Brighton, Ml • 0U2004 - 06/2014 

• Developed Individual programs based on ability and goals. 

• Completed Individual and group fitness qssessments, 

• Created and led outdoor bootcamps and group runs. 

• Developed and promoted onllne fitness and weight loss challenges 

• Designed all marketing materials for Incentive and retention programs 

Just Breathe Yoga, Fitness & Friends LLC - Business Owner 
Howell, Ml • 01/2005 - 06/2008 

• Discovered and developed a great passion of entrepreneurship 

• Secured a space and renovated a 2,000 square foot ambient studio 

• Developed and mainta(ned website with class schedu_les and promotions 

• Developed strong Interpersonal skills in doy to doy student interactions 

• Maintained daily administrative records, files and bookkeeping. 



Robert Madary Jr. 

PROFILE 

8904 Niver Ave 
Allen Park, Ml 48101 

313-516-5182 

Over forty years in the demolition industry, Michigan, Ohio, Indiana , and lJlinois. All aspects of 

Demolition, Dismantling, and Decoroissioning ofIStructures. 

EXPERIENCE 

PRESENT 
Associate, Estimator,Consultant, VIN-CON INC; Plymouth Ml. 

General Superintendant,Adamo, Inc. Detroit, MI. 1995-2010 
Oversee, and organize all aspects of Residential, Commercial, and Industrial Demolition Projects. 

Project Manager, Enkon Environment.al Services, Inc. 1992-1995 
Set Up, Schedule all Environmental Remediation Projects, Between field services, administrative, 

Local. State, and FederalAuthorities, a$ well as organize sub contractors and suppliers from project 

start to project completion. 

Foreman/ Operator. lUOE1 Local 324, Zabrowski and Associates 1978-199:z. 

R1.m day to day field operations for residential, commercial demolition activities. 

EDUCATJON 
Wayne State University 1974~1978 

SKILLS/ CERTIFICATIONS 
International Union of Operating Engineers.Journeyman. 

State of Michigan Certified asbestos supervisor 

EPA OSHA Certified HAZ~WOPPER 

State of MI. CDL 



"' , ~ I ' " 1 0 

· . ~~BR!EW ~ER.EI8EfE~ -PROJECT MANAGER 

EXPERIENCE 
' \:,•,~,,,,, 

ARBORIST/TREE CLIMSER 
DMV 'lree Services, Va/par/so , FL I Sep 2020 -Aug 2021 
Trim, top, and reshape trees to achieve attractive shape$ and to n)mQve low
hanging branches. 
Drag brush, chuck logs, run rope, removals, prune, clean out, rigging, 
Operate a chainsaw to clear cut timber. 
Hand dig area l)etween old and new poles to ensure enough room to transfer 
wires, dips etc to new poles. 
Qemonstrate excellent customer communication and satisfaction. 

DRYWALL INSTALLER AND TAPER 
PV Constr,1clion, Washington, Ml I Jun 2015 - Mar 2020 
Measure and cuts drywall panels to fit in and around specific spaces such as 
doors, windows, electrical outlets, and lighting fixtures. 
Install drywall panels to wood or metal studs. 
Use drywall compound to fill in and CQVer jQints, screws, nails, and other 
imperfections. 
Sand joint compound once dry an<:! applies drywall tape. 
Create textured surfaces when requested. 
Perfonn other relatec;I c;luties as assigned. 

GRAND VALLEY STATE 
UNIVERSITY 
Allendale, MI 
Completed coutqework towards 
Natura{ Resources Management 
Bachelor's a/Science (May 2015) 

MACOMB COMMUNITY 
COLLEGE 
GPA: 4.0 
Sterling Heights, MI 
Bachelor's of Science Natural 
Resources Management (Mar 2013) 

ADDITIONAL SKILLS 
l~o.,·; 

Superb use of Hand Tools 

Excellent Customer Service 

Perfom Duties in All Weather 
Conditions 

Mantain Great Communication, Verbal 
and Written 
Aerial Lift Operation and Safety 

Geographic Information System (OU)) 
Data Collection and Analysis 

Tree Care 

PPE 

CERTIFICATIONS 

Chauffeur License 



Jacob A Stewart 
Field Technician/Laborer 

PROFILE SUMMARY 

· I am an honest, responsible and hard working person. 

I do what I'm told and am looking forward to teaming new skills. 

PAST EXPERIENCE 

Forklift Operator - Meijer, Bellville, Ml 

January 2017- July 2019 

CERTIFICATION 

Hi-Lo Certification 

EDUCATION 

Huron iJligh School .. 2014-2017 

' 

CONTACT DETAILS HOME ADDRESS: 15610 Beech Daly RD Taylor, Ml 48180 CELL: 734. 772 .6650 



... ,.,;, Juneau Property Maintenance ;~1;; 
,,@JI,,)·.· 1,~.-~,~-:\i~f/t{ 870 Capitol Ave., Lincoln Park, Michigan 48146 (313) 383-1468 u~l~i} 

"" P;·-,-i., ,,~1~P.,. ,~
1
;;:~~i-,_, t:¥1~,,, 

'~t.~.,f.i'. f:~:~~(';._ . ~~r,-, ''"·~'~1\ ·.,. 
';;~f$t· b A S n;~{;,f,: ·r✓, ,.. ·" c: ,, .• ~',¾ ,. , 
f~~k/ . ?1:{;~¾;./.' 
"4'•~"" . '""$.•~·,· 1~~~1 Jaco . tewart \fil~_\ 
'{-::,._~Q: \j ~ t:1~·~1(,; 
:"'.,:~f-J•.J 374 23 2160 ,;~~,jlt• ({17[~ it - - f: ~~;i.:f ~ 

,. ilt~ ~·., i, t· ~ ·,. • ,., \l~ fi'1i t:i'.~1}1\ 't \ 
\,~;U F~~•,)llj E: 
-;,,."'' ... "'!?}[ . -;re;~~/.:;• 

/'1/['~151- ¼,.,,..~-. ti,· 
Ji\\',,,j✓.!fl} r,11~"'<·. ,,,-~,. ,,,, H,-.~;,,:c,• , •; ~·•t~ t· \• ,, ., ~, • .• 
·" ~~ a • • • . • . • • • • ~V-~ll~,\';' 

}~fas successfully completed a Michigan and EPA approved course m accordance with Title II of the Toxic Substance ui~l? 
,{diE Control Act, 40 CFR 763 (AIIERA) as amended 1994, MI~-f- 440 Of 1988 as amended and 40 CFRPart 61 h~r: 
-._\~~t (NESHAP Revision). ~~!~~~ti}, 
,,f":i,,"""![:;\· ,,l;(~.,:r.-: 

.·.-~ 1~, .. ~ ti ;}c·~~ 

;,J,~i,<!; •;,e;..., . ,, '"•If)~ tt,·.:..: 
,,:. 1:Z,,\'(,ll f' ;: i; ~.l~ ' \•SSi! ,cl,, . ;\ ·•~Jt;. t1"t•~ 
\t ~iu: FOR· :::ri -/~;;: • l,'i•: ':{ti;i: FORTY (40) - HOUR INITIALASBESTOSABATEMENT TRAINING FOR U 

·-~~tt CONTRACTORS AND SUPERVISORS ij;J[{,r 
~;; ~~f~\,·~:.,_ 
\J•) \l~~\, 1' 
~f .;...,~~\ it-

.. ~•i ~ .,,! " .,,.,,1, ,,j~,!il";' ✓ /.~.,.--t.t~ • ., ~/ _, 11~!ti >'.t ,,,."'i.·,•;_ 

t{~Ucourse Dates: August 5,6,7,8,9, 2019 Certificate Number: C_SI-2-019 0121 ~f~i\ 
---,,,~~!fl!: ~ilij -· 

-'P~~jn Exam Date: August 9 2019 H!~:?~?· .e1V,~~--~ , 1,~-~ ,., 
:;.w~:~rJ? gl1~i\'\. . 
'\~~\!I Expiration Date: August 9, 2020 ~,. ?J6/h nli;pl ~ 
:f!,[~~4~ .... ~l~h~,;· 
;-~:U· .,., 1•,\f,;,.,.'4/';i 

:;,~i~ 1~~1~1r. 
\~~mj Training Location: 870 Capitol Ave.; Lincoln Park, MI rim Watts, Instructor U~JF . ~~-===---~--~~----·.. ii~~ -\~Y{•~-~~~~~~w~~Ji.~~~~;;;,;_-~-.~~~~~~~t~~~~';-~~~~~~-:~~-::~.;;~ 

--,.~_,...,. ''--~:~'::·:,,-::~,,_.~:-~~;:;-i"~ -~~,s:_~~:.:::J\_:-:~n,,_::=7~-?i,:~.r-l~,:<;,~:·;,;~A~:-:•·.~t~~~::'.':--"'-::~-~t~~f:~~~'.::>:•. -... ;:;,~ . 



,.7:,wimk:r~~;~~17,.i~j,.;o/~';if-~$,i.ttr~,;,f-,..,;:•~~o,~~,"~"si,W~,~w~.'f-,~,{f ·· 

tit!; Juneau Property Maintenance r· 
870 Capitol Ave., Lincoln Park, Michigan 48146 (313) 383-1468 

'l"t~.!~ii) ,,~••.-; ";,)~'"'" d d 01• II -~}~t)~ • • · _ ;r 8~£ ." 

llff!ji.• James E war 1nger Ill\, 
',;/~13£· ;, Ri~•jt,; 
-'i'""'~f;;: 373 76 7123 t'.fil~l!/,e_-

(/lf~g.~. - - ~ti<,{ 
1
l JWfllfr;~ fi~~~,, 
\\'~~ti )B~!t-fo;i 
'~~!jl\i tf~l,~1,,. -
;R,jlt,~fl;,: ~ I,fh~ 

(ii l•~; 1;,~ !h ,,"'/JJAY-lit;;:': . {~: ~1\-~-
1_1\ ,&· ~i t-~1~•,v. 
J.;~nas successfully completed a Michigan and EPA approved course in accordance with Title II of the Toxic Substance ~l!iffi}} 

i_l_tJ~i;~ Control Act, 40 CFR 763 (AIIERA) as amended 199_4, :rvn: P.A. 440 Of 1988 as amended and 40 CFR Part 61 ~~~i""":; 
., '"'4'" (NESHAPn. . . ) i:a.~&, .. .\,~~r - Revision u,..,._...,~,.1.. •· 

... , .. ~ ... !~·ffJ • !~~t 

i$,;~~t %
1
~ 

1
1_• r({~~ ~-- h Hi ;'14~:Fi t!i. ta1t,"-"i"" Ci)g 
\:,~'!i "tl 
?t~~~t:~1 FOR· ~$ 

d /~"r:tr. • ~~ ({t;tll/ FORTY (40)- HOUR INITIAL ASBESTOS ABATEMENT TRAINING FOR ii 
'"'.;8~f_:i(~ CONTRACTORS AND SUPERVISORS i~ -r•g:j,. 1:,, ,, t ;;;J 
if/' fr~£~~ · r:f.i ; ~~··•1!~~ 't:' ; "'" u'· :l1l•~tl~ 'l~ 
\\,;_~t~ h! 
.~:,,i~tf~ . ?!i 
rlf~ij, u \\t~;course Dates: August 5,6,7,8,9, 2019 Certificate Number: CSI-2-019 0122 n 
~~~~!••I~ l:i\.i~fJ!f/" }~~.·~ffl~f1,~xam Date: August 9, 2019 ~- r_J/~/'-

1 • ~, '1 '1 ~~-'> 
t~, I{ •J~ ~ '·1!"~1\·;._, 

?)-~~-/~~Expiration Date: August 9, 2020 'A ~ !~~-,~ r ·<:: -1:1, .,.,,. ,,,.,~!,¼' 
/ .1~t ii . - !!1\-~ /: 
,1'.lh~''I. :-.i:r;...._ 
;C•(ltjtg,;, - ;;:f/ :f fu1 Lf. +J}_;f 

•,~\,~~1~;1 §\~ 
li~Training Location: 870 Capitol Ave.; Lincoln Park, Iv1I Jim Watts, Instructor [j! 

ff [~~=a==:,";-~t:'~?,:-.:'.'.;~-,::-=-::::x~!,•~~;::::.:;;,J;~~~S:;-;~~~~~":'=~,:''.:;~';;:'::;,;:~-:;~~J:~~~:'£c:':'-''.;::""""-"-""-"''--'"?"'·'~'-"·~·"""'"---<..,;,,,,.-ec"""-'=-=1'<'•*--""•""""•'••,,,,,.:,•,v~Y'•·N•"j ~ 



EXHIBIT 5 

Officers. 

Vincent Howard, Vice Pre$ident 

Rachelle Cleary, President 



Exhibit 6 

Certificate of Insurance 

I 



ACORd 9ERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I DATE (MM/OOMYYY) 

~ 8/11/2021 
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE OOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER($), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTf,TIVE OR PRODUCER, ANO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, 
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les} must be endorsed, .If SUBROGATION 15 WAIVED, subject to 
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the 
certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s). : 

PROD\JCSR lf U~~,,. Customer Service 
VTC Insuranc;e Group ri X1lt ., .. ,. (248)828-3377 j rm tlol: (14a)82H74t 

TroyOfft~ E• AAIL 
ADORES$: 

1175 W, uing Lake Ste. 2Q0 UlSURliR(Sl AFFORDING COVEnAGE IIAI() # 
1 Troy·. MI 48098-4960 1Nsu11en A: Crum & Forster Soeclaltvlnsuranee Comoanv 44520 

INSURED INSUR~R s : Prol!resslye Michl!!an 10187 
Vin Con Inc. INSURER c, Llbertv Mutual lll$uranee Co~nanv 
41130 E Ann Arbor Trail INSUREAO: 
Plymouth MI 48170-4407 INSURER El 

INSURER F: 

COVERAC.,ES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:CL2181161Q62 REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS I_S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSUF\Al'ICE LISWD BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECTTO WHICH THIS 
CERT.IFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BYTHE POLICIES DESCRIBSO HEREIN IS Sl,JBJECTTO ALL THE: TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS ANp CONDlT!ONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN .MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS, 

INSR 
TYPE OF INSURANCE i~~.?; ".::v";; POLICY NUMBER ,~Wfig~ ~filii%~ LIMITS LTR 

X COMMERCIAL GEIIERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ .1,000,000 -:J CtAIMS-MAOE @ OCCl)R A PFWMISE~~t~!!eooil $ 50,000 -
EPl<l36324 7/1512021 1181202a - MEO EXP (Am one pa~oo) $ 5,000 

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1,000,000 
~ 

GEN'LAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENEAALAGGREGATE $ 2,000,000 

~ POLICY □ ~rg. □ LOO PRODUCTS· COMP/OP AGG $ 2,000,000 

OTHER: $ 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY fi&'1~~1~1NIM LIMIT $ 1,000,000 
r--

801)ILY INJURY (Per P8fS\lO) 
B ANYAVTO $ ,...,.... 

A~LOWNEO X SCHEOULEO 03863012,0 7/812021 7/812022 800l~Y INJURY (P8f $¢<:ldel\l) $ 
AUTOS AUTOS x HIREOAVTO$ 

X NON-OWNEO FP~9~~J:n1~A!,1AGEl $ _ AVTOS 
~ 

$ 

UMBRELi.A LIAS HOCCUR EAQH OCCURRENCE $ 2.000000 -
A X EXOESSLIAB ¢1.AIMS,MAPE AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000 

OED I I RETENTION £ EFX118462 7/1512021 71812022 $ 

C WORKERS COMPeNSATION X I STATUTE I I ~~H• 
AND EMPI.OYER$' LIABILITY YIN 
AfN PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 

□ 
WC533SB20R78011 7120/2021 7/lQ/2022 E.L EACH AQCIOENT $ 1,000,000 

OFFICEMl~MBER l=XCLVO!!O? NIA 
(Mandatory ln NH) E,L DISEA$E • EA EMPLOYEE $ 1 000,000 
Ir les, cies<:<ioe vlldet 

I DI SCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE:• POLICY UMiT $ l 000 000 

A Conractors PQllutlon Liablllty EPK136324 01115/ZOil 07/08/2922 $1,(/1;/J,000, ~ p,:,lM!Qo ()Qo<ilioo 

Error & Omissions LiabUlty EPKl36324 07/15/2021 0110S12on $1,()()0,0QOea<:llWtQOg/\da~ 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS·/ LOCAUOHS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Add~lonal RQmaib Schedule, may be attached If more space la required) 
All operations of the named insured, Iniiurer will endeavor to n11'il 30 days written notice of 
cancellation to the ~ertlficate holder; however, failure h) do so will impose no liability of any kind 
upon the insurer or It$ agents or rtprese,ntatlvC$, 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 
(517)284-8929 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFQRE 
Michigan Oepartment of Licensing THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL ee DELIVEREP IN 

and Regulatory Affail'$ ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS, . 

AsbestQs PrQgram 
AUTllORIZED REPRESENTATIVE P.O. Box 30671 

Lansing, MI 48909 
Alan ChandlerN27 tU,...,,.-/. ~ 

I 

' ' 
~ 1988•2014 ACORD CORPORATION, All right$ re~erved. 

ACORD 25 (2014/01) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 
INS026 (201401) 



Exhibit 7 

' Letters and· Referenc~s 

/ 

I 

/ 

✓ 



Engineering Qnd Public Services Department 

August 10, 2021 
! ' 

j To Whom It Moy Concern 

RE: Recommendation for Vin-Con, Inc. 

Dear Sir or Madcm: 

Please accept this letter as my reference cmd recommendation for Vln .. Con, Inc. and Vincent Howard os 
Its owner on behalf of the enti~e City of Monroe Administration and our project teom. 

The City of Monroe has been aggressively pursuing strategic: demolition of re$ldential structures from a 
general blight remediation perspeotlve, and also for the purpose of expc;mding the River Raisin National 
Battlefield Park along Eost Elm Aven.ue. Vin-Con, Inc. wos the low bidder in 2020 on a 9roupln9 of six (6) 
s1,1oh homes and two (2) out bui'lding!i,◊n;91:1r former Public Services Department foollity site. The oontrctot 
was award~d. by the City, cmd we found.,Mr, Howard's firm to be capable and oommuniootlve from the 
outset. Hazardous materiols abatement was Included In the contract scope for oll oppliooble properties, 
end this work WO$ coordlnatec}'by Vin-Con, with no lssl,les, 

Like many projects In 2020, th~·Jt6rt of work was delayed somewhat but Vin-Con's previous project 
commitments that were lmpaoted by State Exeo1,1tlve or.ders prohibiting work dvrlng the spring. However, 
to his credit, Mr. Howard wished to fulfill his earlier commitments completely so thot when he st1;1rted 
within the City of Monroe, we were given his full attention. Thi~ paid off very well, os the properties In 
question were oil demolished very methodiQdlly, quickly, and cleonly, cmd we had no complaints from 
adjocent property owners or the public. He scheduled his Inspections promptly, kept our project monoger 
Informed daily of his current and projected activities, and backfilled and restored the sites Qs q1,1iokly as 

. possible. As additlonal properties were purchased by ihe City, these were added via ohcmge order to Vin
Con's controot, such that the final contract Included eleven (11) locations at a toted cost of $189,658. This 

. oontraot has now been closed, as all work Is completed successfl..1lly. Though the scope of his work was 

. limited largely to. one and two-story residential propertl~s, I believe their oapabilitles would allow for 
additional -types of commercial and multi-story work os well in the future, 

The City of Monroe intends to keep Vin-Con, Inc. on our list of pre-qualified contractors for slmllar projects 
in the future, and we would not hesitate to work with them a90in. If you should need any further 
Information, please feel free to contact me at any time. 

atrlck • Lew~ 
Director of Engineering and Publio Services 

120 Eost First St. Monroe Ml 48161 734-384-9126 monroeml.gov 



From: Vincent Howard ketchvin@msn.com 
Subject: Re: VIN-CON Letter of Re.commendation 

Date:· Aug 11, 2021 at 1:41:40 PM· 
To: Hardcastle, Erin ehardcastle@eastpointecity.org 

Perfect. 

Sent from my iPhone 

On Aug 11, 2021, at 1:36 PM, Hardcastle, Erin 
-<ehardcastle@eastP-ointecity.&,Cg> wrote; 

Hello, 

This email serves as a letter of recommendation for Vince Howard, of VIN-CON, INC. 
VIN~Con, INC. has been the dedicated demolition contractor for the City of Eastpointe 
since 2019. 
Mr. Howard has worked with the Building and Ordinance department to take down 
several unsafe structures during that time. 
He has done the asbestos abatement, working with the State to ens()re compll~nce with 
the notification and remediation process. . 
VIN .. CON1 INC. has handled the water and sewer disconnects with our director of DPW, 
Darin Paolucci, who has been happy with his work. 
VIN-CON, INC. has handled the concrete replacement as well, including walks ~nd curbs 
and finishing the site with grading, seed and straw. 
We were also able to coordinate with our Fire Marshr;3.II and VIN-CON, INC. to use the 
structure$ to do training at the structures immediately prior to demolition. 
Please reach out to me anytime with questions or if you would like to discuss further. 
may be reached at the number below or on my cell at .(586) (;>62-,71 a2. 
Thank you. 

Respectfully; 

Erin H. Hardcastle 
Building Official. 
Director of Planning and Zoning 
City of Eastpointe 
.(586) 204-3022 



Augusl JI, 2021 

Van Buran Township 
Van Buran Township 
46421) Tyler Rd. 
Van Suren 1Wp .. Ml 48111, 

Re: utter of Recommenilation 

The City of Wixom has contracted with Vincent Howard of Vin-Con Inc. of Plymolllh, Ml for the 
demolition, removal and site restoration of one of our City owned Histcric<Jl House in 2020. The 
contractor performed accordin8 to all requirements of the contract. The City was pleased wi/h the 
performance of/he company. 

If anyone has any questions, just have them give me a call. 

Regards, 

Deanna Magee 
Director of Commtmity Services/Parks ~ Rec 
City Qf Wixom 
248.624.2850 Main Line 
248.560.1340 Direct Line 
dmagee@wfxomgov.org 

Community Services Dep0;rtment* 49045 Pontiac Trail 
*Wixom, MI 48393 



August 10, 2021 

Kendyl Zantop 
Van Buren Township 

RE: Reference for Demolition 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLlC SERVICE 
0111: Cnv SouARE, Sum 320 . 

WAnREN, Ml 48093-5284 
(586) 574-4004 

FAX (586) 674~4517 
www.cityofwarren.org 

Vin~Con-lncorporated completed one.residential demolition project for the City of 
Warren at 23825 Woodrow Wilson, which was completed on April 13, 2021. The 
jobwas done satisfactorily. 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at 586-574~4604. 

Sincerely, 

~~D~ 
Annmarie laDuke 
Office C_oordinator 
Public Service Department 

' ' 

/ 



Project References and Contact Info; 

1) City of Monroe1 Toby Worrell, 734-777-8615 

2) City of Eastpointe, Erin Hardcastle, 586-243-2058 

3} City of Ypsilanti, Christopher J~cobs. 989-992-8457 



EXHIBIT 8 

Bid Bond 



Bid Bond 
CONTRACTOR: aAIA Document A310™ - 2010 
¥ame, legal status and address) 
VIN•CON INC. . 
41130 E, Ann Arbor Tri 
Plymouth, Ml 48170 

OWNER: 
(Name, legal status and address) 

• City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 

SURETY: 
(Name, legal status and principal 
place of business) 

GRANITE RE, INC. 
1.4001 Quallbrook Orive 
Oklahoma City, OK 13134 

BONO AMOUNT: Flve Per'W\t of the Bid Amount (5.00% of Bid Amount) 

PROJECT: 
(Name, location er address, and Project numl,er, If any) 
CDSG Demolition (Batch 17) For the City of Pontlac 

Bid Bond No. FEO02508 

This docvmeot has Important legal 
consequences. Consultation with 
an attqmey Is encQutaged with 
res~ to Its completion or 
modtn~tfon. 

Any singular reference to 
~tract.or, $1.Jrety, owner or 
other party shall be c:onsldered 
plural where applk:able. 

The Contractor a.nd Surety a.re .bound tQ the Owner in the amount set forth above, for the payment of whioh the Contractor 
and ~urety blnd themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors 311d a.9$lgns,Jointly and severally. as provided 
herein. The conditions of this Bond are such that If the Owner ~pts the biQ of the C:ontra¢tor within the time specified In the 
bid documents, or within such time ptirio<;l a$ may be agreed to by the Owner and Contraotor, and the Gontnu,tor either (l) 
enters Into a oontract with the Owner in accordance with the tenns of such bid, and gives such bond or bonds as may be 
specified in the biddin$ or Contract Document$, with a surety admitted in the jurisdiotion of the Project and otherwise 
acceptable to the Owner, for the faitht\11 perfonnruwe of such Contract and for the prompt payment of labor and material 
furnished In the prosecution thereof; or (2) pays to the Owner 1he difference, not to exceed the amount of this Bond, between 
the amount specified in said bid and such larger amount for which the Owner may in good falth contract with another party to 
perfonn the work covered by said bid. then this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect, 
The Surety hereby waives any notice of an agreement between the Owner and Contractor to extend the time in which the Owner 
may aeeept the bid. Waiver of notice by the Surety shall not apply to any extension exceeding.sixty (60) days in the aggregate 
beyond the time for acceptance of bids specified In the bid documents, and the Owner and Contractor shall obtain the Surety's 
consent for an extension beyond sixty {60) days. 
lfthls Bond ls issued in connection with a subCQntractor's bid to a Contractor, the tenn Contraoror In this. eond shall be 
deemed to be SubcontraQtor and the term Owner shall be deemed to J:,e Gont?actor. 

When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or other legal requirement in the location of the Project, any 
provision in this Bond conflicting with $l!ld stattltory or legal ™tUirement shall be dee,ned dele~ed herefrom and provisions 
confonning to such statutory or other legal requirement spall be deemed incorporated herein. When so furnished, the Intent 
Js that this Bond shall be C?nstrued as a $tat\ltory bond and not as a common l~w bond. 

Signed and s~led this 4filh day of August, 2021 

.:\ /~ A /~ ,,.// d' / 
,,. , -~«c~,(,t!/'t{,· .LV✓d'✓c. 

AXA D«um4nt A310'"-,- lOlO, COS> . 1963, 1970 and 2010 by The American Jnstltute of hchlteas, AU rights~. WARNING I Till$ AJA• 
Document ls prole(ted by U.S. Copvdoht L.aw end lntetilatlonal r,eatle$. tJneuthorlzed.reprodueUQn·or dlstrlbijtlon of this AJA~ Qocuml!tu, <>r 
any portion or It, moy result In severe clYll and criminal penalties, and will be pros«uted to the maximum extent PQS$1ble under the law, 
Purcl\ffli'S Me p@i\'ltml to reprodvce ten {IQ) i;opieS i5t ttils doi$ilieilt Wi cdi\l!Ste™, 16 rejloit CXJpyright violabons Qi' 10X Con~'Oocilmeot:s, e-mall 
The Am~n Jostltute of Ardlltect$' legal Clll!ilsel, cooydghtt'Pa@,QW, Oi11Ho 



GRANITE RE, INC. 
' •', ..... ,, 

CiENEAAL POWER OF ATTORNEY 
.• '.', .. ' . : . 

Knew an t-ien .l;>y th~e.Pr~~.~~: . . . 

That G.~,~-¥1J~.c., a C:O~QJa~i~!l:~f~_~:,:~~<t.a~d-~x.1s~rg_v1iQ~ph~J~W$ .~f th~ S~tA of M!~NESQTA and having Its principal offic:e 
at the City of OKLAHOMA.CITY In the Stat~ of:0.~1.1HPM~J1,1~~-er.eby constltute·,nd appt,lnt: , . 

,\ ;, . , ' . 

MJCHAELJ. OOUC!-A5.: Cl:I_R~ ~~N..A~-~-f~R#9PHEl\;Mi~~~~;t<MlA HiFF~()N; ROBERT ,DQWNfX;JUµ.t>. 00VQLA$; CONNI~ SMITH: KORY MORTEL; 
ELIOT MOTU Its true and lawful Attorn~y..,lntfaq(s).f<>r, .thHol19Win!:I purposes, to wit: , . 

' ,. ' ... ' ' \~- ·,' ;· '; ,'. . 

To $1911 lt:s nam~ a~;suretv, to,:an~-~9 ti~Je;J~ a~~ .~~lqiowled~e any Md all ~ondsi .¥!~;to t!lf,l!~-~/_vely do and ~~tfurm any and all acts 
and thln~s set fort~ In th,,f~SQl~tlc>f! .90,~~.;~?t(,~:9.twr~~r,s. qHh!!, said GRJ\NftE RE,,, I~, a,(ett,l!J1l.4:¢Pt~f W.~lch !~ ,~~ti;, ann~Xed and made a :::t this Power of Attonrev:,artd:the,~~~-i~~·~?t:~~,'t~:•,~r9~~h \JS'.·:lts,a~ard'of t>!~qt(lfli_, h~r~~·H'atl~~:-a:ntj co~fl~~ all and:Whal$bever the 

·. ;.'.-\ > > :. ~--. ; : ' i, : :-.\. 

Ml~HAEl,.J,-OOUOLAS; CHR1$:$TEIN~C)EL:-_~R#P.~~::~i.~~~;;.~LA. H~FRON: ROBER'.T DO~l;YrJU~ DtlU~t,AS},C{,)1-!NIE SMITH; KORY MORTEL; 
EUOT MOTU may I.awfully d_0•ll'i the.pr.~mlse~~y.111111~ 9fJh,s1?;:i,r~$enJs, . , . . • ' "', ' , .· . , ' ' 

• .•,., ... ' ',>' 

STATE Of OKLAHOMA ) 
:) 

COUNTY OF OKIAl10MA l . 

CR0S00-1 

My.,Comri11s$Jon.Explr~s:; 
~prifh, 2oiJ : . : . . 
•Commission I: 1;1003620 . . . '•' ' 

'~~-~ ·, 



: 1/ , ~~UlllIInW ~EBiEDBE~ , 
, , , RROJEctfiii:INAGER 

EXPERIENCE 

ARBORISTffREE CLIMBER 
DMV Tree Services, Va/par/so, FL I Sep ?020 • Aug 2021 
Trim, top, and reshape trees to achieve attractive shapes and to remove low
hanging branches, 
Drag bntsh, ch11ck logs, nm rope, removals, pnme, clean out, rigging. 
Operate a chainsaw to clear cut timber. 
Hand dig area between old and new poles to ensure enough room to transfer 
wires, dips etc to new poles. 
Demonstrate excellent customer communication and satisfaction. 

DRYWALL INSTALLER AND TAPER 
PV Co11str11clio11, Wasl,/11glon, ,\,!/ I J1111 20/S - Mar 2020 
Measure and cuts drywall panels to fit in and around specific spaces such as 
doors, windows, electrical outlets, and lighting fixtures. 
Install drywall panels to wood or metal studs. 
Use drywall compound lo fill in and cover joints, screws, nails, and other 
imperfections. 
Sand joint compound once dry and applies drywall tape, 
Create textured surfaces when requested. 
Perfonn other related duties as assigned, 

GRAND VALLEY STATE 
UNIVERSITY 
Allendale, Ml 
Completed cot,rsework towards 
Natural Resources Ma11age111e11t 
Bachelor's of Science (May 2015) 

MACOMB COMMUNITY 
COLLEGE 
GPA: 4.0 
Sterling Heights, MI 
Bachelor's of Science Natural 
Resources Ma11age111e111 (Mar 2013) 

ADDITIONAL SKILLS 

Superb use ofHand Tools 

Excellent Customer Service 

Perfom Duties in All Weather 
Conditions 

Mant.nin Great Communication, Verbal 
and Written 

Aerial Lift Operation and Safety 

Geographic lnfom1atio11 System (GIS) 
Data Collection and Analysis 

Tree Care 

PPE 

CERTIFICATIONS 

Chauffeur License 



#8 

RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

Honorable City Council President and City Council Members 

Linnette Phillips, Director, Economic Development 

THROUGH: Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

DATE: 

RE: 

November 16, 2021, moved to November 23, 2021 

Resolution for Public Hearing to Reprogram Senior Housekeeping 
Services to Safety and Repair Services for Seniors and Disabled 
Persons - Recommending Project Allocations for Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Years 2019 and 2020 

The City of Pontiac (COP) was awarded $50,000 in both PY2109 and 2020 to 
provide Housekeeping Services to citizens. The amount for both years totals 
$100,000. As a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, seniors did not want strangers in 
their home providing the service, nor did the contractor want to provide the service 
of going into senior residents homes. 

A recommendation is for Safety and Repair Services small jobs not to exceed 
$600 and can be completed in a reasonable time. Some examples are caulk 
tubs/toilets and windows, roof repair, tree trimming, install smoke detectors, patch 
holes in drywall, floor repair, gutters repaired. See attached spec sheet. 

The funds are available for calendar year 2021 and 2022. 

Resolution Following Next Page 



CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION FOR PUBLIC HEARING TO REPROGRAM SENIOR 
HOUSEKEEPING SERVICES TO SAFETY AND REPAIR SERVICES FOR 

SENIORS AND DISABLED PERSONS RECOMMENDED PROJECT 
ALLOCATION FOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) 

PROJECTS FOR PROGRAM YEARS 2019 AND 2020 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac is requesting to Reprogram Senior Housekeeping Services 
funding; comprised of $50,000 from Program Year 2019 and $50,000 from Program Year 
2020;and 

Whereas, the total of $100,000 is recommended for reprogramming for Safety and Repair 
Services for Seniors and Disabled Person. . 

Whereas, the following project be considered: 

Safety and Repair Services for Seniors and Disabled Persons for $100,000 

Now Therefore be it Resolved, that the Pontiac City Council approve the reprogramming 
of Senior Housekeeping Services with CDBG funds from both Program Years 2019 and 
2020 are proposed, recommending the total $100,000 funds be available for Safety and 
Repair Services for Seniors and Disabled Persons. 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
..,.,..:,;>-~~~~.-&~..o;, 

.. . ;,:J • 

·lg,c 

CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

TO REPROGRAM CDBG SENIOR HOUSEKEEPING SERVICES FROM 
PROGRAM YEARS 2019 AND 2020 TO PROPOSED RECOMMENDED 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) FOR SAFETY AND 
REPAIR SERVICES FOR SENIORS AND DISABLED PERSONS FOR 

PROGRAM YEAR 2020 

NOTICE IS HEARBY GIVEN that the City of Pontiac will hold a public hearing to 
reprogram Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding for Senior 
Housekeeping Services from Program Years 2019 and 2020. Due to the Covid~ 19 
pandemic, seniors did not want agency workers to come into their homes, nor 
were the agency workers available to provide the services. The funds are 
proposed recommending the entire $100,000 be reprogrammed for Safety and 
Repair Services for Seniors and Disabled Persons. 

Public Comment For individuals who desire to make a public comment, please 
submit your name and comment in writing to publiccomments@pontiac.mi.us by 
5:00 PM, December 6, 2021. Additionally, you may submit your public comment 
in writing directly to the Office of the Interim City Clerk gdoyle@pontiac.mi.us 

The hearing will be held on Tuesday, December 7, 2021 at 6:00 pm at the 
City of Pontiac City Council Chambers at Pontiac City Hall, 47450 
Woodward Avenue, 2nd Floor in Pontiac, Michigan. 



OTHER PUBLIC SERVICES NOT LISTED IN 03T AND 05A .. Q5Y 
Program 172160 
HUD Matrix Code 05Z 

Only use code when an activity does not fall under a more specific 05AM 
05Y code. An example of a legitimate use of this code is when a public 
service activity that does not have a more specific matrix code, provides 

Eligible Uses services to multiple groups of clients such as seniors, persons with 
disabilities and homeless persons. For instance, for a "meals on whee!s 11 

program for seniors and persons with disabilities, use 052. If this 
program had been available to only seniors, the correct matrix code is 
05A. 

Account# ',., ·•·,:.·:··•.·· '· · · · '·safetv & Reoair ~ 731665 
.. . ', 

·.,' 
. ' .. 

Small jobs that are less than $600 and can be completed In a reasonable time. A permit typically is not required. 
A local maintenance/ handvoerson can comolete the iobs. 

Safety Devices Repair Services 
Bed Aide/Commode Jell Cushion Cabinets & Countertops Roof repair 
Bells/WhlsUes/MonltorslAmPs Larae Button Phone Caulk Tub/T oiletsl Windows Sidino < 20 sa. ft, 
Blood Pressure Monitors Maanifving Glass/Sheet Chlmnev Sinks/Faucets Installed 
Bottle/Jar Ooeners Non-skid Tub Elec Outlets/Switches/Cover Plates Smoke/CO detectors Installed 
Canes Mal/Strios Floor reoalr Stairs & Handrail 
Laundry/Shooolng Carts PIii Boxes Gutter/Downspout Storm Doors Installed 
Clapper Power Outlet Strip Duct work/Pipe/Water heater Insulation Supply Lines 
CO Detectors Raised Toilet Seals LIAhl Bulbs change Thermostats Installed 
DI apers/P ads Reachers Lock Sets & Dead Bolts Installed Toilets Installed 
First Aid Kits Shower Chair/Transfer Bench Patch < 2 sf holes in drywall/plaster Tree TrimminA 
Flashinq Telephones Smoke Detector Porch & Deck < 20 sf Waste Lines 
Flashllqhts/NIAht Liqhts Talklnq Clock/ Watch/Kevchaln 
Grab Bars Installed Wheelchairs/Walkers 
Handheld Showers 

Housekeeping - 730880 < ' , ·. · · \' ·vard Services~ 732170 .·• ,•' 

Projects to clean the Interior of a home. Lawn service, snow removal, spring/fall yard clean up, 
autter cleanina. tree trlmmlna. and danaerous tree 

Authoritv 24 CFR 570.201 (e) or 42 USC 5305(a)(8) + 24 CFR 570.482(c)(2) 
Environmental Code Exempt 

Project Service Delivery Costs including staff timesheets, other direct 
Project Delivery Costs costs, and service costs directly related to carrying out this activity are 

eliQible. Cost reasonableness standards applv. 
This activity can be designed to serve clients who are presumed 
benefit, income qualified or clients who are presumed benefit and 
income qualified. Communities must develop an application and 
advertise availability of services. A current PERSON OBA REPORT 

Notes must be submitted with each invoice which indicates the income 
eligibility or presumed benefit eligibility of clients served. Supporting 
documentation must be provided to the County to receive 
reimbursement. If an agency is hired to administer the activity, 
contracts must be executed specifvina services, duration cost etc. 
Contact Planning & Evaluation at (248) 858-5312· to determine 

National Objective Codes National Objective. Options include: 
LMC - Low-income limited clientele benefit: activities that benefit a 
limited clientele at least 51 % of which are low-income. 

Accomplishment Tvpe Peoole 
Performance Objective Suitable LivinQ Environment 

Performance Outcome Improved Availability/Accessibility 

68 



#9 
RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

CC: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Honorable City Council President Kermit Williams, and City Council Members 

Darin Carrington, Finance Director 

Honorable Mayor Deirdre Waterman; Attorney Anthony Chubb 

November 10, 2021 

Proposed Enhanced Pension Benefit 

The City has been working over the last several years to address the issues surrounding 
retiree pension and health care benefits. As part of these efforts, a New VEBA has been 
created to address retiree health care. This VEBA will be funded in part from excess 
assets from the City's General Employee Retirement System (GERS) and the assets from 
the Police & Fire VEBA. 

Once these assets are transferred to the VEBA, the funding level of GERS will be at 
130%. Meaning that the projected liabilities of GERS will be covered by the assets of 
GERS at a ratio of 130%. 

For the last several years, many of the City's retirees have been receiving a temporary 
$400 supplemental monthly pension payment. This supplemental payment has been 
authorized annually by City Council. The current supplemental payment is scheduled to 
end on December 31, 2020. Currently, the VEBA is set to begin providing health care 
benefits on February 1, 2022. Additionally, there are certain members of GERS (e.g. 
former hospital employees) who are not eligible for the health care benefits that will be 
provided by the VEBA. 

Given the fact that GERS will have a 130% funded level, the Administration has been 
looking at ways to utilize this over-funded status to increase the amount of financial 
support provided to retirees. The attached presentation provides details on a proposed 
Enhanced Pension Benefit. This benefit would provide retirees with a monthly payment in 
addition to their regular pension payment. 

State law requires an actuarial analysis be done to calculate the costs of any changes in 
pension benefits. In order to further analyze this proposed benefit we are hereby 
requesting that the City Council adopts the following resolutions to have the needed 
actuarial studies for the proposed enhanced pension benefit. 



City of Pontiac 

PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

At a regular meeting of the Pontiac City Council ("City Council") held on ___ , 2021. 

WHEREAS, City's GERS retirees currently receive a $400 supplemental pension 
payment ("Supplemental Payment") and this payment is set to expire on December 31, 2021. The 
City desires to determine the costs for implementing a permanent Enhanced Pension Benefit 

WHEREAS, MCL §38.1140h(5) requires that a supplemental actuarial analysis 
concerning the costs for any additional pension benefits be conducted by the GERS system's 
actuary prior to implementing additional benefits; 

WHEREAS, MCL §38.l 140h(5) requires that any supplemental actuarial analysis be paid 
for by the City (not the retirement system); and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to have a supplemental actuarial analysis evaluating the 
financial viability of an Enhanced Pension Benefit be conducted and adopts the following 
resolutions: 

RESOLVED, that the Reestablished GERS 's Board of Trustees are directed to have the 
system's actuary conduct the supplemental actuarial analysis required by MCL §38.1140h(5) for 
purposes of a permanent Enhanced Pension Benefit; and 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City shall pay for the cost of the supplemental actuarial 
analysis. 



City of Pontiac 

PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

At a regular meeting of the Pontiac City Council ("City Council") held on ___ , 2021. 

WHEREAS, Certain of the City's Police and Fire retirees currently receive a $400 
supplemental pension payment ("Supplemental Payment") and this payment is set to expire on 
December 31, 2021. The City desires to determine the costs for implementing a permanent 
Enhanced Pension Benefit to the Police and Fire Retirement System's retirees; 

WHEREAS, MCL §38.1140h(5) requires that a supplemental actuarial analysis 
concerning the costs for any additional pension benefits be conducted by the Police and Fire 
Retirement System's actuary prior to implementing additional benefits; 

WHEREAS, MCL §38.1140h(5) requires that any supplemental actuarial analysis be paid 
for by the City (not the retirement system); and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to have a supplemental actuarial analysis evaluating the 
financial viability of an Enhanced Pension Benefit be conducted and adopts the following 
resolutions: 

RESOLVED, that the Police and Fire Retirement System's Board of Trustees are directed 
to have the system's actuary conduct the supplemental actuarial analysis required by MCL 
§38.1140h(5) for purposes of a permanent Enhanced Pension Benefit; and 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City shall pay for the cost of the supplemental actuarial 
analysis. 



#10 
RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Finance Department 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Honorable City Council President Kermit Williams, and City Council Members 

Darin Carrington, Finance Director 

November '18, 202'1 

Resolution to approve a budget amendment for Fiscal Year 2021-22 to allocate a 
total of $180,000 to the Capital Improvement Fund account 445-265-976.001 -
Building Additions & Improvements. 

The City of Pontiac has passed a Resolution expressing support for the Pontiac Skate Project. 
Additionally, a Resolution has been approved which allocates $'180,000 of City funds to be used 
towards this project. These funds are being taken from already appropriated funds from the Capital 
Improvement Fund. In order to not delay or cancel any planned projects for the Capital 
Improvement Fund, a budget amendment is being proposed to replace the funds back into the 
Capital Improvement Fund. 

It is hereby requested that the City Council approve this proposed budget amendment. 

As such, the following resolution is recommended for your consideration: 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac timely approved the FY 2021-22 budget on June 24, 2021 
and; 

Whereas, the City Council approved the a/location by the City of $180,000 for the Pontiac 
Skate Park Project; and 

Whereas, funds for this allocation were approved to come out of the appropriations for the 
current year FY 2021-22 from the Capital Improvement Fund GL account 445-265-976.001; and 

Whereas, in order to replace the funds used for this allocation the Administration is 
proposing a budget amendment for the Capital Improvement Fund; and 

Whereas, the Administration is proposing to the City Council to increase the appropriations 
for the current year FY 2021-2022 in the amount of $180,000 to the Capital Improvement Fund GL 
account 445-265-976.001; and 

Whereas, to fund this additional appropriation, $180,000 is transferred out of the General 
Fund Balance GL account 101-000-390.000; 

NOW THEREFORE be resolved that the City Council hereby approves the amendment for 
the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Budget as requested by the Administration transferring $180,000 from the 
General Fund Balance GL account 101-000-390.000 to the Capital Improvement Fund, GL account 
445-265-976.001 - Building Additions & Improvements. 

This item cannot be approved until after the resolution to authorize the City Clerk to publish 
the notice of the budget amendment has been approved and one week after the publication 
of the notice. It takes 5 votes to approve a budget amendment. 



#11 
RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Finance Department 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Honorable City Council President Kermit Williams, and City Council Members 

Darin Carrington, Finance Director 

November i 8, 202"1 

Resolution to approve a budget amendment for Fiscal Year 2021-22 to allocate a 
total of $180,000 to the Capital Improvement Fund account 445-265-976.001 -
Building Additions & Improvements. 

The City of Pontiac has passed a Resolution expressing support for the Pontiac Skate Project. 
Additionally, a Resolution has been approved which allocates $'180,000 of City funds to be used 
towards this project. These funds are being taken from already appropriated funds from the Capital 
Improvement Fund. In order to not delay or cancel any planned projects for the Capital 
Improvement Fund, a budget amendment is being proposed to replace the funds back into the 
Capital Improvement Fund. 

It is hereby requested that the City Council approve this proposed budget amendment. 

As such, the following resolution is recommended for your consideration: 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac timely approved the FY 2021-22 budget on June 24, 2021 
and; 

Whereas, the City Council approved the allocation by the City of $180,000 for the Pontiac 
Skate Park Project; and 

Whereas, funds for this allocation were approved to come out of the appropriations for the 
current year FY 2021-22 from the Capital Improvement Fund GL account 445-265-976.001; and 

Whereas, in order to replace the funds used for this allocation the Administration is 
proposing a budget amendment for the Capital Improvement Fund; and 

Whereas, the Administration is proposing to the City Council to increase the appropriations 
for the current year FY 2021-2022 in the amount of $180,000 to the Capital Improvement Fund GL 
account 445-265-976.001; and 

Whereas, to fund this additional appropriation, $80,000 is transferred out of the General 
Fund Balance GL account 101-000-390.000 and $100,000 is transferred out of the General Fund 
GL account 1 O 1-1O1-818. O 13 - Professional Services-Animal Control; 

NOW THEREFORE be resolved that the City Council hereby approves the amendment for 
the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Budget as requested by the Administration transferring $80,000 out of the 
General Fund Balance GL account 101-000-390.000 and $100,000 is transferred out of the 
General Fund GL account 1 O 1-1O1-818. O 13 - Professional Services-Animal Control; and $180,000 
is transferred into the Capital Improvement Fund, GL account 445-265-976.001 - Building 
Additions & Improvements. 

This item cannot be approved until after the resolution to authorize the City Clerk to publish 
the notice of the budget amendment has been approved and one week after the publication 
of the notice. It takes 5 votes to approve a budget amendment. 



#12 
RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

CC: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Honorable City Council President Kermit Williams, and City Council Members 

Darin Carrington, Finance Director 

Honorable Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

November 10, 2021 

Resolution to approve a budget amendment for Fiscal Year 2021-22 to 
allocate a total of $63,000 to the General Fund GL Account 101-206-
702.000 to fund the Deputy Finance Director position. 

The City Charter (Section 4.107) and City Ordinance (Article III, Sec. 2-93) allows for the 
designation of a Deputy Finance Director. The Administration on November 5, 2021 
designated Mr. Sekar Bawa to serve as Deputy Finance Director. 

In order to fund this position, the Administration is submitting a budget amendment to put 
in place the necessary funding for this key role. 

As such, the following resolution is recommended for your consideration: 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac timely approved the FY 2021-2022 budget on June 29, 2021; 
and 

Whereas, the adopted FY 2021-2022 General Fund budget includes appropriations in the 
Finance Department for salaries for personnel using account number 101-206-702.000; and 

Whereas, Sekar Bawa has been appointed to the position of Deputy Finance Director with 
a salary of $94,000; and 

Whereas, the GL account 101-206-702.000 is funded for the current fiscal year in the 
amount of 402,987; and 

Whereas, it is proposed to increase the appropriation for account number 101-206-702.000 
by $63,000 to a total of $465,987 to fund the position of the Deputy Finance Director; 

NOW THEREFORE be resolved that the City Council hereby approves the amendment 
for the fiscal year 2021-2022 as requested by the Administration for account 101-206-
702. 000 in the amount of $63,000. 

This item cannot be approved until after the resolution to authorize the City Clerk to 
publish the notice of the budget amendment has been approved and one week after 
the publication of the notice. It takes 5 votes to approve a budget amendment. 



#13 
RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

Honorable City Council President Williams and City Council 

Alexandra Borngesser, Grant Writer 

THROUGH: Honorable Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

DATE: 

RE: 

November 16, 2022 

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT AND ACCEPT A $90,000 GRANT FROM 
NEXTFIFTY INITIATIVE FOR THE CITY OF PONTIAC TO SUPPORT 
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS TO PONTIAC SENIOR 
CENTERS 

The City of Pontiac has received a $90,000 grant award from the NextFifty Initiative. The grant 
was awarded to the City for infrastructure improvements to Pontiac's senior centers in response 
to a grant application submission titled "The City of Pontiac's Older Adult Enrichment" and the 
grant award does not have any matching requirements. 

The City of Pontiac aspires to provide elite services and programming for its older adult 
population. Currently, the Pontiac centers that serve the older adult community, The Robert 
Bowens Center and the Ruth Peterson Center, are in dire need of infrastructure repair and 
updates. The budget submitted with the grant request included improving entryways, interior 
wall construction, kitchen improvements, and restroom improvements. The funds from the 
NextFifty Initiative will allow the City to renovate and update structurally deficient, unsafe and/or 
inaccessible facilities so that they can be used and enjoyed by the older adult and disabled 
communities in safe, inclusive, and innovative ways. 

As such, the following resolution is recommended for your consideration: 

Resolution on Following Page 



CITY OF PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT AND ACCEPT A $90,000 GRANT FROM 
NEXTFIFTY INITIATIVE FOR THE CITY OF PONTIAC TO SUPPORT 

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS TO PONTIAC SENIOR 
CENTERS 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac was awarded a $90,000 grant from the NextFifty Initiative; and; 

Whereas, the grant is for the purpose of renovating and updating structurally deficient, unsafe and/or 
inaccessible facilities so that they can be used and enjoyed by the older adult and disabled communities 
in safe, inclusive, and innovative ways, and; 

Whereas, the grant award from NextFifty Initiative does not have a matching requirement; and; 

Whereas, the funds from the grant will increase the budgeted revenue for the current fiscal year 
2021-2022 in the amount of $90,000 for grant income, and increase the appropriations in the 
amount of $90,000, representing grant expenditures. 

Whereas, the increased appropriations will not cause the fund balance in the General Fund to go below 
the policy mandated thresholds and; 

NOW THEREFORE be resolved that the City Council hereby authorizes the Interim City Clerk to publish a 
notice in a newspaper of general circulation at least one week before consideration of the proposed 
budget amendment to increase budgeted revenues in the amount of $90,000 to the General Fund in 
account 101-000-532.000-Grant Income, and appropriations in the amount of $90,000 in a General Fund 
account. 

Attachment: NextFifty Initiative Grant Award Letter 

2 



DocuSign Envelope ID: A348539C-6653-4941-B847-267DF4607E77 

INITIATIVE 

October 21, 2021 

Alexandra L Borngesser 
The City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 

Dear Alexandra, 

Congratulations! NextFifty Initiative has reviewed the application you submitted for ''The City of 
Pontiac's Older Adult Enrichment" and we are excited to work with you as your organization 
aims to positively change the landscape of aging! 

Based on the information provided and the availability of funds, we will fund your request at 
$90,000.00 (specific details of your award are outlined in the enclosed Grant Agreement). 
NextFifty Initiative staff member Sydney Langer is your Program Officer and will work with you 
on this award. Please direct all questions about the grant to this individual. 

All funds awarded are contingent on fulfillment of Conditions of the Grant Award. These 
conditions are listed in the enclosed agreement. Please read this agreement thoroughly. Also 
enclosed is an ACH Payment form. Complete, sign, and date the documents and return them to 
NextFifty Initiative via DocuSign no later than November 29, 2021. Failure to return the 
executed documents to NextFifty Initiative by November 29, 2021, may result in the 
forfeiture of your grant. Funds will not be released until the documents are signed and 
returned by the aforementioned date. A copy of the fully executed agreement will be sent to you 
via DocuSign. Should you have any questions, please contact your Program Officer. 

If something occurs to delay implementation or progress of the grant or to alter the goals, 
intended use of funds, or request primary contact identified in the grant application, please 
contact your Program Officer as soon as possible. 

Your grant award provides a great opportunity to promote the work you are doing with and for 
older adults! When sharing news about your grant award, we request that you specifically note 
that funding was made available by NextFifty Initiative. Please do not release any 
announcements or promotional materials until you have received your copy of the fully executed 
grant agreement and communication toolkit. The toolkit includes resources to make it easier to 
share this news with your community. 



DocuSign Envelope ID: A348539C-6653-4941-B847-267DF46D7E77 , 

Additionally, we recognize that stories are an effective method of expressing the impact of the 
work you do. If you have a compelling story that relates to your work or to this project, please 
share with us as we would be honored to hear about it. We may feature some of these stories 
on our website and in other communications. 

We are thankful for the work you are doing and are excited for this opportunity to collaborate in 
improving the future of aging. 

Sincerely, 

Diana McFail 
President and CEO 

Enclosure 



#14 
RESOLUTION 



City of Pontiac Microsoft Cloud Strategy 

enda 

► Review Current Microsoft Ucenslng and Solution 
► Review N8W.Mlcrosoft Cloud St 

,:):_-\Ju; 
',,--< ,', 

► Review Nf!W Estimated Costs&• 
►c1ostng 



Current Microsoft Licensing and Services 

■ Current software licensing model is outdated and not portable. Older 
versions are deployed. 

■ Microsoft Exchange (Email) is located on-premise at City Hall 
■ Costly to manage and maintain Email at City Hall 

■ To remain on-premise will result in significant capital investment. 



Microsoft Cloud Strategy- Why? 

■ Transition to a subscrig_tion-based license model. 
• Includes access to all current Microsoft versions of Office suite. 

• Billed monthly 

■ Microsoft Office 365 (0365) provides cloud-based email services and 
provides the following benefits: 

• Microsoft 365 Managed Services are in multiple datacenters to provide redundancy 

• Ability to install Office Suite on·up to 5 devices per licensed user. 

• Email is accessible from anywhere at anytime. 

• Eliminates the requirement of procuring and maintaining costly servers/storage at 
City Hall. 

■ Adds additional features and security measuresto protect data. 

■ Many organizations have or plan to migrate to 0365 Services. 



New Solution - Estimated Costs 

- .· 1¾pI~rtftBf ~~?t1fE~~S:;.·•.··.·t1f ~::?·:.j.··. i_:.·••·•;,s31,s22L::it·;{{-.;·. , 1 

** IT hasbudgeted$67~l40 
for FY21/FYi2·forth1sproject. 



New Solution - Estimated Timeline 

. ~'
1~il~ilt"2~1e{~fiJ>'<>ritijft~,[f<>~~~fj§~Jffip[itn\ht(~p$W~lJ\7.,, 

Approval Process and Procurement 
Present Solution to Crty Council for Approval 

Approval from City Council 

Submit to Procurement 
Procurement issues PO 
Execute Insight CSP 0365Subscription 
Excecute Agreement for Insight Implementation Services (SOW) 

establish 

Implementation 
Project Kick-Off 
Configure City of Pontiac Microsoft 0355 tenant 
Provision Azure AD Connect between CoP & Microsoft 
Migrate all CoP user and resource mailboxes to 0365 
Ingest local mail data to Exchange online mailboxes 
Test all new infrastructure 
Decomission CoP Exchange Server 

Provide desiJin documentation and knowledge transfer 

_, iiE~~W;~i~!~~$i 



Microsoft Cloud Strategy 

Thank you for your time today! 

c:t"r't r;r: 

Pontiac 
f:1 I (':_ t;,1 i (; A f.J 



BACKGROUND 

Problem: 

1. City is using old versions of Microsoft Office and outdated version of email. 
2. Must pay for each Microsoft Office installation for same employee If they have 2 computers or 

want to Install Office on their smartphone. 
3. Emal I system being located at City Hall is subject to power and other single point of failure 

possibilities. 

Solution: 

1. Implement Microsoft 0365 licensing plan. 
2, Install for no additional cost Office suite on multiple systems and smartphone per licensed user 

at no additional cost (up to 5) 
3. Move email services to Microsoft redundant and secure datacenters to eliminate power and 

single point of failure possibilities. 

Costs: 

1. One-time professional services implementation cost $37,500 
2. Monthly license cost for 130 Licenses $2,454 monthly ($29,453/year) 

Advantages of Microsoft Solution: 

1. Cloud-based system has no hardware to maintain and update. 
2. Eliminates Capital investment on hardware and maintenance for email system on-site at City 

Hall. 
3, Subscription based licensing model that Is deemed as best practice. 

RESOLUTION 

Whereas, The City of Pontiac currently uses obsolete Microsoft Office products and outdated email 
system and can no longer be expanded to meet the growing needs of the City; and 

Whereas, The City can utilize a cloud-based Microsoft Office licensing and email system result In a cloud 
solution to the City; and 

Whereas, the costs will be a one-time professional services cost of $37,500, and a monthly operating 
agreement for 130 licenses at a total cost of $2454 monthly cost. 

Now, Therefore, hereby be It resolved that the Pontiac.City Council approves the purchase of the 
Microsoft 0365 solution and associated costs including a one-time professional services cost of $37,500, 
and annual cost for 130 licenses at a total cost of $29,453,00 per year; and authorizes the Mayor to 
enter Into the agreements to complete this transaction. 



#15 
RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
Vern Gustafsson 

Planning Manager 

Planning & Zoning Division 
. City Hall - 47450 Woodward Avenue 

Pontiac, Michigan 48342-5009 
248-758-2800 I FAX 248-758-2827 

Donovan Smith 
City Planner 

Patrick Brzozowski 
Code Enforcement Manager 

To: HONORABLE MAYOR WATERMAN, COUNCIL PRESIDENT WILLIAMS & 
PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

From: VERN GUSTAFSSON, PLANNING MANAGER 

Date: OCTOBER 25, 2021 

Re: ZMA 20-08 ZONING MAP AMENDMENT W/ CONDITIONS 
SHEFFIELD HOLDINGS, LLC 
PIN 64-14-17-130-005 & 006 
M-1 LIGHT MANUFACTURING TO M-1 W/ CR [CONDITIONAL REZONING] 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of application ZMA 20-08 for the proposed conditional rezoning of parcel 
64-14-17-130-005 & 006. The .46 acre, two parcel site is located on W. Sheffield, south of Walton Blvd 
and west of Baldwin Avenue. The subject property is currently zoned M-1 Light Manufacturing, and is 
bordered to the West and North with similar M-1 zoning designations. Properties to the East and South 
are zoned C-3 Corridor Commercial. At the October 6, 2021 meeting of the Planning Commission, they 
recommended approval of this request to the Pontiac City Council. 

The applicant proposes a rezoning from M-1 Light Manufacturing to M-1 Lighting Manufacturing with 
Conditions, to permit a proposed Medical Marihuana Grow facility. The property is located just outside 
the Walton Blvd Medical Marihuana Overlay District and does not presently qualify for a Medical 
Marihuana Grow use. 

Summary 

1. The applicant requests rezoning of the subject site from M-1 Light Manufacturing to M-1 Light 

Manufacturing with CR Conditional Rezoning. This Conditional Rezoning request a Medical 

Marihuana Grow to be permitted as a condition. 

2. The Master Plan identifies the subject site as Entrepreneurial-Industrial, Commercial and Green. 

The existing and proposed zoning designation is consistent with this future land use designation. 

3. The subject property is compatible with M-1 Light Manufacturing standards. 

4. Any future development must comply with all City licenses, standards, procedures. 

1 



Conditional Rezoning Agreement 

The applicant has volunteered conditions as part of their Conditional Rezoning Agreement [see 
attachment] that will restrict the uses developed on the subject site. 

In accordance with Section 6.802 of the City Zoning Ordinance, the request for Conditional Rezoning 

requires a technical review, Public Hearing and recommendation by the Planning Commission, and final 

decision by City Council. The Conditional Rezoning Agreement to be executed between the applicant 

and the Mayor after City Council approves the Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions and City 

Attorney approves Agreement to form. 

As you know, the City cannot request or suggest modifications to these conditions. Per the Michigan 

Zoning Enabling Act, such conditions must be made voluntarily of the applicant. The request to permit a 

Medical Marihuana Grow facility is subject to City Council approval from M-1 Light Manufacturing to M-

1 Light Manufacturing with following conditions 

• The City and the Developer agree that the following approvals and activities are conditions to 
this Agreement, and that the activities shall be completed in an expeditious manner and that 
each condition requires the completion of all of the previous approvals and activities, and will 
not take place until all of the previous approvals and activities have been completed; 

o The Developer obtains all of the necessary permits from the City of Pontiac and any 
other approval or permits necessary for site work construction approval. 

o The Developer shall completely buildout no more than Ten Thousand (10,000} square 
feet of space for Medical Marihuana Grow. The work shall be completed within 
Twenty-Four (24} months of receiving the necessary permits. 

• Any change to the use of the structure to a use other than what has been specified in this 
Agreement may be administratively approved by the City Planning, and Zoning Official if it 
meets the following standards: 

o The change to the use would not increase by more than five percent (5%} any or all of the 
following characteristics of the property: "The City may include conditions such as: 11 the 
total number of parking spaces required or provided; or the expected traffic generation; 
and 

o The use is allowed in the M-1. Any change to the use of the structure other than what has 
been specified in this Agreement that does not meet the standards above shall be 
treated as a new application for the use and must be approved in accordance with the 
procedures and standards of the City's Zoning Ordinance, the Special Use Permit 
approval, a variance approval or for amendment or rezoning, as applicable. 

Following the Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions approval and the decision of the City Clerk's 
Medical Marihuana Use license approval process, the applicant would require a Special Exception Permit 
approved by the Planning Commission per Section 6.302 of the Zoning Ordinance. Additionally, submit 
for Site Plan Review per Section 6.204 to the Planning Division and appear before the Planning 
Commission for Site Plan Review Approval, prior to beginning proposed development and construction. 

2 



Existing Development Pattern 

The subject site is located at the north-western intersections of E. Sheffield & Baldwin Ave. The site is 
bordered by M-1 Light Manufacturing District properties to the north and west, and C-3 Corridor 
Commercial to the East and South. The Baldwin Ave Corridor supports a mix of commercial uses ranging 
from restaurants, car dealerships, and general business and retail uses. 

Furthermore, the subject site is located just south of the Walton Blvd Medical Marihuana Overlay 

District. For M-1 zoned properties located outside an Overlay District, Medical Marihuana Safety 

Compliance Facility and Secure Transporter are allowed by Special Exemption Permit. A Provisioning 

Center or Processor can co-locate with a Grow facility, but would require a Zoning Map Amendment 

with conditions approved by the Planning Commission and City Council, along with a Special Exception 

Permit approved by the Planning Commission. 

Master Plan 

The City of Pontiac updated the City Master Plan in 2014 with an economic development focus. A key 
goal of the Master Plan is to "take advantage of Pontiac's central location and affordability to attract 
new office, retail, commercial, and mixed-use development/redevelopment to Pontiac that works to 
help recruit "New Economy" businesses and workers". 

The subject site is designated as the Entrepreneurial: Residential, Commercial, and Green Future Land 
Use Category. This district's stated goal is a mixed-use district that creates a greater flexibility in land use 
and design criteria so that redevelopment activities can be both context sensitive and market driven to 
encourage the positive re-use of vacant or under-utilized property in strategic locations around the City. 

Rezoning Criteria 

The City Council should consider any of the following criteria [found in Section 6.804, A-J] that apply to 

the rezoning with conditions application in making findings, recommendations, and a decision to amend 

the Official Zoning Map (see Section 6.804). 

Additionally, the section also stipulates that the City Council may also consider other factors or 

considerations that are applicable to the application, but are not listed among the ten criteria. To assist 

the City Council in its evaluation of these and other criteria, we offer the following findings of fact for 

your consideration. 

Section 6.804 provides review criteria for the City Council to utilize in making its findings, 

recommendations, and making a decision. The ten stated criteria are listed below with our findings: 

1. Consistency with the goals, policies and objectives of the Master Plan and any sub-area plans. If 
conditions have changed since the Master Plan was adopted, consistency with recent 
development trends in the area shall be considered. 

3 



The zoning designation for the site remains unchanged, only the potential uses are 

expanded within the restrictions of the conditional rezoning, the proposed zoning district is 

consistent with the goals, policies, or objectives of the City's Master Plan. 

2. Compatibility of the site's physical, geological, hydrological and other environmental features 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

The site is currently vacant, but presently no geological, hydrological, and other 

environmental features identified. 

3. Evidence the applicant cannot receive a reasonable return on investment through developing the 
property with one {1} or more of the uses permitted under the current zoning. 

The applicant did not provided evidence that they could not develop the property with a use 

which would not require a Conditional Rezoning that is within the Zoning Ordinance's 

guidelines for permitted uses. 

4. Compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 
uses and zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, density, nature of use, 
traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure and potential influence on property values. 

The planned Medical Marihuana Grow use is consistent with the zoning designations for M-
1 Light Manufacturing properties and is compatible with the zoning district, however the 
proposed use is planned to be located outside of the Walton Blvd Medical Marihuana 
Overlay District. 

5. The capacity of the City's utilities and services sufficient to accommodate the uses permitted in 
the requested district without compromising the health, safety and welfare of the City. 

Existing City services and utilities capacity would be sufficient for the proposed use. 

6. The capability of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic 
generated by uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 

W. Sheffield is abutted by industrial use properties and handles industrial traffic to Baldwin 

Ave and nearby Walton Blvd. The proposed development will not impact the ability of the 

existing streets to handle potential traffic. 

7. The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are reasonable in relationship to surroundings 
and construction on the site will be able to meet the dimensional regulations for the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries of the rezoning with conditions are reasonable in relationship to 

surroundings. 

8. If a rezoning is appropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate 
from the City's perspective than another zoning district. 

The Conditional Rezoning is an appropriate request for Medical Marihuana Grow in the M-1 

District located outside the Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts. 

9. If the request is for a specific use, rezoning the land is considered to be more appropriate than 
amending the list of permitted or special land uses in the current zoning district to allow the use. 

4 



It would be inappropriate to amend the existing M-1 Light Manufacturing District to permit 

Medical Marihuana uses. Conditional Rezoning of the subject site is the most appropriate 

action to allow the conditional proposed use. 

10. The requested rezoning will not create an isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood. 
This Conditional Rezoning application would not create an isolated M-1 Light Manufacturing 

district within the Sheffield, Walton Blvd and Baldwin Ave. corridors. 

ZMA 20-08-Zoning Map Amendment 

Parcel No: 64-14-17-130-005 & 64-14-17-130-006 

Resolution 

Whereas, The City has received an application for a Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions at W 

Sheffield and Baldwin Avenue identified as PIN 64-14-17-130-005 & 64-14-17-130-006 from Sheffield 

Holdings LLC for the rezoning of the aforementioned parcel; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request in regards to the City1s 

Master Plan and the request conforms to the goals and vision contained within the plan; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request and the requirements 

set forth by Section 6.804 and 6.807 of the Zoning Ordinance and the Planning Division has determined 

the aforementioned request and proposed intended use of the property complies with the City of 

Pontiac Zoning Ordinance; and 

Whereas, In accordance with the procedures outlined in the Zoning Ordinance, Sections 6.802 as it 

relates to Zoning Map Amendments, the request has undergone the required: Technical Review, Public 

Hearing, and Planning Commission Recommendation; and 

Whereas, On October 6, 2021, a Public Hearing was held, and in consideration of public opinion, the 

Planning Commission recommends City Council to approve the Zoning Map Amendment with 
Conditions and approve the change from the current M-1 Light Manufacturing zoning district to M-1 

Light Manufacturing with Conditions; and 

Now Therefore, Be It Resolved, That the City Council for the City of Pontiac approve the Planning 

Commission recommendation for the Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions (ZMA 20-08) request 

for Parcel No. 64-14-17-130-005 & 64-14-17-130-006 to amend the current site zoning from M-1 Light 

Manufacturing to M-1 Light Manufacturing with Conditions. 

5 



Application for Zoning Map 
Amendment 

City of Pontiac 
Office of Land Use and Strategic Planning 

47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, Ml 48342 
T: 248.758.2800 F: 248.758.2827 

Property/Project Address: W,5',o••<P•='""'"~"",N=bo~'4-14-1Hl<I-OOS,,. ... , .. ,,_,,.., Office Use Only 

Sidwell Number: 64-14-17-130-005 and 64-14-17-130-006 
PF Number: 

Date: 10/08/2020 

Instructions: Completed applications with appropriate fee shall be submitted to the Office of Land Use and Strategic 
Planning at least 30 days prior to the regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting. Applications must be complete in 
all respects with supporting documents such as site plan, property survey etc, Planning staff wi11 schedule the application far 
consideration by the Planning Commission in accordance with the attached schedule, Incomplete applications wi11 delay the 
review process. 

Agglicant (glease grint or tvge) 

Name Green Station Depot 
Address 3236 Gateway Ledge 
City Commerce 
State Michigan 
ZIP Code 48390 
Telephone Main: I Cell: 248-310-9435 j Fax: 

E-Mail jungovic@gscsco.com 

Project and Progertv Information 

Name of Proposed Development: Green Station Depot 

The subject property is location at West on the N / S I E / W side of Baldwin Rd 
between Sheffield and Walton 

The property is zoned: M-1 

Proposed Zoning District: M-1 

It is proposed that the property will be used as: Medical Marljunana Growing Facility 

The subject property is legally described as follows (include sidwell numbers): 

W. Sheffield (Parcel Identification Numbers: 64-14-17-130-005 and 64-14-17-130-006) 



Property Owner Information 

Name Sheffield Holdings LLC 
Address 3236 Gateway Ledge 
City Commerce 
State Ml 
ZIP Code 48390 
Telephone Ms1ln: I Cell: 2483109435 I Fax: 

E-Mail jungovic@gscsco.com 

Are you the _6_ Owner __ Agent/rep. of the owner ___ Other _________ _ 

The proposed will be used for the following purpose (provide as much detail as possible with 
photographs, sketches, site plans, written documents, etc,). 
See Attachment 

Sl:lte the reason for the Zoning Map Amendment, particularly the manner in which the City will 
benefit if the amendment is approved and why such change will not be detrimental to the public 
welfare and/or the property rights of other persons located in the vicinity of the site. 
See Attachment 

Signature of Owner 

State of Michigan 
County of Oakland 

Signature of Applicant 

On this_ day of. ____ ~ A.D., 20__, before me personally appeared the above named person, who being duly swam, stated he/she has read 
the foregoing application, by him/her signed, and know the contents thereof, and that the same is true of his/her own knowledge, except as to the matters 
therein stated ta be upon information and belief and so as ta those matters he/she believes it ta be tn1e. 

Notary Public, Oakland County, Michigan 
My Commission F.xpires: __ 



CONDITIONAL REZONING AGREEMENT 

This Conditional Rezoning Agreement (the "Agreement") is made this_ day of __ _ 

2021, by and between the City of Pontiac, a Municipal Corporation, with an office located 

at 47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, Michigan, 48342 (the "City"), and Sheffield Holdings 

LLC, a Michigan Limited Liability Company, (the "Developer") with its principal offices 

located at 3236 Gateway Ledge, Commerce, Ml. 48390. 

THE PARTIES RECITE THAT: 

WHEREAS, City of Pontiac exercising all of theirs powers pursuant to the City 

Charter; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer is a Michigan corporation organized and existing in 

good standing under and pursuant to the Business Corporation Act, 1972 PA 284, as 

amended, and exercising all of the powers provided therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer is looking to develop certain parcels of real property 

located within the City of Pontiac, specifically parcel numbers; 64-14-17-130-005 and 64-

14-17-130-006 in Pontiac, 48326, which is currently zoned M-1 Light Manufacturing (as 

specifically listed and legally described on EXHIBIT A) (the "Property"), and desires to 

proceed with creating a development which would allow medical marihuana grow 

operations; and 

WHEREAS, under and pursuant to Section 405 of the Michigan Zoning Enabling 

Act, 2008 PA 110, as amended (codified at MCL §125.3405 et seq), certain conditions 

voluntarily offered by the owner of land, including an agreement between the City and the 

Developer, may become a condition of rezoning of the Property; and 

1 



WHEREAS, the Developer on October 8, 2020, submitted an Application for a 

Zoning Map Amendment through way of a Conditional Rezoning (attached as EXHIBIT 

B), voluntarily offering, in writing, certain conditions to rezone the Property from M-1 Light 

Manufacturing, including, among other conditions, this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the City, on October 6, 2021 held a Public Hearing on the request for 

Conditional Rezoning and proposed amendment to the City's Zoning Map; and 

voted to recommend approval of the request for Conditional Rezoning and 

proposed amendment to the City's Zoning Map based upon this Agreement and the 

attached Exhibits; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council, on _____ , 2021 voted to approve the request 

for Conditional Rezoning and adopted Ordinance No. ???to amend the City's Zoning 

Map based upon the conditions set forth in this Agreement and the attached Exhibits; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises 

hereinafter set forth, the City and the Developer agree as follows: 

1. THE DEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

a. Project Definition. The Developer agrees to develop the entire site to create 

a medical marihuana grow facility for its tenants 

b. The project will commence after site plan approval is completed and 

approved by the City and the Planning Commission. 

c. The Project shall be based on the Developer's forthcoming Site Plan 

Approval Application Submittal, with revisions as necessary from City staff 

review for new construction. The zoning use district regulations for the 

Property shall be based upon the M-1 Light Manufacturing for the purposes 

2 



of allowing medical marihuana grow facilities 

2. TIMING 

a. Project Sequence. The City and the Developer agree that the following 

approvals and activities are conditions to this Agreement, and that the 

activities shall be completed in an expeditious manner and that each condition 

requires the completion of all of the previous approvals and activity, and will 

not take place until all of the previous approvals and activities have been 

completed; 

i. The Developer obtains all of the necessary permits from the City of 

Pontiac, and any other approval or permits necessary for site work 

construction approval. 

ii. The Developer shall completely buildout no more than Ten Thousand 

(10,000) square feet of space for medical marijuana grow facilities. The 

work shall be completed within Twenty-Four (24) months of receiving 

the necessary permits. 

b. Enforced Delay. In the event of enforced delay in the performance by the 

Developer of its obligations under this Agreement, specifically including, but 

not limited to, the obligations described in paragraph 2(a) above, due to 

unforeseeable causes beyond its control and without fault or negligence, 

including, but not restricted to, acts of God or of the public enemy; acts of the 

federal, state or county government; acts of the judiciary, including injunctions, 

temporary restraining orders and decrees; acts of the other party; strikes or 

labor unrest; fires; floods; unstable soils; epidemics; environmental 
3 



contamination; or severe weather; the time for performance of such 

obligations shall be extended by mutual agreement for the period of the 

enforced delays; provided, however, that the Developer shall, within ten (10) 

days after the beginning of such enforced delay, have first notified the City in 

writing of the causes thereof and requested an extension for the period of 

the enforced delay. The City's approval of an extension for enforced delay 

shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

3. DEFAULT 

a. Developer Performance. In the event that the Developer fails to obtain the 

necessary approvals set forth in Section 2(a)(i) above for the development, 

then, by written notice given by the City to the Developer within six (6) months 

following such failure by the Developer, the City may, at is option and within 

its sole discretion, terminate this Agreement. In the event that this Agreement 

is terminated by the City or the Developer fails to complete the construction of 

the development and receive certificates of occupancy as set forth in Section 

2(a)(ii) above; then, by written notice given by the City to the Developer within 

six (6) months following such failure by the Developer, the City Council may, 

at its option and within its sole discretion, declare the Property to revert back 

to the M-1 - Light Manufacturing zoning district and terminate the Site Plan 

Approval for the development. 

4. CHANGE IN USE. Any change to the use of the structure to a use other than what 

has been specified in this Agreement may be administratively approved by the City 

Planning Division if it meets the following standards: 
4 



a. The change to the use would not increase by more than five percent (5%) any 

or all of the following characteristics of the property: "The City may include 

conditions such as:" the total number of parking spaces required or provided; 

or the expected traffic generation; and 

b. The use is allowed in the M-1. Any change to the use of the structure other 

than what has been specified in this Agreement that does not meet the 

standards above shall be treated as a new application for the use and must be 

approved in accordance with the procedures and standards of the City's 

Zoning Ordinance, the Special Use Permit approval, a variance approval or for 

amendment or rezoning, as applicable. 

5. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, the exhibits attached hereto, if any, and 

the instruments which are to be executed in accordance with the requirements 

hereof set forth all the covenants, agreements, stipulations, promises, conditions, 

and understandings between the City and the Developer concerning the Project as 

of the date hereof, and there are no covenants, agreements, stipulations, promises, 

conditions or understandings, either oral or written, between them other than as set 

forth herein. 

6. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES. The relationship of the City and the Developer 

shall be defined solely by the expressed terms of this Agreement, including the 

implementing documents described or contemplated herein, and neither the 

cooperation of the parties hereunder nor anything expressly or implicitly contained 

herein shall be deemed or construed to create a partnership, limited or general, or 

joint venture between the City and the Developer, nor shall any party or their agent 

be deemed to be the agent or employee of any other party to this Agreement. 

5 



7. MODIFICATION. This Agreement can be modified or amended only by a written 

instrument expressly referring hereto and executed by the City and the Developer. 

8. MICHIGAN LAW TO CONTROL. This Agreement and the rights and obligations of 

the parties hereunder shall be construed in accordance with Michigan law. 

9. DUE AUTHORIZATION. The City and the Developer each warrant and represent 

to the other that this Agreement and the terms and conditions thereof have been 

duly authorized and approved by, in the case of the City, its City Council and all 

other governmental agencies whose approval may be required as a precondition to 

the effectiveness hereof, in the case of the Authority by its members and all other 

applicable governmental agencies, and as to the Developer, by the members 

thereof, and that the persons who have executed this Agreement below have been 

duly authorized to do so. The parties hereto agree to provide such opinions of 

counsel as to the due authorization and binding effect of this Agreement and the 

collateral documents contemplated hereby as the other party shall reasonably 

request. 

10. NO PERSONAL LIABILITY. The obligations hereunder of the City and the 

Developer shall constitute solely the obligations of the respective entities to be 

satisfied solely from their respective assets, and no officer, Board member, agent, 

employee or partner of any of said entities shall have any personal obligation, 

responsibility or liability for the performance of the terms of this Agreement. 

6 



{Signature Page Follows} 

7 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on 

the date first set forth above. 

WITNESSED: SIGNED: 

For: City of Pontiac 
By: Dr. Deidre Waterman, Mayor 

Notary Public 

__________ County, ________________ _ 

Acting in _______ County, ________________ _ 

My Commission Expires _____________________ _ 

WITNESSED: 

Notary Public 

SIGNED: 

For: Sheffield Holdings LLC 
By: Nicholas R Jungovic 

__________ County, ________________ _ 

Acting in _______ County, ________________ _ 

My Commission Expires _____________________ _ 

8 



ZMA 20-08 Zoning Map Amendment 
Green Station Depot 
PIN 64-14-17-130-005; 64-14-17-130-006 
Current Zoning: M-1 Light Manufacturing District 
Proposed Zoning: M-1 Light Manufacturing District w/conditions 

Zoning Map Amendment Petition from current zoning M-1 Light 
Manufacturing District to M-1 Light Manufacturing District 

wLconditions 



ZMA 20-08 
Site Context 



ZMA 20-08- Future Land Use 

Entrepreneurial: Industrial, 
Commercial & Green 

The Entrepreneurial District designation 
allows for commercial, industrial or green 
Redevelopment: 
• Areas are either adjacent to existing light 

industrial facilities; 
• Historically hosted light industrial 

or warehousing uses; and, 
• Access to main transportation routes create a 

market potential for light industrial use. 



C
X) 

0
.. 

o
m

 
I
~

 
0 N

 
bD

 
<

( _c 
~

c
 

N
~

 



#16 
RESOLUTION 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

PLANNING DIVISION 
47450 Woodward Ave I PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 48342 

TELEPHONE: 248.758.2800 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

HONORABLE MAYOR WATERMAN, COUNCIL PRESIDENT WILLIAMS & 
PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

VERN GUSTAFSSON, PLANNING MANAGER 

ZMA21-09 ZONING MAP AMENDMENT 
CITY OF PONTIAC PLANNING DIVISION 
PIN 64-14-16-126-007; 64-14-16-126-008 
PROPOSED ZONING: R-1 ONE FAMILY DWELLING & 
C-3 CORRIDOR COMMERCIAL 

NOVEMBER 8, 2021 

The City of Pontiac Planning Division request the Pontiac City Council to consider a Zoning Map 
Amendment. ZMA 21-09 For the rezoning of two parcels. Parcel 64-14-16-126-007, otherwise known has 
Jaycee Park, zoned R-1 Single Family and C-3 Corridor Commercial, and Parcel 64-14-16-126-008, known 
as the Bostick Truck Center, 500 E Walton, also zoned R-1 Single Family and C-3 Corridor Commercial. At 
the Planning Commission on October 6, 2021, they recommended approval of this request to the Pontiac 
City Council. 

As a result of changes to the Zoning Map or in the configuration of the subject parcels, the subject 
parcels share multiple zoning designations with boundaries that do not align with current parcel 
boundaries. The Zoning Map Amendment request to bring the subject parcels into conformity with the 
Zoning Map, and conformity with the zoning designations of the larger areas of the parcels. 

The Planning Division request the Planning Commission consider the Zoning Map Amendment for the 
following; 

1. Parcel 64-14-16-126-007, otherwise known has Jaycee Park, zoned R-1 Single Family and C-3 
Corridor Commercial, rezone to the R-1 Single Family Dwelling District. 

2. Parcel 64-14-16-126-008, known as the Bostick Truck Center, 500 E Walton, also zoned R-1 Single 
Family and C-3 Corridor Commercial, rezone to C-3 Corridor Commercial. 

1 



Summary 
1. Jaycee Park is a permitted use by right in the R-1 Single Family Dwelling District, rezoning the 

parcel to R-1 will not create a non-conformity parcel. 
2. The area of the Bostick Truck Center site zoned single family dwelling, does restrict the property 

owner from providing the maximum permitted use of his property. 
3. The proposed Zoning Map Amendment does comply with the Future Land Use designations 

Master Plan identified in the City of Pontiac Master Plan. 
4. Any future development must comply with all City standards, codes, ordinances and procedures. 

Master Plan 
According to the City's 2014 Master Plan Update, Pontiac looks to focus on the preservation of park land 
and open spaces, and support entrepreneurialism and the new era of business diversity. The subject site 
areas are designated as Parks and Entrepreneurial: Residential, Commercial, & Green land use category. 
The goals of this category are to provide flexibility that encourages adaptive reuse of properties in the 
City and provide jobs and services for the adjacent neighborhoods. 

Existing Zoning Pattern 
Properties extending along Walton Blvd frontage are zoned C-3 Corridor Commercial, and maintain a 
mixed of residential zoning uses to the north. Parcels along Joslyn Ave frontage are zoned C-4 Suburban 
Business and various Residential zoning districts to the east. 

Rezoning Criteria 
The Pontiac City Council must consider the following criteria [section 6.804] that apply to the rezoning 
application in making findings, recommendations, and a decision to amend the Official Zoning Map. 
Additionally, this section stipulates that the City Council may also consider other factors that are 
applicable to the application, but are not listed among the ten criteria. To assist in the evaluation of these 
and other criteria, we offer the following findings of fact for your consideration. 

Section 6.804 provides review criteria for the Pontiac City Council to utilize in making its findings, 
recommendations, and formulating a decision. The ten stated criteria are listed below with our findings: 

1. Consistency with the goals, policies and objectives of the Master Plan and any sub-area plans. If 
conditions have changed since the Master Plan was adopted, consistency with recent 
development trends in the area shall be considered. 

As described in the Master Plan, this development project is consistent with the goals, 
policies, and objectives of the City's Master Plan, preservation valuable Park Land and open 
Spaces, while also encouraging entrepreneur and commercial districts. 

2. Compatibility of the site's physical, geological, hydrological and other environmental features 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

The existing Jaycee Park will continue to function as a city neighborhood park, in addition to 
other developed features pertaining to the Bostick site shall continue to be compatible with 
the other uses also permitted in the district. 

2 



3. Evidence the applicant cannot receive a reasonable return on investment through developing the 
property with one {1} or more of the uses permitted under the current zoning. 

The mix of zoning designations assigned to the applicant's property does restrict the owner 
from utilizing their property of its highest and best use, thus rendering a challenge on behalf 
of the property owner to receive a reasonable return on investment of permitted uses under 
the current zoning designations. 

4. Compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 
uses and zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, density, nature of use, 
traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure and potential influence on property values. 

The rezoning of the subject sites is compatible with the existing and surrounding zoning 
designations, and supports land suitability, impacts on the environment, density, nature of 
use, traffic impacts, aesthetics, and infrastructure of the surrounding properties and owners. 

5. The capacity of the City's utilities and services sufficient to accommodate the uses permitted in 
the requested district without compromising the health, safety and welfare of the City. 

The City's utilities and services will be sufficient to accommodate the proposed development 
without compromising the City's health, safety, and welfare. 

6. The capability of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic 
generated by uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 

The proposed development will not impact the ability of Walton Blvd and Joslyn Ave to 
handle potential traffic. 

7. The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are reasonable in relationship to surroundings 
and construction on the site will be able to meet the dimensional regulations for the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries of the rezoning are reasonable in relationship to surroundings and zoning 
district dimensional requirements. 

8. If a rezoning is appropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate 
from the City's perspective than another zoning district. 

With all the previous findings of fact, the boundaries of the proposed R-1 & C-3 zoning 
district are reasonable from the City's perspective and comply with the vision found in the 
City's Master Plan. 

9. If the request is for a specific use, rezoning the land is considered to be more appropriate than 
amending the list of permitted or special land uses in the current zoning district to allow the use. 

It would be inappropriate to amend the zoning text for R-1 Single Family Dwelling & C-3 
Corridor Commercial to bring the existing uses and zoning designations of the sites into 
conformity with the City of Pontiac Zoning Ordinance. 

10. The requested rezoning will not create an isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood. 
The proposed rezoning does not create an isolated zone along the Walton Blvd and Joslyn 
Ave corridors. 

3 



ZMA 21-09 - Zoning Map Amendment 
Parcel Number 64-14-16-126-007 & 64-14-16-126-008 

RESOLUTION 

Whereas, The City Planning Division request a Zoning Map Amendment for PIN 64-14-1.6-126-007 & 
64-14-16-126-008 for the aforementioned parcels; and 

Whereas, The request conforms to the goals and vision contained within the City Master Plan; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division reviewed the requirements set forth by Section 6.804 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, the Planning Division has determined the proposed intended use of the property 
complies with the City of Pontiac Zoning Ordinance; and 

Whereas, In accordance with the procedures outlined in the Zoning Ordinance, Sections 6.802 as it 
relates to Zoning Map Amendments, the request has undergone the required: Technical Review, 
Public Hearing, and Planning Commission Recommendation; and 

Whereas, On October 6, 2021, a Public Hearing was held and in consideration of public opinion, the 
Planning Commission recommends City Council approve the Zoning Map Amendment request, 
approving the change for Parcel Number 64-14-16-126-007 from C-3 Corridor Commercial & R-1 One 
Family Dwelling to R-1 One Family Dwelling zoning district and rezone Parcel Number 64-14-16-126-008 
from C-3 Corridor Commercial & R-1 One Family Dwelling to C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning district; 
and 

Now Therefore, Be It Resolved, That the City Council for the City of Pontiac approve the Planning 
Commission recommendation for the Zoning Map Amendment [ZMA 21-09] request for Parcel Number 
64-14-16-126-007 from C-3 Corridor Commercial & R-1 One Family Dwelling to R-1 One Family dwelling 
zoning district and rezone Parcel Number 64-14-16-126-008 from C-3 Corridor Commercial & R-1 One 
Family Dwelling to C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning district. 

4 



ZMA 21-09 Zoning Map Amendment 
PIN 64-14-16-126-007; 64-14-16-126-008 
Current Zoning: R-1 Single Family Dwelling District & C-3 Corridor 
Commercial 
Proposed Zoning: R-1 Single Family Dwelling District & C-3 Corridor 
Commercial 

Zoning Map Amendment request to update non-compatible zoning 
use, for consistency in zoning designations 



0... 
ro 
~
 

tl.O
 

C
 

·-C
 

0 
N

 

0
)
 

0 I 
n N

 
<

( 

~
 

N
 

·1 
f
•
 

I -... :.;.''"" i 

. ,.J_ _____ ._.,.,,,,,,.,,., 

~ 
"' 

llll 
II 

"
"
"
·-··• ... a 

1·· .... 
l 

• 
• 

• 
., 

;l r-• .-·....,...--... • 
• 

• 
~ 

)' 

l • .• :. .--.-•. .., • 
f'. 

Ill 

./II 
llll 

"' 
Iii 

~-7.---•· 
~ 

! 
. -.--'•-.-·-.-· 



0
.. 

m
 

~
 

(lJ
 

(./) 

:::J 

--0
 

C
 

m
 

_
J
 

(lJ
 

L
 

:::J 
,+

-J
 

:::J 
L

L
 

I 

C
 

QJ 
QJ 
... C
, 

"C
 

C
 

ca 
ca 
·- ... +

,I 
u

, 
::s 

"C
 

C
 ... 

-ca ·-u ... QJ 

E
 

E
 

0 
u ca 
·- ... ::s 

QJ 
C

 
QJ 
... a

. 
QJ 
... +
,I 

C
 

w
 


	20211119152715881
	20211119152817669_0001
	20211119152817669_0002

